MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SEEERRAH

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
(7 B 582k W 7 2 G R A A
(Stock Code JR##HCHE: 00136)

Annual Report 4z 2013




MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEEREARSE

Contents
H %

Chairman’s Statement

ERmE

Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE R

Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EELEEEREASEN

Corporate Governance Report
PERERRE

Directors’ Report

E=EWmE

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AZ RS

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fre 2B AREK

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBI R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
rARREHR

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
é% iﬁimuﬁ%

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA M RAR MW

Five Years Financial Summary

hEPBHRE

Other Information

H B

Particulars of Investment Properties

REMEFB

Corporate Information

NEIER

*(E BT

Pages

=} |

SHELEHARQA FH 2013

21

26

33

44

47

49

51

53

55

156

157

159

160



Chairman’s Statement

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

This year 2012/13 has undoubtedly been a disappointing one
for Mascotte Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”). The year
under review was the first full financial year after the Group
completed the acquisition of the entire shareholding in Sun
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sun Materials”). However, the
acquisition has yet to generate the return which we would like
to derive from the investment made in Sun Materials. Affected
by technological obstacles associated with the production
process, Sun Materials’ commencement of commercial
production of polycrystalline silicon has experienced prolonged
delays since its acquisition by the Group. On the other hand,
external market conditions in the solar industry has been rather
depressing since 2012, with oversupply in the market driving
down spot selling prices to levels well below US$20/kg. In
the light of these factors, the Company has re-assessed the
carrying value of the Group’s investment in the polycrystalline
silicon operations resulting in an impairment loss as further
described in the Management Discussion and Analysis section
below.

In the circumstances the Group’s financial position has been
put under considerable stress during the year under review. To
alleviate the pressure the Group has taken various measures to
proactively reduce its debts throughout the year. As a result,
the outstanding principal amount of the consideration bonds
has been reduced to HK$885 million at the end of the financial
year. On the other hand, the Company has successfully
obtained the consent of shareholders and holders of the
convertible bonds to amend the terms of the convertible bonds
such that the Company now has the option to redeem the
consideration bonds by the issue of shares, thereby relieving
the Company of its obligation to redeem the consideration
bonds in cash at maturity.

As part of the Company’s efforts to reduce indebtedness and
to provide funding for the Group’s operations, the Company
has completed three share placing exercises during the year
and raised total net proceeds of approximately HK$53.2
million. In addition, subsequent to the end of the year the
Company has successfully completed a rights issue in May
2013 which raised approximately HK$515.6 million as further
described in the Company’s circular dated 28 March 2013.
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Chairman’s Statement

PROSPECTS

We anticipate that the year ahead will continue to be a
challenging one for the Group. In particular, the Group’s
prospects would depend primarily on when we can secure
a profitable entry into the photovoltaic industry. At present
the market for polycrystalline silicon is still imbalanced and
uncertainty exists regarding the time that will be taken for
market prices to restore to more meaningful levels. The recent
trade disputes between China, the United States and the
European Union over dumping of solar panel products by
China adds further to this uncertainty. Accordingly, we have to
carefully monitor and regularly review market conditions and
critically assess the impact on Sun Materials.

APPRECIATION
| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders,
business partners, all of my fellow directors and staff for

their on-going support dedicated services and their valuable
contribution during the year.

For and on behalf of the Board

Peter Temple Whitelam
Chairman

28 June 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

As anticipated in the Company’s announcement issued on 8
May 2013, the Group recorded a loss for the year ended 31
March 2013. The loss attributable to shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2013 amounted to approximately HK$3,033.5
million, which increased by approximately HK$2,412.2 million
as compared to a loss of HK$621.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2012. The loss was mainly attributable to:

(iii)

(iv)

an impairment of approximately HK$1,935.4 million was
made by the Company for the year ended 31 March
2013 (2012: HK$ Nil) against the aggregated carrying
value of the investment in Sun Mass Energy Limited
and its subsidiaries (“Sun Mass Group”). The basis of
determination of the impairment is primarily based on
the valuation report dated 28 June 2013 (the “Report”)
in respect of the Group’s polycrystalline silicon business
in Taiwan. The Report indicated that the value in use of
business enterprise of the Group’s polycrystalline silicon
business (on the existing plant scenario) is reasonably
stated as approximately HK$795.6 million (USD102.0
million) as of 31 March 2013;

a recognition of a loss of approximately HK$299.4 million
on alteration of terms of the Company’s convertible bonds
during the year ended 31 March 2013;

an increase in finance costs by approximately HK$197.4
million, from approximately HK$192.1 million to
approximately HK$389.5 million, in which approximately
HK$22.5 million arising from interest expenses paid for
bank and other borrowings, approximately HK$155.7
million arising from the amortisation of interest expenses
for convertible bonds and approximately HK$211.3
million arising from amortisation of interest expenses for
consideration bonds during the year ended 31 March
2013;

an increase in loss on early redemptions of the Company’s
consideration bonds by approximately HK$131.5 million,
from approximately HK$29.7 million to approximately
HK$161.2 million;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(v) an increase in fair value losses on derivative financial
instrument of the Company’s consideration bonds by
approximately HK$109.0 million, from approximately
HK$17.0 million to approximately HK$126.0 million;

(vi) a fair value losses of approximately HK$19.8 million in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during
the year ended 31 March 2013, which was decreased
by approximately HK$287.0 million from approximately
HK$306.8 million in last year.

The basic and diluted loss per share was HK$2.59, as compared
to the basic and diluted loss per share of HK$1.25 in last
year. The basic and diluted loss per share have been adjusted
to reflect the impact of the rights issue which became
unconditional on 20 May 2013.

Material acquisitions and disposals

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company disposed
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiaries of Smart Style Investment
Limited (“Smart Style”) and Smart Direct Investments Limited
(“Smart Direct”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Smart Style
(collectively known as “Smart Style Group”) for a consideration
of HK$88.0 million. Details of the disposal are set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 22 November 2012, the
Company’s circular dated 28 December 2012 and note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. No material acquisition
of subsidiaries was noted during the year ended 31 March
2013.

Solar grade polycrystalline silicon
Result

No turnover was generated from solar grade polycrystalline
silicon segment with no commercial production was
commenced during the year ended 31 March 2013 and
last year. The segment loss increased by 49.2 times, from
approximately HK$40.5 million in last year to approximately
HK$1,993.9 million during the year ended 31 March 2013,
in which approximately HK$1,935.4 million was arising from
the impairment loss on the Group’s polycrystalline silicon’s
business, with amount of approximately HK$1,745.0 million
allocated to intangible asset and approximately HK$190.4
million allocated to the property, plant and equipment. Details
of the impairment losses are set out in the note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Impairment

As a result of severe and challenging market conditions in
the solar industry during the year 2012 and early 2013 which
impacted the selling prices of the polysilicon in the industry,
the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of
related cash generating unit (“CGU") during this period, with
the assistance from an independent valuation firm.

Hong Kong Accounting Standard 36 — Impairment of Assets
("HKAS 36") set out that the recoverable amount of the CGU
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell (“FVLCS") and value in use (“VIU"). In assessing VIU,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of a
CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In preparing the impairment test of Sun Mass Group as a
CGU, based on the progress of the development, the technical
report prepared by PHOTON Consulting, LLC dated March
2013 (“Technical Report”), the management of the Group
discussed and concluded to adopt the one plant scale for the
impairment test. The Group has observed HKAS 36 and has
prepared recoverable amount analysis under both FVLCS and
VIU premises. Since the results from the two premises are close,
the management decided that it is reasonable to adopt the
VIU premise, which was based on the discounted cashflow (the
“DCF") analysis. Under relevant valuation guidelines, if there
is no comparable intangible asset in the market when valuing
an intangible asset for the purpose of impairment test and in
order for allocating the impairment amount to different classes
of assets, it is appropriate to adopt DCF under the income
approach than market approach even though income approach
involves more judgments or forward-looking statements. The
use of income approach can estimate not only free cash flows
of a business unit but also incremental cash flows attributable
to a specific intangible asset.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The calculation of VIU was based on the future pre-tax cash
flows expected to arise from the CGU for the next five years
using a pre-tax discount rate of 22%. The pre-tax discount rate
of 22% was derived by setting the same equity value results
from a post-tax cashflow using a post-tax discount rate and a
pre-tax cashflow using a pre-tax discount rate.

The post-tax discount rate was estimated based on the
estimated weighted average cost of capital (“WACC"), which
incorporated the cost of equity and debt, weighted by the
proportionate amount of each source of capital in the capital
structure. The cost of equity was developed through the
application of the Capital Asset Pricing Model (“CAPM"),
with reference to comparable companies’ historical beta. In
addition, small size risk premium and company-specific risk
premium were also added to the cost of equity derived by
CAPM. Another component of WACC was after-tax cost of
debt, which was based on the latest borrowing rate of the
subject and the standard tax rate. Taking the industry’s capital
structure as a proxy is the notion that the subject’s operation
will converge to the industry level in the long run. The cash
flows beyond the next five years are extrapolated using a
nominal growth rate of 3%. Other key assumptions adopted
in the DCF analysis under the value in use premise are set out
below:

1. production facility was expected to commence operation
in the second half of 2013 based on the management’s
estimation;

2. average selling price (ASP) was estimated at approximately
US$22.1/kg in 2013 and was estimated to change in line
market analysts forecast;

3. Cash manufacturing costs, comprising raw materials,
electricity and manufacturing overhead, which were
estimated to be approximately US$14/kg by a technical
consultant commissioned by the Company. In relying
on the technical report, cash manufacturing costs were
expected to remain constant throughout the projection
period,;

4. operating expenses (“OPEX”) including selling, general
and administrative expenses were estimated to be less
than 10% of revenue throughout the projection period.
Management estimated the OPEX based on the planned
headcount, rental and miscellaneous expenses;
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Management Discussion and Analysis

5. an estimated sales volume in the first full year of operation
represents approximately 74% utilization of the designed
production capacity of the existing plant and gradually
increase to a long-run target of 86% and

6. all polysilicon produced are sold.

Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately HK$190.4
million and approximately HK$1,745.0 million in respect
of property, plant and equipment and intangible asset,
respectively, have been recognised in the profit and loss. No
impairment assessment was performed for the year ended 31
March 2012.

Investments

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the investment
activities of the Group was scaled down, investments were
realized and applied to fund the working capital of the Group.
As a result, the dividend income from investments in shares
decreased by approximately 99.1% from approximately
HK$4.6 million to approximately HK$0.04 million as compared
with last year. The net loss from investment in shares
was approximately HK$19.8 million, 93.5% lower than
approximately HK$306.8 million as compared with last year.

Loan financing

Interest income from provision of finance significantly
decreased by approximately 97.9% to approximately HK$0.56
million from approximately HK$26.4 million as compared with
last year, mainly due to decrease in number of customers.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, all loans and interest
receivables were duly settled and no provision for loan
receivable was made. The amounts received from loan
receivables were applied to fund the working capital of the
Group.

Property investment

During the year ended 31 March 2013, rental income from
property investment increased from approximately HK$1.4
million to approximately HK$2.6 million, representing
an increase of 1.9 times as compared to last year. Such
increase was mainly due to renting out an empty space
of the Company's property, which located at Room 2501,
China United Centre, 28 Marble Road, North Point, to an
independent third party for generating additional funding
as working capital until the entire property was disposed in
January 2013. Details for the disposal of the property are set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 22 November
2012 and the Company’s circular dated 18 December 2012
respectively.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

THBEWR S

5. HETEBLZEFEZ(MFTEE

W*Fﬁﬁﬁ% FTEREE A

RHT74% » WEERESZE K
%iﬁ’%%% C &

4
1,745 ooo ooo,% mﬂzﬁ)@é’% &

E-F——G-A=+—BILFE
W EETTRUE AT -

RE
REBEE-_T—=F=-A=1+—H1t

FE - AEERIKETE  UE
WIREIER » A8 RIE R AR K
EEEEES - Atk RIKEZ
B% 8 g N8 3 4R 0 4999.1% +
#494,600,000/% JTE 2> = 940,000
BIL e MO EZEEFENE
19,800,000 /& 7T * £ F 2 4
306,800,000/8 703 493.5% °

BEFME

IRHEE 2 B I A R X F KRR
1297.9% - i #926,400,000 % JT
5}%9;‘%%@560000%7@ E?&EEEA
—E¢5ﬂ5+—5¢¢§’%ﬁ
EWEREFEEZZEEEE -
BIWEARBRKERIELEE - B
éi%ﬁm%@%ﬁ$%§2%@

WEKRE
RBEE-_ET—=F=A=+—H
ILFE MEREEEZHEW

A #91,400,000/8 70 » #BINEA
2,600,0008 70 * BREFHEN1.9
& HEWABMEN  TEEA
ViN/N Tuﬁk%%ELmﬁ%E
FLO250MEZEEYEEMET
ﬁi%—ﬁ WMESREINEGIEE

$ HEBREMER-_T-=F—
Hﬁﬁﬁt %%ﬁ HBDRIE
RAAR = ——F+—HA=-+=

Z@%'M&$@ﬁ:%—:¢
+=—A+\HZBX



Management Discussion and Analysis

With the decrease in fair value of investment properties as at
31 March 2013 as compared to last year, the segment result
turned from profit of approximately HK$1.4 million in last year
to a loss of approximately HK$1.3 million for the year ended
31 March 2013, with a fair value loss of approximately HK$2.8
million recognised during the year ended 31 March 2013. The
decrease in fair value was mainly due to an early termination
of tenancy agreement by tenant of Mainland’s property from
February 2013, and thus the total gross rentable area of
such property was then lessened, accordingly, the applicable
rental area for the purpose of the valuation was then adjusted
compared to last year.

Manufacture and sale of accessories

With decrease in oversea sales, the segment’s turnover
decreased from approximately HK$172.1 million in last year to
approximately HK$163.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2013, representing a decrease of approximately 5.4%.

The Group is able to maintain a gross profit margin of
approximately 30.1% on average in this year. The Group
recorded a profit of approximately HK$4.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 153.3% compared
to a loss of approximately HK$9.0 million in last year, it was
mainly due to an additional sale tax provision of approximately
HK$12.4 million was made in last year.

THE GROUP’S POLYCRYSTALLINE SILICON BUSINESS

The acquisition of 50.1% interest in Sun Mass Energy
Limited (“Sun Mass"”) was completed on 15 July 2011 for
a consideration of HK$1,170 million (USD150 million). In
September 2011, the Company proposed to acquire all the
remaining interest in Sun Mass from the non-controlling owner
of Sun Mass for a total consideration of HK$2,500 million.
The acquisition of the remaining interest in Sun Mass was
completed on 4 January 2012. Sun Materials is the wholly
owned subsidiary of Sun Mass since then.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Save as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
18 June 2012 and the Company’s interim reported dated 29
November 2012, during the year under review, Sun Materials
conducted a few sampling runs, the byproducts generated
from the production process, sodium fluoride and hydrofluoric
acid, were large in quantity and were stored in local holding
tanks. In order to properly treat and recycle the byproducts,
Sun Materials has to implement the designed recycling facility
before commencing formal large-scale production. The need
to expedite the further enhancement of its production facilities
before formal commercial production is prompted by the
following reasons:

(i) Hydrofluoric acid, an industrial acid requiring special
handling, is produced as a by-product of the silicon
decomposition and production process.

(i) The Group is capable of commencing large-scale
production now, but once it has commenced large-scale
production, the amount of hydrofluoric acid produced will
increase exponentially and cannot be safely handled under
its current storage method and facilities, especially during
the typhoon season in Taiwan from May to November
(with the peak season from June to September).

(iii) Originally, the enhancement of production plants was
intended to be carried out after the Group’s commencement
of large-scale production in around the fourth quarter of
2011. That would avoid the accumulation of hydrofluoric
acid during the peak typhoon season in Taiwan. However,
since large-scale production was delayed, if the Company
proceeded with commercial production without enhancing
its production facilities, a high volume of hydrofluoric acid
would be accumulated during the peak typhoon season.
Therefore, the Group has to enhance its production facilities
now before commencing formal large-scale production.

In the first half of 2012, Sun Materials completed the
negotiation process with the contractor of the new facility
building and commenced with the groundbreaking for the
facility on 7 June 2012. The new building will house Sun
Materials recycling facility and provide additional processing
capability for the production of silicon tetrafluoride. The civil
engineering works was completed in February 2013. The
remaining works were in progress as of 31 March 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group also discussed with its customers the Group’s delay
in commercial production and its inability to deliver product to
them, all of them agreed to postpone delivery of products by
amending the relevant contractual terms upon the Group is in a
position to generate polycrystalline silicon from its commercial
production. The Group’s key customer and strategic partner
remain committed to the project.

The Group’s polycrystalline silicon business utilizes a
proprietary “hydrogen-assist reductive combustion” process
for producing polycrystalline silicon in which the hydrofluoric
acid and sodium fluoride generated would be processed in
a closed-loop manner, and such substances would then be
reconstituted into sodium fluorisilicate, a silicon feedstock,
which is in turn used to produce silicon tetrafluoride for the
“hydrogen-assist reductive combustion” process. This is how
the Group intended to treat the hydrofluoric acid generated
for production of polycrystalline silicon. The storage of
hydrofluoric acid was intended merely to be a temporary
measure to handle the hydrofluoric acid and such method was
never intended for treating the hydrofluoric acid generated
in commercial production. As such, the directors had not
previously considered the hydrofluoric acid discharge to be a
risk, but instead considered the new production process (a) to
be a more environmentally-friendly process that is expected
to fully consume the hydrofluoric acid discharge, as compared
to other established production processes such the Siemens
or Fluidized Bed Reactor process, and (b) a more cost-efficient
way of producing polycrystalline silicon as our byproducts
are expected to be fully consumed during the recycling
process. The Group came to this view as a consequence of
their technical due diligence and the representations made by
the vendor as well as industry experts. The Group’s technical
consultants and other third-party experts did not identify the
risk of having a relatively large volume of hydrofluoric acid
discharged from the production process when assessing the
production process before the Group’s acquisition of Sun
Mass Group. Upon completion of the review of production
data generated during the week of 23 April 2012, the
directors took proactive steps to accelerate the planning and
construction of the recycling facility to treat the hydrofluoric
acid discharge, including other ways to mitigate the issues
related to the Group’s method of storing hydrofluoric acid
discharge. As disclosed above, the risks associated with large
volume of hydrofluoric acid discharge during production were
not contemplated by the Group’s technical consultants nor
its legal advisers as to Taiwanese law as the “hydrogen-assist
reductive combustion” process is a proprietary process which
involves new technology. It was only after the conclusion
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Management Discussion and Analysis

of the enhancement of the decomposition process during
the week of 23 April 2012 that the urgency of constructing
and implementing the recycling facilities emerged and was
recognized as an issue that must be resolved by prior to
commencing commercial production. The directors are of the
view that the Group has taken all necessary steps to assess
the competency of industry experts and business partners that
the Group relied on. The directors have reviewed the profile
and track record of various industry experts, interviewed the
responsible consultants and rejected consultants who fall short
of the standards required. Since none of the Group’s experts,
consultants and business partners identified the potential
development issues the Group encountered in connection with
the efficiency of the decomposition reactor and the risk of
having a relatively large volume of hydrofluoric acid discharge,
no due diligence work had been completed by the directors in
these respects for the acquisition of Sun Mass Group.

Nonetheless, that potential risk was not specifically identified
in the Circular dated 19 December 2011, as the Group relied
on the assessment of the quality of the polycrystalline silicon
business made by its business partners and industry experts
which did not identify the production of excessive hydrofluoric
acid discharge as one of the issues that the Group would
need to resolve before the commencement of full scale
commercial production. The Board has considered alternatives,
including (i) the sale of the hydrofluoric acid to potential end
users or third-party recycling vendors, and (ii) paying waste
treatment vendors to safely dispose of the hydrofluoric acid.
The sale of the acid to end users and recycling vendors poses
a regulatory issue for the factory because the Group is not
registered to sell and transport hydrofluoric acid. Further, the
hydrofluoric acid concentration, after passing through the
Group'’s scrubbers, is 10%, which is too low a concentration
for direct use by end users without further processing, but
sufficient to pose environmental and physical hazards during
the peak typhoon season in Taiwan if no recycling facility
is put in place to process it. If the Group pays third-party
recycling vendors to dispose of the hydrofluoric acid, the
handling fee would significantly increase the cost structure of
the Group’s polycrystalline silicon business which will in turn
lower its profitability or ability to reach profitability. In light of
the above, the Group ruled out other alternatives in handling
the hydrofluoric acid discharge and opted for constructing a
recycling facility to deal with such discharge.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On the related environmental laws and regulations in Taiwan,
the Group consulted the Group’s legal advisers in respect of
the Taiwanese law. Given the business nature of the Group's
polycrystalline silicon business, the Group is subject to certain
environmental laws and regulations. During the year under
review, the Group complied with the environmental laws and
regulations in Taiwan.

Saved as disclosed in the announcement dated 28 June 2013,
as at this reporting date, the Group’s review of the progress of
its polycrystalline silicon business is still on-going.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed its operations with internally
generated cash flows, other borrowings and by its internal
resources and shareholder’s equity. During the year, the
liquidity of the Group was tight and the Company explored
various initiatives to seek new funding and to improve the debt
to equity ratio by (i) restructuring the terms and conditions
of convertible bonds; (ii) seeking for external funding for
repayment of debts; and (iii) enhancing the capital base of the
Company.

(i) Restructuring the terms and conditions of convertible
bonds

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
3 December 2012, the Company and all holders of the
convertible bonds (the 3-years 5% unsecured convertible
bonds issued by the Company on 14 July 2011) entered
into the deed of amendment in relation to, among other
things, the alteration of terms and conditions of the
convertible bonds (the “Alteration”). The Alteration mainly
provide greater flexibility to the Company in managing
its working capital, as the Alteration remove mandatory
conditions imposed on the Company to redeem the
convertible bonds by cash settlement. The resolution was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting on 18 January 2013.

(ii) Seeking for external funding for repayments of debts

On 27 June 2012, the Company completed a placing of
57,084,736 new ordinary shares with net proceeds of
approximately HK$12.7 million, of which approximately
HK$11.7 million was used for the down payment for the
construction of the new facility building for polycrystalline
silicon’s business; and the remaining balance of the net
proceeds of approximately HK$1.0 million was utilised
for the construction works of the recycling facility of
polycrystalline silicon’s business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2012, Mega Soar, the Company and
the Purchaser entered into the Conditional Agreement
pursuant to which (i) Mega Soar has agreed to sell and
the Purchaser has agreed to purchase the entire shares
of Smart Style and (ii) Mega Soar has agreed to assign/
or procure its associates to assign the benefit of and the
interests in the shareholder’s loan to the Purchaser for
a total consideration of HK$88.0 million. Smart Style is
the sole shareholder of Smart Direct. Smart Direct is the
registered and beneficial owner of a commercial property
with a market value of approximately HK$88.4 million
as at 31 October 2012. The resolution was approved
by the shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting on 8 January 2013 and the disposal was
completed on the same date. Accordingly, Smart Style and
Smart Direct ceased to be subsidiaries of the Company.
The net proceeds of approximately HK$86.8 million was
ultilised to fund the repayment of debts as intended. A
gain of approximately HK$1.0 million was posted.

On 15 November 2012, the Company completed a placing
of 68,501,684 new ordinary shares with net proceeds of
approximately HK$11.1 million which was used for the
repayment of debts of the Group.

In addition, the Company entered into a loan facility
agreement with an independent financial institution in
November 2012 with a loan facility of HK$500.0 million
obtained. The loan is secured by the shares of Sun Mass,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and bears
interest at a rate equivalent to the prime rate as quoted
by Chong Hing Bank Limited from time to time plus 5%
per annum. As at 31 March 2013, the Company utilised
HK$489.0 million for the repayment of debts and working
capital of the Group (2012: Nil). The outstanding loan
was fully repaid and the share charge was released
subsequently after the balance sheet date.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
28 December 2012, 22 January 2013 and 27 March 2013,
the Company has entered into a placing agreement (as
supplemented by supplementary agreements dated 22
January 2013 and 27 March 2013 respectively) in relation
to the placing of Notes (the 5% unsecured notes with
a maturity of 7-years from the date of issuance of each
Note). As at 31 March 2013, an aggregated principal
amount of HK$5 million was placed. Up to the date of
this annual report, an additional aggregated principal
amount of HK$25.0 million was placed. The net proceeds
of HK$28.5 million was ultilised to fund the repayment of
debts as intended.

On 28 February 2013, the Company completed a placing
of 306,910,020 new ordinary shares with net proceeds
of approximately HK$29.4 million which was used for the
repayment of the debts of the Group as intended.

Further, the Company entered a loan facility agreement
with an independent financial institution in February
2013 with a loan facility of HK$10.0 million obtained.
The loan facility is unsecured, at 12% interest rate per
annum and repayable three months from the date of the
loan agreement. As at 31 March 2013, the Company fully
utilised HK$10.0 million for the repayment of debts of the
Group (2012: Nil). The outstanding loan was fully repaid
after the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(iii) Enhancing the capital base of the Company

In April 2012, the Company completed a capital
reorganisation which involved shares consolidation of
every 16 issued shares into 1 consolidated share, capital
reduction and share subdivision. Upon the said capital
reorganisation became effective on 26 April 2012, par
value of the shares of the Company has become HK$0.01
each from HK$0.1 each. The credit arising from the
capital reduction of approximately HK$453.8 million is
set off against the accumulated losses of the Company.
The authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000,000 shares
of HK$0.01 each. Details of the capital reorganisation are
disclosed in the announcement and the circular dated 6
March 2012 and 2 April 2012 respectively.

The Company will continue to seek available financial resources
including further fund-raising activities and/or pursuing
strategic investors and partners for its operations to reduce its
debt level and to enhance its working capital.

As at 31 March 2013, net current liabilities of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$219.9 million (2012: net
current assets of approximately HK$349.1 million) with bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$52.7 million (2012:
approximately HK$208.2 million).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had secured bank borrowings
of approximately HK$42.4 million, which is a ten-year term
loan and is denominated in new Taiwan Dollars (approximately
NT$158.8 million. (2012: approximately HK$69.5 million,
of which HK$27.5 million is a five-year term loan and is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and approximately HK$42.0
million is a ten-year term loan and is denominated in new
Taiwan dollars (NT$160.0 million)). The bank borrowings carry
variable interest at local bank’s deposit rate in Taiwan plus a
spread ranging from 1.6% to 1.8% per annum. (2012: carry
variable interest at prime rate in Hong Kong or local bank’s
deposit rate in Taiwan plus a spread ranging from 1.6% to 5%
per annum).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

No secured margin facilities were obtained as no securities
were held by the Group as at 31 March 2013 (2012: utilisation
of secured margin facilities of approximately HK$0.5 million).

The Company issued convertible bonds with aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,450 million in connection with
the acquisition of 50.1% interest in Sun Mass Group in July
2011. The convertible bonds are due in July 2014, with
5% per annum coupon interest rate payable semi-annually,
and are convertible into ordinary shares of the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.2 per share (adjusted upon
adjustments of the terms of convertible bonds effected on
18 January 2013). Convertible bonds with principal amount
of HK$219 million have been converted into 1,095 million of
new ordinary shares of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2013, and the aggregate principal amount outstanding
as at 31 March 2013 was HK$1,200 million (2012: HK$1,419
million). During the year ended 31 March 2013, an aggregated
interest paid was approximately HK$71.0 million (2012:
approximately HK$35.9 million).

The Company issued consideration bonds with aggregate
principal amount of HK$1,750 million as part of the
consideration for the acquisition of the remaining 49.9%
interest in Sun Mass Group in January 2012. The consideration
bonds are due in January 2014 with 2.5% per annum coupon
interest rate payable quarterly. Consideration bonds with
principal amount of HK$765 million have been redeemed
during the year ended 31 March 2013, and aggregate principal
amount of outstanding as at 31 March 2013 was HK$885
million (2012: HK$1,650 million). Accordingly, the carrying
amount of the derivative financial instrument was re-valued
by an independent valuer as at 31 March 2013. During the
year ended 31 March 2013, an aggregated interest paid was
approximately HK$28.7 million (2012: approximately HK$0.4
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The total deficit of the Group as at 31 March 2013 was
approximately HK$235.9 million (2012: total equity was
approximately HK$1,231.2 million). Gearing ratio calculated
on the basis of the Group’s total debts (interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings plus convertible bonds and consideration
bonds) over shareholders’ funds was (579.1%) (2012:
193.7%).

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2013, buildings in Taiwan with carrying amount
of approximately HK$21.3 million (NT$79.8 million) were
pledged to secure bank borrowings of approximately HK$42.4
million (NT$158.8 million) (2012: buildings in Taiwan with
carrying amount of approximately HK$81.4 million (NT$310.0
million) and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying amount of
approximately HK$77.7 million were pledged to secure bank
borrowings of approximately HK$42.0 million (NT$160 million)
and HK$27.5 million respectively).

Furthermore, the Group had a restricted bank deposit,
approximately to HK$5.6 million (NT$21.0 million) as at 31
March 2013 (2012: HK$5.5 million (NT$20.9 million)), placed
to secure the lease agreement in relation to the land located in
Taiwan.

In addition, the shares of Sun Mass with a valuation of Sun
Mass Group of not less than HK$750.0 million were pledged to
secure borrowing from an independent financial institution of
HK$489.0 million as at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2013, no margin facility was granted to the
Group as no securities investments were held by the Company
(2012: margin facilities of HK$63.2 million from four regulated
securities brokers were granted to the Group under which
financial assets at fair value though profit or loss of HK$154.8
million were treated as collateral for the facilities granted.
Aggregate of HK$0.5 million were utilised and the carrying
amount of the financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss charged under the utilised facilities to a securities broker
was HK$21.8 million).

CURRENCY RISK MANAGEMENT

The majority of the Group’s assets are held in Hong Kong
Dollars with no material foreign exchange exposure. The
Group’s manufacturing business has its overseas market, which
alone accounts for around HK$108.1 million of the Group’s
sales turnover. Furthermore, the Group also engaged in solar
grade polycrystalline silicon business in Taiwan, United Stated
Dollar (“US$") will be expected to be the functional currency,
no income is yet to be recorded during the year ended 31
March 2013. In safeguarding the volatile Euro Dollars currency
risk, the management has chosen to adopt a more prudent
sales policy by mainly accepting US$ quoted sale orders,
which in turn the management can maintain a stable currency
exchange condition for normal trading business development.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. During the year ended 31 March 2013, the directors are
of the view that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk is
not material, and will continue to monitor it.

COMMITMENT

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had capital commitment
of HK$10.8 million (2012: Nil), mainly for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company and the Group had not provided corporate

guarantee to its subsidiaries or other parties and did not have
other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2013, the Group employed approximately 454
employees, around approximately 74.2% and approximately
12.1% of them were employed in the People’s Republic of
China for the manufacturing business and in Taiwan for the
manufacturing of solar grade polycrystalline silicon business
respectively. The remuneration policy of the Group is to reward
its employees with reference to their qualifications, experience
and work performance as well as to market benchmarks.
Employee benefits include medical insurance coverage,
mandatory provident fund and share option scheme. Total staff
costs for the year, including director’'s emoluments, amount to
approximately HK$82.8 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012: Nil).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam, aged 84, was appointed as
an executive Director in August 2007 and the Chairman
of the Board in April 2008. He is a specialist consultant in
global branding and international communications. After
graduating from Pembroke College, Oxford University, he
joined British Broadcasting Corporation before winning a
Fulbright Scholarship to study educational radio and television
in the United States of America. Following four years at
NBC-TV in New York, he began a long career in advertising,
creating national and international campaigns for such clients
as British Airways, Unilever, Nabisco, ESPN, Colgate, Cadbury,
General Motors, American Express, Nomura Securities, and
the Bank of Montreal. He has worked as a creative strategist
in Boston, New York, London, Montreal, Toronto, Tokyo and
Taiwan and has received international awards. Recently he
has been developing brand strategies both for companies and
government agencies. This is combined with his knowledge
and interest in documentary film. He has a long-time
acquaintance with Asia, having visited and worked in eight
different countries in the Asia Pacific region. He is currently
an independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279), a company listed on
the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter, aged 51, joined the Group as Financial
Controller and Company Secretary in May 2008. He was
appointed as an executive Director and acting Chief Executive
Officer in July 2008, and he was re-designated as Managing
Director in July 2011. He studied and obtained his professional
qualification in Accountancy in the United Kingdom. He is a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales and of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has 28 years, experience in auditing,
accounting, investment, financial and corporate management.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Eddie Woo, aged 41, was appointed as an executive
Director in March 2010 and also serves as President of our Sun
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. subsidiary. He was previously
an executive director in the Asia investment banking group
of Oppenheimer & Co. Inc., a North American investment
bank with extensive operations and experience in the Greater
China region, and its predecessor, CIBC World Markets. His
responsibilities included significant financing activities for
Chinese companies including initial public offerings, mergers
and acquisitions, private placements and other related advisory
work. He joined CIBC World Markets in 2000 as a research
analyst. In 2003, he helped start Mekong Airlines in Cambodia,
serving as a board director and chief financial officer before
returning to CIBC World Markets during early 2004 as a
director within the equity research group. He received his
Master’s degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Francisco and his Bachelor’s degree from the University
of California, Santa Cruz.

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip, age 44, was appointed as an
executive Director and the Company Secretary in April 2011.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a member of the CPA Australia and
holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Accountancy from Queensland
University of Technology and a Master’s degree in Corporate
Finance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has
over 15 years of experience in finance and accounting. Prior to
joining the Company, he was responsible for accounting and
finance matters for several listed companies in Hong Kong.
During the period from 2 September 2010 to 14 March 2011,
he was an executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation
Limited (Stock code: 279), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lau King Hang, aged 41, a resident of Hong Kong with
Taiwan Passport, joined the Company as an assistant Director
in March 2010. He was appointed as an executive Director
in June 2011. He graduated from National Taiwan University
with a Bachelor degree in Chemistry and received the Master’s
degree in Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Director and is a member of The Hong Kong Management
Association and obtained the title of Professional Manager.
He is responsible for assisting operations of Sun Materials
Technology Co., Ltd. and is report to the Board. He has over
10 years of extensive management experience in sales and
marketing in high technology, chemical industry, packaging
and printing services, food and beverage operations.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Frank H. Miu, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in December 2009. He is also the
chairman of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Board and a member of the nomination
committee of the Board. Mr. Miu holds a Juris Doctor degree
from Harvard Law School and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Economics and Accounting from St. John's University of
Minnesota in the United States of America. He is a member
of the American Bar Association and the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Aside from about 15
years of professional experience in accounting and law, he
has extensive management experience in financial services,
publishing and printing, food and chain restaurants, cold
storage as well as property-related businesses. He was formerly
an executive director of Radford Capital Investment Limited
(Stock Code: 901) from March 2009 to December 2009 and
a managing director from June 2011 to August 2011, and
executive director of Dragonite International Limited (Stock
Code: 329) from April 2010 to May 2010 and a non-executive
director from May 2010 to July 2011. He is currently also an
independent non-executive director of Willie International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 273), an independent non-
executive director of Freeman Financial Corporation Limited
(Stock Code: 279) and an independent non-executive director
of Tack Fiori International Group Limited (Stock Code: 928), all
of which are companies listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Duoyuan Global Water Inc., a company listed on New York
Stock Exchange.

Dr. Agustin V. Que, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2010. Dr. Que
is also a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Board. Dr.
Que holds Doctor of Philosophy and Master degree in Business
Administration, both majoring in Finance, from the Wharton
School of the University of Pennsylvania in Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, United States of America. He has been involved
in the field of finance for more than 35 years as a private
equity investor, merchant banking, corporate and development
finance professional in Jakarta, Hong Kong, Singapore, Boston
and Washington, District of Columbia. He recently returned
to Manila after 15 years in Jakarta where he was corporate
finance adviser to an Indonesian holding company with
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

diversified interests in agribusiness, property and financial
services. In this position, he was responsible for mergers and
acquisitions, new investments, business development and
investment banking activities. Prior to Jakarta, he worked in
the financial sector in Hong Kong for 12 years. Dr. Que started
his career in finance in Washington, District of Columbia,
United States of America with The World Bank, over a period
of 10 years. His last posting was senior investment officer in
the capital markets department of the International Finance
Corporation, The World Bank’s private investment arm. He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Freeman
Financial Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 279), a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Robert James laia Il, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in June 2010. Mr. laia |l
is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
and a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Board. He holds a Bachelor of Arts from
Central Connecticut State University in the United States of
America and a Master degree in Real Estate from the University
of Hong Kong. He has over 11 years’ experience in the real
estate and equities market and lived and worked in Asia for
over 20 years, primarily in Seoul and Hong Kong. In addition
to extensive experience in private equity real estate, he also
traded Asian equities at Samsung Securities in Seoul and
Societe Generale in New York. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of Tack Fiori International Group Limited
(Stock Code: 928), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

EFREREEARGH

AIZT¥mMERME  ZARHES
TTILE - BREEX YWELERE
AR7E o MAREE LB B
fE - TIRE  ERERMIRERTT
EE) c EHIETEZAI - B
BERZEBMETIE12F - Queld L
CEFBRINEHST M R RE
BB &R EERIRITIER
10F - Bz E—RRBRUABHE®
BARI(HRRITTIEBILAKRE#
B)EAMGHEFTEMRE - 1%
WAEBKHER EMARRESE
TRRA R AR (RO - 279) 2
B IEHITES ©

Robert James laia l1%4 @ IR F
M RZE—TFENAEEZHFE
BBIIEHNITESE ° laia IEER
EXSRFLTESEIR  ULES
SEZZESNTMNEESKE -
% 5 A % & Central Connecticut
State University X 2+ 27 & FHE
REEMEBEITZ246 - BFREH
EXBAMBSFERBEAITRE
B WRIEM(EZEREBELEE)
EBERIVER20F - BRALER
MEHRBLELRIN  BHHERE
M-E2FANANEREERITE
FEoMES - HEABMIAER
MARHERBEEER AR (IR
R5% 1 928) 2B FEHITESE -



Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Hung Cho Sing, aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in January 2013. Mr. Hung
is also a member of the audit committee and the remuneration
committee of the Board. He has over 30 years of experience in
the film distribution industry and founded Delon International
Film Corporation in 1970. Mr. Hung has been the chairman
of Hong Kong, Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the chairman
of Hong Kong Film Awards Association Limited from 1993 to
1995. Mr. Hung was appointed by the HKSAR Government
as a member of the Hong Kong Film Development Council
from 2007 to 31 March 2013. Mr. Hung was also appointed
as a director of the China Film Association since 2009. Mr.
Hung is also a member of HKSAR Election Committee and a
vice-chairman of the Cultural Profession Committee of the
Guangdong, Hong Kong and Macau Cooperation Promotion
Council. Mr. Hung was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) by the HKSAR Government in 2005 in recognition of
his contribution to the Hong Kong Film industry. Recently,
he has been appointed by the HKSAR as a member of the
Working Group on Manufacturing Industries, Innovative
Technology, and Cultural and Creative Industries under the
Economic Development Commission on an ad personam basis
for a term of two years with effect from 17 January 2013.
Currently, Mr. Hung is an independent non-executive director
of China Star Entertainment Limited (stock code: 326), a non-
executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324) and
an independent non-executive director of Freeman Financial
Corporation Limited (stock code: 279), which are companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Oi Ling, Maria Olimpia, aged 69, is the founder
of the Group. Ms. Chan was the chairman of the Company up
to 7 April 2008. After resignation from the Board, Ms. Chan
remains a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company so
as to facilitate her to give advice and pass on her valuable
experience in the manufacturing and sales of goods operations.
Ms. Chan has over 40 years’ experience in the industry of
manufacturing and sale of accessories for photographic
products.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER
The Board considers that good corporate governance practices FECRAEANNBZRITDESSE

of the Company are crucial to the smooth and effective EHH YR EE 2 e A A B R
operation of the Group and safeguarding the interests of the AED - WAl {RE A% & H A pEE
shareholders and other stakeholders. The Company has applied BAEAZFNHZ REBE_—_ZT—=

the principles complied with the code provisions which set out =A=+—BIEE x/p\aﬂgﬁg
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) BAEAEEBMAERTIAAER AT E

contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of & EmBA(T EmiRE) DMEE+rm
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ¥ E s m~ra (=8 )z
“Listing Rules”) during the year ended 31 March 2013, except SFRME Z RAl - TPt 2 &

for certain deviations as explained below. T IRERIE BRI ©

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg

The Board of the Company currently comprised nine directors, ARnEEelFENEESH
including five Executive Directors and four Independent Non- K BIERAEZHRTES UL IS

executive Directors (“INEDs"). The brief biographical details EHTEE([BIIERTEE )
of the directors are set out in the Profile of Directors and WK c EEEFEH N AERE2

Senior Management on pages 21 to 25 of this annual report. FENECEENSEETEAER
The Board has established three Board Committees, namely NeoEBEE@eDR T =-HEEEE
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination @ DRABSKEES FWES
Committee. The Board meets regularly to discuss overall @NRIEREE®  EESTHIRT
strategy and review the financial and operating performance of % S EREEERS - Wi AE
the Group. Attendance of operational Board Meetings and/or By EREERIE HE_Z
full Board Meetings and the meetings of full Board Committees —=F=A=+—HIFE ' ¥7%
for the year ended 31 March 2013 is set out below: EFeexlk drlEEeen
keBESZBEERIHFEXY
FIEAT
No. of meetings attended/held
e/ BHEERAH
Board Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination

Meeting Committee Committee Committee

Ex® ENZEE FMZREE REZEE

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam (Chairman) Peter Temple Whitelamt 4(#/) 38/38 - - -
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (Vianaging Director) ENETE(EERLE) 53/53 - - -
Mr. Eddie Woo R 3137 - - -
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip e s 52/53 - - -
Mr. Lau King Hang EE D 43/43 - - -
Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen RAGEET

(resigned on 31 December 2012) (RZZ——E+-A=1—REF) 19723 - - -
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng (Deputy-Chairman) i Ri&iB+(&/% &)

(resigned on 14 Novernber 2012) (A=F——fF+—A+mAET) 6/10 - - -
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ERE

B

No. of meetings attended/held

wE

L/ BHEERRY
Board Audit Remuneraton  Nomination
Meeting Committee Committee Committee
Exe ENZEE ¥MZEE REZES
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Frank H. Miu™" BREE™ 37/38 W), 10 n
Dr. Agustin V. Que™" Agustin V. Quef& ™" 3437 W2y, n n
Mr. Robert James laia II"*"® Robert James laia 1% 4 #'@ 38/38 2 /1 17
Mr. Hung Cho Sing ™ iyt
(appointed on 22 January 2013) (M=B—=F—-A-t_HEZF) 5/5 - - -
Dr. Chien, Yung Nelly" BARL
(resigned on 14 November 2012) (RZZ——F+—ATHAETE) 2 - -
* Members of Audit Committee * EZEZEEKE
# Members of Remuneration Committee # FMEEEKE
A Members of Nomination Committee A REZEGKE
+ Chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee + EnEZEeLTHNEESER
@ Chairman of Nomination Committee @ REEESER

The Board determines the overall strategies, monitors and
controls operating and financial performance, analyses and
formulates strategies to manage risks in pursuit of the Group's
strategic objectives. The Board also decides on matters
such as annual and interim results, dividend policy, director
appointments, and significant changes in accounting policy,
material contracts and major investments. The Board has
delegated the authority and responsibility of overseeing the
Group’s day-to-day operations to management executives.

The Company confirmed it has received from each of its INEDs
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers them to
be independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the year, Mr. Peter
Temple Whitelam acted as the Company’s Chairman while the
role of Chief Executive Officer was performed by Mr. Lo Yuen
Wa Peter, the Managing Director of the Company.

EEOE T EERE  BERNET
2BEBNPTKRR M AEHEE
BREMRRE  WEBAERZ R
B2 - BE@REEFRFEE
HBRBBER - EFRMT - 25K
REREH  BEAEHNREERSE
ZEF EEECRBREELEER
BEKEBEIENANREETHRTE
BITHAE °
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has delegated the following duties and responsibilities
in respect of the corporate governance functions of the
Company to the Executive Committee:

1. to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to
the Board;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management of the
Company;

3. toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Company; and

5. to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Executive
Committee has performed the corporate governance duties in
accordance with its terms of reference.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently has four INEDs, all holding appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

Code Provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for specific term, subject to re-election.
The INEDs of the Company are not appointed for specific term
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meetings of the Company. Pursuant to the
Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-Laws, each director shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years at the annual general meeting. This means that the term
of appointment of the directors, including INEDs, cannot exceed
three years. As such, the Company considers that sufficient
measures have been taken to ensure that the Company’s
corporate governance is no less exacting than those in the Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is principally responsible for reviewing
and supervising the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal control system and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board of the Company. The Audit
Committee comprises four INEDs of the Company. The revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with the terms set out in the relevant section of the Code. No
changes were made to the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee during the year.

During the year, two meetings have been held by the Audit
Committee to approve the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012 and to review interim
financial statements (including accounting policies and
practices adopted) of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2012, and recommended such financial statements
to the Board for approval. On 28 June 2013 (the date of this
annual report), the Audit Committee met to review the final
financial statements and other reports for the year ended 31
March 2013 and discuss any significant audit matters with
the Company’s external auditor and the senior management
before recommending them to the Board for consideration and
approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is principally responsible
for formulating the Group’s policy and structure for all
remunerations of the directors and senior management
and providing advice and recommendations to the Board
of the Company. In addition, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme to provide incentives and rewards to
eligible participants. The Remuneration Committee comprises
four INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are consistent with the terms set out
in the relevant section of the Code. During the year ended 31
March 2013, one meeting has been held by the Remuneration
Committee. The Remuneration Committee has discussed and
reviewed the remuneration packages for all executive Directors
and senior management, the Company’s share option scheme
and the revised terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee. No changes were made to the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee during the year.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board composition and identifying and nominating
candidates for appointment to the Board such that they have
the relevant skills, qualification, knowledge and experience.
The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs of
the Company. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are consistent with the terms set out in the relevant
section of the Code. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee. No changes were made to the terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee during the year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all directors, all directors confirm that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2013.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the remuneration paid and
payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for audit services and
non-audit services, (including acted as reporting accountant for
disposal of subsidiaries) rendered to the Group amounted to
HK$2,205,000 and HK$455,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges that they are responsible for the
preparation of the Company’s financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
as of 31 March 2013 and of the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and for ensuring
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

The directors are responsible for ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records of the Company and taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities. The reporting responsibilities of the
external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 45.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the overall responsibilities for the Group’s
internal control system and has adopted a set of internal
control procedures to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, minimize the exposure to risks, to safeguard assets
and to ensure the quality of internal and external reporting and
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. The Board also
considered that the resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function were adequate.

The Company retained a financial adviser to advise the Board
on most of the aspects of statutory report and compliance
on a regular basis. Moreover, the Company has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system over the
major business segments on payment procedures and the
level of segregation of duties of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2013. Furthermore, the Company together
with an appointed financial adviser has reviewed the Group’s
investment portfolio on a monthly basis. There is no significant
area of concern which may suggest material deficiencies in the
effectiveness of Group’s internal control system.

The Board also reviews the Company’s interim and annual
report and resolves any discrepancies encountered during
the audit including the need to introduce additional internal
controls.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors have complied with the code provision in relation
to continuous professional development. This has involved
various forms of activities including attending a presentation
given by an external professional party in respect of the new
regime on disclosure, reading materials relevant to corporate
governance and other regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Company modernized an induction
policy for the new member of the board of the Company. On
appointment, the new member received an induction which
included meetings with the members of the board of the
Company, introducing the Group's business segments in which
the Group operates, the roles and responsibilities as a director
of the Company and the requirements under the Listing Rules
in respect of the code provision in relation to continuous
professional development.

The Company regularly updates Directors on the developments
in respect of the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory
requirements, to enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, the Company’s Bye-Laws, which has been
reviewed and updated by independent professional parties,
was amended and restated in order to cope with the
amendments of the Listing Rules and certain changes to the
Companies Act up to April 2012. The adoption of the amended
and restated Bye-Laws was approved by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting on 25 September
2012.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

The right and procedures to convene a general meeting
and to demand a poll on resolutions at general meetings by
shareholders of the Company are set out in the Company’s
amended and restated Bye-Laws headed “General Meetings”,
“Notice Of General Meetings”, “Proceedings At General
Meetings” and “Voting”. Shareholders may at any time
send their enquiries to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post at the principal office of the
Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a shareholders communication policy to set
out the Company’s procedures in providing shareholders and
investors in respect of the information about the Company.

The Company uses various communication methods to
ensure its Shareholders are kept well informed. These include
publication of annual report, various notices, announcements
and circulars. The shareholders’ meeting also provides a useful
channel for shareholders to communicate directly with the
Board at which the directors are available to answer questions
relating to the Company’s affairs. The right to demand
voting by poll is communicated to the shareholders by way
of circulars. Resolutions are proposed at each shareholder’s
meeting on each substantially separate issue, including the
election of individual directors.

The latest information in respect of the Company’s
information, including the terms of reference of all
committees, the constitutional documents, the list of directors
and their role and function, are set out in the Company’s
website.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

>
m
i
B
.
I

BEXH

FA - ABIEEATERLEN
ZARNEIAEIMEA - BEERERT &
5 EAYEEHE—_ZE——FNN
RAAElEz EmBRBHEET RET AT
FEE N E——FhLA-T+H
B ARRRREAKREBFRZ
fdmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂmﬂﬁ
4B -

iR R AE R

ARABRRBRAKRRAE MABR
R LERPRABRETRE

IREVERI LIZF BN ARE 2
CHEIPEN] PANCIE B RN & PN
gl ITRRERRg@EE] TRRX
SBR[ RERRIEHA -
BRRAIBERAESESREEN M
SHNGEREBTEARNAEIRBMRE
B WHARARMER -

BERRZBE

AR TS SIERRBARE - U
5|2 7 M AR R 248 # 1R E A R
ARERZ R -

ARRRMAERRBBTE - BERR
RESEmENR  BETIBFR -
ZINBE  RERBK - RAE
MEHBERZRE  EEREES
FEERN  MEFHNE LRI
BEAARREHBZEE - BERASE
BB ERBERURETARRZ
BN - RERRERREG L g%
BEAERFA(BREERESZE

E) P RIIRERES ©

BRARRINRINER  BREIN
FEHREZEg s BESE  BFEX
- UANERZE - A0 NBEEN
B 9EFENARAEL -



Directors’ Report

The directors are pleased to present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is
principally engaged in trading of investments. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the business of manufacturing
solar grade polycrystalline silicon in Taiwan, investment and
trading of securities, provision of finance, property investment
and manufacturing and sale of accessories for photographic
products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2013 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 47 and 48.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2013.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and movements
in share options during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of changes in the Group's investment properties and
property, plant and equipment during the year are set out
in notes 18 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set
out in section headed “Particulars of Investment Properties” on
page 159.
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Directors’ Report

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company's reserve was as follows:

EFEHE

RRQTZ A Dk
RAa 2 EEET
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F

HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR

Contributed surplus EHAR
Accumulated losses 2itE1iE

72,201 72,201
(3,283,022) (1,031,466)

(3,210,821) (959,265)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) the company is, or would after the payment be, unable to
pay its liabilities as they become due; or
(b) the realisable value of the Company would thereby be less

than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

R
N

REABRE-NN—FRADE(4
(ER]) » NRBZEH BRI H
K o AW A NIIERT - RAR]
PMEEIRSORTRE - R EHR
FREAEE DK -

(a) ZARERESRN I BEEE
BEIHAG L

(b) ARR]Z A BB EEANE LM
I Bk 2 480 -

PR



Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

(Chairman)
(Managing Director)

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter

Mr. Eddie Woo

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip
Mr. Lau King Hang

Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen (resigned on 31 December 2012)

Non-executive Director:

Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng (Deputy-Chairman) (resigned on
14 November 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Frank H. Miu

Dr. Agustin V. Que
Mr. Robert James laia |l
Mr. Hung Cho Sing (appointed on 22 January 2013)

Dr. Chien, Yung Nelly (resigned on 14 November 2012)

Pursuant to the Clause 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s Bye-
Laws, Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam, Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter, Mr.
Suen Yick Lun Philip, Mr. Lau King Hang and Mr. Hung Cho
Sing shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-Laws.
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Directors’ Report

SERVICE AGREEMENT

On 1 August 2011, the Company entered into a service
agreement with Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen (“Dr. Wu") (the “Service
Agreement”), pursuant to which Dr. Wu is employed by the
Company in the capacity of an executive Director. The Service
Agreement takes effect on 4 January 2012 until 1 August
2016, unless is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms
of the Service Agreement. The Service Agreement is terminated
upon Dr. Wu resigned as an executive Director with effect from
31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly and
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as adopted by the Company,
were as follows:
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Interests in the Company REQ A Z

Approximate

Deemed percentage of

interests in issued share

number of capital of the

shares Company

Number of RERA PR DT

Name of director Capacity Shares 'y Total ERTRA

EEpE &6 ROEE ROEE @3 BRESL

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam Beneficial Owner 78,125 - 78,125 0.00%
Peter Temple Whitelam2t 4 ERBAA

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter Beneficial Owner 156,250 625,000 781,250 0.04%
EERE EGHAA

Mr. Eddie Woo Beneficial Owner - 7,187,500 7,187,500 0.39%
THRR LT EnfBA
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Directors’ Report

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, none of the
directors, chief executives nor their associates had any interests
or short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations that
were required in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

In the light of the expansion plan of the solar grade
polycrystalline silicon business, in order to incentivise
and reward the employees of Sun Materials, an indirect
subsidiary of the Company, the executives of the Group, as
well as the Group’s consultants and strategic partners, the
Company entered into option deeds on 29 August 2011
with Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (“Mr. Lo"), Dr. Wu, Mr. Eddie
Woo (“Mr. Woo"”) and Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng (“Dr.
Chuang”) (the “Grantees”), with numbers of share options
granted of 10,000,000 new shares, 450,000,000 new
shares, 115,000,000 new shares and 75,000,000 new shares
respectively on 11 January 2012. Such shares options granted
are adjusted to 625,000 new shares, 28,125,000 new shares,
7,187,500 new shares and 4,687,500 new shares respectively
upon capital reorganisation effected on 26 April 2012.

The consideration payable by each of the Grantees for the
grant of share options is HK$1.00. The exercise price of the
share options is adjusted from HK$0.4 per share to HK$6.4 per
share upon capital reorganisation effected on 26 April 2012.
Further details of the adjusted number and exercise price of the
share options granted are set out in the announcement dated
25 April 2012.
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Directors’ Report

The share options are vested upon the following dates:

On the date which is 12 months
after the grant of the share
options

25% of the share options
granted

A further 35% of the
share options granted

On the date which is 24 months
after the grant of the share
options

On the date which is 36 months
after the grant of the share
options

The remaining 40%
of the share options
granted

The share options which have vested shall be exercisable until
the expiry of four years from the date of grant of share options.

During the year, Mr. Lo and Mr. Woo were vested with 156,250
shares options and 1,796,875 share options respectively on
11 January 2013, and such share options have not yet been
exercised up to date of this report. Dr. Wu, who resigned as
an executive Director of the Company on 31 December 2012,
were vested with 7,031,250 shares options on 11 January
2013 because Dr. Wu remains as the chairman, director,
chief executive officer and chief technology officer of Sun
Materials. The share options granted to Dr. Chuang were lapsed
automatically upon resignation as a non-executive Director of
the Company from 14 November 2012.

Save as disclosed above and in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements headed “Share-Based Payments”, at no
time during the year was the Company or any its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the directors, or their spouses or children under the age of
eighteen, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

EFEHE

FERCER T 5 B HIERE

RIEEERER DROERE
1218 A& B3 Z25%

R TERER DRDERE
24 A EH < F9N35%

PRI ERER DREDERE
36fE AEH ZERT40%

CiREcBIE] TITE - EER
BB A HE B AR ST U fEim A L

RERN > ZEERBAEERZ
T—=ZF—A+—HORIER
156,250 {7 B A% # 2. 1,796,875 15
Bk BHEAREBH %%
BRESRETE RELZ(R=
TE——F+-A=1+t—HEEX
NEMITEE )R - —=F—~H
+— B &% 7,031,250 B A% A&
AARBEMALBREZERF
BE  THRARLEITRE - %T
HELBREAEE _Z——F
+— A+ WA EETARRIENTT
EERBERM -

B £ X M ARE B R @R M FE35 [ ik
AR —EWEEI  NAAK
HAFAT 8 2 R A S R AT Pl 461
BRI AR R BUEARBIES
A REIE AR R RS B At )5 A
BRMAEHES (BHEESR)ME
@ BWEERESSHARMBESCR
mt \BRFEREEEARAIRBEAR
Al R - KERFRITEME
Az SRR o



Directors’ Report

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2013, other than the interests of the directors
and chief executives of the Company as disclosed above,
shareholders who had interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company of 5% or more which fell
to be disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares — long

EFEHE

FERR

RZZE—=F=A=+—8 KL
N EIARNBNEETREBITH
ANB ZHEZIN - AR B 48
BRI P HEA 5% A E 2 EEs el
KB MBI E 5 R EEEH E XV
HBMANFIHEE - KSR AR
AR IEFEF M HE KA E 3361517
BEZERMAZERENT

R RAEBB 17 2 s —17

positions: B
Approximate
percentage of
Deemed issued share
interests in capital of the
Number of number of Company
ordinary shares R NG
Name of Shareholder sharesheld  REREERR Total Capacity ERITRA
BRERE g EREE ZBRGEHE &t 5 S d
Mr. Andrew Liu 200,000,000  2,000,000,000  2,200,000,000 Beneficial owner 119.47%
BEmisE ExBEA
SPARX Asia Capital 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Investment manager 105.89%
Management Limited REKE
SPARX Emerging Opportunities 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Beneficial owner 105.89%
Fund SPC EnBkAA
Mr. Tung Sun Tat Clement 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Interest of a controlled 105.89%
EHERSE corporation
R EE RS
Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Trustee 105.89%
Bzt XA
VMS Investment Group Limited 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Interest of a controlled 105.89%
corporation
R EE S
STI Wealth Management 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Interest of a controlled 105.89%
(Cayman) Limited corporation
R E RS
VMS Private Investment 200,000,000  1,750,000,000  1,950,000,000 Beneficial owner 105.89%
Partners Il Limited BELBAA
Cititrust (Cayman) Limited - 250,000,000 250,000,000 Interest of a controlled 13.58%

corporation
SR AR R
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EFEHE

Approximate
percentage of
Deemed issued share
interests in capital of the
Number of number of Company
ordinary shares FrE A AT
Name of Shareholder sharesheld  REREERR Total Capacity ERITRA
RREM g ERE R ZRIEE &3t 56 BAEDL
Summit Holdings Limited - 250,000,000 250,000,000 Interest of a controlled 13.58%
corporation
RYEHAE R
Spot On Services Limited - 250,000,000 250,000,000 Beneficial owner 13.58%
BHERERAR BERBEBA
Hu Liang Ming Raymond - 250,000,000 250,000,000 Beneficial owner 13.58%
EnlBA
Willie International Holdings Limited 150,408,000 - 150,408,000 Interest of a controlled 8.17%
BRI ERAR A _ corporation
R EEER
Willie Resources Incorporated 150,408,000 - 150,408,000 Interest of a controlled 8.17%
corporation
R EEER
Rawcdliffe International Limited 150,408,000 - 150,408,000 Interest of a controlled 8.17%
corporation
RPEH A E R
Nice Hill International Limited 150,408,000 - 150,408,000 Interest of a controlled 8.17%
corporation
R EEER
Pearl Decade Limited 150,408,000 - 150,408,000 Beneficial owner 8.17%
ERBAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company Br EXHEEIN  RZE—=F=

had not been notified by any person (other than the directors
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Report

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES

On 27 June 2012, 57,084,736 ordinary shares were issued at
a price of HK$0.24 per placing share pursuant to the placing
agreement entered into on 19 June 2012. On 15 November
2012, 68,501,684 ordinary shares were issued at a price of
HK$0.17 per placing share pursuant to the placing agreement
entered into on 8 November 2012. On 28 February 2013,
306,910,020 ordinary shares were issued at a price of HK$0.1
per placing share pursuant to the placing agreement entered
into on 22 February 2013.

Save as disclosed herein and note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s shares during the year ended 31 March 2013.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2013, the percentages of the
Group’s turnover attributable to its largest customer and five
largest customers were 13.5% and 35.4% respectively. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 70.2% of
the Group’s total purchases and the amount of purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was approximately
23.6% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any
of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.
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Directors’ Report

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Saved as disclosed in note 40(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company was not aware of any other related
party transactions as set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statement constitute a connected transaction of the
Group, nor are there any connected transactions that shall
be disclosed in this annual report under the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, none of the
Directors or the management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates are considered to have interests
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as
defined in the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 March 2013.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has made charitable donations
amounting to HK$61,150 (2012: HK$2,497,200).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring subsequent to year ended

31 March 2013 are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report EFEEE

AUDITORS % ELEm

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for ANAIBE - E—=FE8K T ——
the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 were audited by F=A=+—HILEEZGEAH®&
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, while for the year ended 31 March MEBRELE « BHE[EH LEHEIITE
2011 was audited by Mazars CPA Limited. A resolution will be %o mEE—_E——F=/f=+—
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the HIFFEEZGAMBERENRIES
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as SHMELRAAR QTEZ o R
auditor of the Company. ZBIREEANFTEERERE X
G DERET) « MEMR 5T
TTRANR R ZAZEE -

On behalf of the Board REXEED

Peter Temple Whitelam FE

Chairman Peter Temple Whitelam
Hong Kong, 28 June 2013 HE —E—=F,xA=-1+/\RB

ENEEEERAT %2013



Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED
SHERERRATF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Mascotte Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 47 to 155, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Except for the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence as explained below, we conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. Because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs,
however, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2013 are an intangible asset and certain
property, plant and equipment (collectively referred to as
the “Assets”) with carrying amounts of HK$707,168,000
(2012: HK$2,434,796,000) and HK$130,085,000 (2012:
HK$242,342,000) respectively, which were principally acquired
by the Group through acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Sun Mass Energy Limited (“Sun Mass"”) by two tranches
of 50.1% and 49.9% on 15 July 2011 and 4 January 2012,
respectively, during the year ended 31 March 2012. The
intangible asset represents technology for manufacturing
of solar grade polycrystalline silicon further explained in
note 19 to the consolidated financial statements (the “Core
Technology”) and property, plant and equipment represents
factory premises and machinery purchased for production of
solar grade polycrystalline silicon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

During the year, an impairment loss of HK$1,935,391,000
(2012: nil) has been recognised in respect of the Assets. As
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company determined the recoverable
amount of the Assets based on value in use calculations which
involve management'’s estimations including but not limited to
commencement of commercial production in the second half of
2013. Whether the Assets attributable to the Core Technology
are able to generate future economic benefits to the Group is
dependent on the successful launch of commercial production
of solar grade polycrystalline silicon. As Sun Mass repeatedly
delayed the commencement of commercial production, and
it has been unable to commence commercial production as at
the date of issuance of these consolidated financial statements,
we are unable to determine whether the Core Technology
will generate sufficient future economic benefits to the
Group to support the total carrying amounts of the Assets of
HK$837,253,000 (2012: HK$2,677,138,000); and whether the
impairment losses of HK$1,935,391,000 (2012: nil) recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2013 are free from material
misstatement. Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of the
Assets and impairment losses would affect the net assets of the
Group as at 31 March 2013 and 2012 and the losses for the
years then ended. This caused us to disclaim our audit opinion
on the consolidated financial statements in respect of the year
ended 31 March 2012.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraphs, we have not been
able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide
a basis for an audit opinion. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 June 2013
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income Fe2EkAEER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LhE=d FHET FET
Turnover -
Sales of goods HEEMm 163,270 172,121
Cost of sales H & AR (114,194)  (136,540)
49,076 35,581
Investment income KEWA 596 30,981
Rental income Ha WA 2,590 1,373
Change in fair value of financial BN EEA ABZEE
assets at fair value through CHBEEZAVE
profit or loss & (19,843) (306,816)
32,419 (238,881)
Other income H AU A 7 5,871 3,836
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FEKIGRER Z Mt E
of manufacture of solar grade %2 EERBIEEE
polycrystalline silicon business 8 (1,935,391) -
Other gains and losses HAth 25 K &5 18 9 (592,121) (57,300)
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A A (9,148) (8,771)
Administrative expenses TERHEX (119,603) (95,221)
Other expenses HAth i 2 (41,405) (41,419)
Finance costs LN 10 (389,462)  (192,130)
Loss before tax BRBATE1E (3,048,840)  (629,886)
Income tax credit FrisBik & 11 15,654 9,096
Loss for the year FEEE 12 (3,033,186) (620,790)
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEmEA
(expense) for the year (FX%)
Exchange differences on translating MEFINEEZ
foreign operations &5 =58 17,866 (62,459)
Change in fair value of available-for- AHEERE
sale investments N EEH) (3.877) (11,132)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EREZ
investments reclassified to loss for BEEEEN
the year DEEFEBIE 3,877 11,132
17,866 (62,459)

Total comprehensive expense for FEXHBBEXARE
the year (3,015,320) (683,249)

ENEEEERAT %2013



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 March 2013

FeERZEBAERR

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E -4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
L THT BT
Loss for the year attributable to: EILFEEE
Owners of the Company KANTHEE A (3,033,486) (621,254)
Non-controlling interests FEERR = 300 464
(3,033,186) (620,790)
Total comprehensive expense for the EEFE2HEMS R
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE ¥ =N (3,015,689) (683,858)
Non-controlling interests FEERR = 369 609
(3,015,320) (683,249)
(Restated)
(i &%)
Basic and diluted loss per share BREAREEERE 16 HK$2.59787T HK$1.25%87C
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2013

2013 2012
—E—-= —E——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET AT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 17 136,298 334,819
Investment properties "EYHE 18 23,158 26,175
Intangible asset B EE 19 707,168 2,434,796
Prepaid lease payments A HERIE 20 2,856 3,514
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 - 69,868
Restricted bank deposits PR HIER1T1F K 22 5,611 5,492
Deposits paid for acquisition of WEEYZE « B Ma&1E
property, plant and equipment ZBENET & 4,803 7,671
Derivative financial instrument PTEMB T A 23 - 392,792
Rental deposits Mesle 738 633
880,632 3,275,760
Current assets REBEE
Held-for-trading investments HIEEEZIKE 24 — 154,795
Derivative financial instrument PTEBKIA 23 266,790 -
Inventories FE 25 4,762 8,446
Trade receivables fEUNE 558 26 30,016 25,750
Other receivables, deposits and HaEWRIE  5]1& K
prepayments TEfT FRIB 26 17,316 13,280
Loans and interest receivables JE U E TR % e R B 27 - 33,359
Prepaid lease payments A HEERIEA 20 701 692
Tax recoverable Al U Bl F IR - 21
Bank balances and cash IRITEEER N IR & 28 52,710 208,181
372,295 444,524
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables JERTE 5 IR 29 6,434 12,804
Other payables and accrued charges  H b fE{5kI8 N BT E 29 67,062 36,731
Borrowings =Ny 30 503,272 28,724
Tax payable FETHIR 15,460 17,174
592,228 95,433
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(EB)EEFEE (219,933) 349,091
Total assets less current liabilities EEZERAHEE 660,699 3,624,851
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
At 31 March 2013

e MBIKRAR

RZZE—=f=H=+—H

2013 2012
—_E—= —E—-—4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET AT
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible bonds & (E 5 31 77,075 1,123,127
Consideration bonds - debt component  REBES — B D 32 773,174 1,182,297
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 33 3,245 46,888
Borrowings =Ny 30 43,092 41,331
896,586 2,393,643
Net (liabilities) assets (BE)EERE (235,887) 1,231,208
Capital and reserves R #E
Share capital N 34 18,414 456,678
Reserves e (259,595) 769,605
Equity attributable to owners of RAGHEE ANEGER
the Company (241,181) 1,226,283
Non-controlling interests FEFENR FE A 5,294 4,925
Total (deficit) equity BB ER (235,887) 1,231,208

The consolidated financial statements on pages 47 to 155 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

28 June 2013 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter
EREXRE
DIRECTOR

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Attributable to owners of the Company

e

=1 3 JIES

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

KLAAREARE
Convertible ~ Investment ~ Contributed Enterprise Share Non-
Share Share ~ bonds equity  revaluation surplus Special ~ Translation Reserve ~ expansion options  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve fund reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TEERS b5ER
R&  BHEE  EEEE REEHEE QABERE  GRE  BEEE GRS BE BBEER  EMER it FERER it
HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
Thrn Thn T Tin Tn Thn Thn TEn Thn Thn Thn T Tin Thn
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b)
(Hita) (k) (H3kn)
At 1 Apr 201 WoE--EmA-A 30478 889,857 - - - 13901 23% 1,084 1,083 55 (386,160) 752,654 4316 756,970
Loss for the year 5E - - - - - - - - - - (621,254) (621,254) 464 (620,790
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations - - - - - - (62,604) - - - - (62,604) 145 (62,459)
Change i far vlue of valble-forsale TEHERE A TEES
investments - - - (113 - - - - - - - (1,13 - (1,132
Impairmentloss on avalable-forsdle  EFEEEEHELTL
investments recassfied to loss HERERESR
for the year - - - 113 - - - - - - - 113 - 113
Total comprehensire expense FERRERREE
for the year - - - - - - (62,604) - - - (621,254) (683,858) 609 (683,249)
Issue of new shares under placement  BERER{HRE
(Note 3] (st3uh) 2000 660000 - - - - - - - - S B 1)
Transacton costs attibutable to issve of -~ &/ 2 R B
shares - (35,8%9) - - - - - - - - - (35,8%9) - 35,839
Recogniton of equity componentof  EDBETER(EH7 EL
0ld Convertible Bonds g2 - - 354,601 - - - - - - - - 354,601 - 354,601
Transaction costs alocated mequity ~~ AEZERTRREHES
component of Old Convertible Bonds B2 X5 A - - (13,154) - - - - - - - - (13,154) - (13,154)
Deferred tax liabiltes on recognition of ~ BT EATWEREHEED
equity component of Old AZERIERR
Convertible Bonds - - (58,509) - - - - - - - - (58,509) - (58,509)
Release of defered fox fatliteson ~ [ERERTRREEEE
conversion of Old Convertible Bonds RELRERE - - 1,250 - - - - - - - - 1,50 - 1,250
Conversion of Old Convertble Bonds ~ BHEATERES
(Note 34¢) (M 6,200 PINVE] (7,580) - - - - - - - - 07193 - 07193
Recognition of equity-settled share-based
payment (Note 35) (H35) - - - - - - - - - 6,345 - 6,345 - 6,345
At31 March 2012 WZF-2£=R=1-A 456,678 1,538,191 276,608 - = 13901 (60,248) 1,084 1,083 6400 (1007414 1206283 4925 1,231,208
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2013

Attributable to owners of the Company

FaHREER

E_E—=F=A=+—HILFE

KLAAREARE
Convertible ~ Investment ~ Contributed Enterprise Share Non-
Share Share ~ bonds equity  revaluation surplus Special ~ Translation Reserve ~ expansion options  Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve fund reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
ThEES AR

Br BEEE  REER REEGOR AABBRE  GARE  AEER
HKSOOD  HKSOD KGO0 HKSOD  KKSOO0  HKSOD  HKSOOO
Tan - TAR AT AT AT AT AT

fiftge

BE RREGRE  EHER L. it

HK 000 HK$'000 HK'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T it T Tn TEL L T

(Note a) (Note b) (Note b)
(Kiita) (&) (Fsz)

Loss for the year - - - - - - - - - - (3,033486)  (3,033,486) 300 (3,033,186)
Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations - - - - - - 11,19 - - - - 17797 69 17,866
Change i fair value of available-or-sale

investments - - - (387) - - - - - - - (387) - (387)
Impaiment loss on avalable-forsale  EFSEEEEERZAR

nvestments reclassfied to loss i3 B

for the year - - - 387 - - - - - - - 387 = 381
Total comprehensire expense FEEAERREE

for the year - - - - - - 11,797 - - - (3,033486)  (3,015,689) 369 (3,015320)
Capital reorganisation (Note 34e) RrEA(e) (453,824) - - - 45384 - - - - - - - - -
Issue for new shares under placement ~ BEREE( IR

(Note 347) (A4 435 51712 - - - - - - - - - 56,037 - 56,037
Conversion of New ConvertibleBonds ~ EfE ik

(Note 34g) (F349) 10,950 21,609 (219,000) - - - - - - - - 13,559 - 13,559
Release of deferred tax liabities on ]

conversion of New Convertible Bonds i

(Note 33) - - a9 - - - - - - - - 479 - a9
Release of deferred tax labilities upon i

extinguishment of Old Convertile 3l H

Bonds (Note 33) - - 3167 - - - - - - - - 31677 - 31671
Transfer to accumulated osses upon iHE 5

extinguishment of Old ZBR

Convertible Bonds - - (305,182) - - - - - - - 305,182 - - -
Deferred ta liabiltes on recognition o~ EZH AR EHERTS

equity component of New JRERERR

Convertible Bonds - - (3103) - - - - - - - - (3,103) - (3,103)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share — TEBREER ARG

options (Note 34h) (F33un) 285 9903 - - - - - - - (4366) - 5802 - 580
Transacton costs attributable toissve — ZRHEERFAE

of shares - 22%3) - - - - - - - - - (2233) - 223)
Recogniton of equity components of  EZFTRREFELDH

New Convertible Bonds - - 1M66m - - - - - - - - 1M66m - 1416672
Recognition of equity-setted share-based M ER:

payment (Note 35) - - - - - - - - - 9315 - 9315 - 9315
Transferred to set off accumulated losses

(Note ¢ - - - - (453.824) - - - - - 453,824 - - -

At31 March 2013 18414 1819182 1,198,151 - - 13,901 (42.451) 1,084 1,083 31349 (328189) (21,181 5294 (235,887)

Notes: PRE -

(a)  The special reserve represented the difference between the nominal amount of the share (a) HRFEERARARERITRAZEEERE
capital issued by the Company and the aggregate nominal value of the share capital of the —hANEFNARASEEHAEMYIE B
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation on 5 September 1997 ANRIZBAEBRENE ZE5 -

(b)  Reserve fund and enterprise expansion reserve are reserves required by the relevant laws in by REESRLERERRHEEDAITNRFEA
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") applicable to a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC RAEMB(THE ) —KHE R RR BERA
for enterprise development purposes. ZHRBEVRERTEEBME 2 HE -

() Pursuant to a special general meeting held on 25 April 2012, the directors of the Company (© WBEZE—-FHAZTRARTZRIE

authorized to credit the contributed surplus of HK$453,824,000 arising from the capital
reorganisation to set off the accumulated losses of the Company during the year ended 31
March 2013.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 March 2013

FeaRKRER

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE FHET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REXK
Loss before tax B A A E 18 (3,048,840) (629,886)
Adjustments for: EVEL LA T EE
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BENMEEZ
equipment e 31,153 21,265
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 81 78 & 5K 18 5% 701 692
Allowance for inventory obsolescence  [REFS#E 617 1,000
Allowance for doubtful debts on trade  JEUE 5 318 R ER
receivables, net B ¥R 3,711 562
Share-based payment expense AR < A =2 29,315 6,345
Loss on early redemptions of REELRREESFZ
consideration bonds E518 161,237 29,698
Finance costs B ISR AR 389,462 192,130
Bank interest income RITH B WA (78) (91)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant  HEWE - BE K&
and equipment 2 B8R 285 53
Fair value loss (gain) on investment KEMENFEERE
properties (Uhz) 2,848 (3,405)
Interest income from loans receivable FEU BT 2 F B A (555) (26,396)
Dividend income f& B A (41) (4,585)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMRB AR 2 W 37 (1,025) -
Reversal for allowance for doubtful JEWE R 2 IR G
debts on loans receivable #[E - (1,058)
Impairment loss on property, plant MxE - BENEELZ
and equipment VEREYEi=! 190,416 -
Impairment loss on intangible asset B EE 2 BEEE 1,744,975 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEERE ZRE
investments B8 3,877 11,132
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHBERE Y
investments g (2,009) -
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTERMBIAEZRAY
instrument BEE 126,002 16,961
Loss on alteration of terms of B A AR E S KR
convertible bonds ol %= 299,448 -
Operating cash flows before movements &:EE& & & &p] 2 K&
in working capital WEME (68,501)  (385,583)
Decrease in loans and interest JE W B R R FIBOR A
receivables 30,000 1,058
Decrease in financial assets at fair value 1A F{EZH AEZR
through profit or loss MBEERD 154,795 391,210
Decrease in inventories FERL 3,110 2,668
(Increase) decrease in trade receivables JEUWE 5 18 (3&H0) R 4> (7,977) 10,513
(Increase) decrease in other receivables, HEWHIE - & &
deposits and prepayments TEAT IR (38 10 ) Rk 4 (4,342) 42,326
(Decrease) increase in trade payables JERTE SRR A )N (6,370) 1,215
(Decrease) increase in other payables H b B 5RIB &
and accrued charges FERTE A R4 )8 (1,490) 9,636
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2013

2013 2012

—E—= —E——%F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 FET AT

Net cash from operations KRS 7 IR SRR 99,225 73,043

Interest received from loans receivable JEWE 7 2 W F| 2 3,914 24,015

Dividend received from listed investments &% & 2 &2 Uap% 2 41 4,585

Tax (paid) refunded (B RERIE (751) 437
NET CASH FROM OPERATING REXBMEBZREFH

ACTIVITIES 102,429 102,080

INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEXK

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant HE&EYE « KB M&RE
and equipment FR1SRIA 95 33

Cash outflows from disposal of subsidiaries HEWMB AT 2R E R 37 (1,249) -~
Proceeds from disposal of available-for- HER[HHERE

sale investments FT1S3KIR 68,000 -
Purchase of property, plant and NEYME - BENM&RE

equipment (73,314) (127,752)
Interest received 2 Y F B 78 91
Deposit paid for acquisition of property, WHEME - &= M &RE

plant and equipment WARNNE: & - (4,040)
Acquisition of assets through PRl AN NG]

acquisition of a subsidiary WEEE E 36 - (1,828,522)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REXBIARSFH

ACTIVITIES (6,390) (1,960,190)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEE

Interest paid on borrowings, convertible & - AI#RKE S kX

bonds and consideration bonds BEAZOMNFE (122,091) (38,180)
Proceeds on exercise of share options  1T{FBEMRIEFTEFIE 5,822 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BT FTE A 56,037 880,000
Shares issue expense RIDETHR (2,233) (35,840)
Repayment of borrowings EBNEE (51,368)  (103,233)
New borrowings raised FRESZHERERR 615,000 50,000
Proceeds from issue of convertible BTN EASE A

bonds - 1,450,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of Z{TRI B XEHE(L 2

convertible bonds TS AN - (53,789)
Repayment of consideration bonds BNREES (753,000) (100,000)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEEK(FFA)RE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES ReFHE (251,833) 2,048,958
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH HB&E&REZRHEKRSLEEMN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R B hn 358 (155,794) 190,848
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FHzHREREERS

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR IHH 208,181 16,805
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE HMEERESETE

RATE CHANGES 323 528

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT H&A2ELSRZEES
END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED HE  BRITERK
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH B

52,710 208,181

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the business of manufacture and sale of solar
grade polycrystalline silicon in Taiwan, which has not yet
commenced business as at 31 March 2013, investment and
trading of securities, provision of finance, property investment
and manufacturing and sale of accessories for photographic
products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given due and careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light of
the Group’s net current liabilities and net liabilities position of
HK$219,933,000 and HK$235,887,000, respectively, as at 31
March 2013. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis as the Company has completed to issue
rights share on 20 May 2013 and received net proceeds of
approximately HK$494,876,000, details of which are set out in
note 43; and the Group has currently available and unutilised
facilities of HK$11,000,000 from a revolving loan facility of
HK$500,000,000 up to 21 November 2014. The directors of
the Company believe that the Group has sufficient funds to
finance its current working capital requirements in the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied the following

amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of

Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets; and

Financial instruments: Disclosures
- Transfer of financial assets

Amendments to HKFRS 7

The adoption of the above amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 cycle!

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities’

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Mandatory effective date
of HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

Consolidated financial statements,
joint arrangements and
disclosure of interests in other
entities: Transition guidance’

Amendments to
HKFRS 10,HKFRS 11
and HKFRS 12
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities*

HKFRS 12, and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

Amendments to HKAS 1

HKAS 19 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011)

HKAS 28 (Revised 2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32

Amendments to HKAS 36

HK(IFRIC) - INT 20

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21

Financial instruments?

Consolidated financial
statements’

Joint arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in other
entities’

Fair value measurement’

Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income?

Employee benefits'
Separate financial statements'
Investments in associates and joint

ventures’

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities*

Recoverable amount disclosures
for non-financial assets*

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine'

Levies*
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income” introduce new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income. Under the amendments
to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as a 'statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
items of other comprehensive income to be grouped into two
categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required
to be allocated on the same basis - the amendments do not
change the option to present items of other comprehensive
income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group for
annual period beginning on 1 April 2013. The presentation
of items of other comprehensive income will be modified
accordingly when the amendments are applied in the future
accounting periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Cont’d)

New and revised standards on consolidation and disclosures

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation —
Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new definition
of control that contains three elements: (a) power over an
investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s
returns. Extensive guidance has been added in HKFRS 10 to
deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In
general, the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more
extensive than those in the current standards.

HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 are effective for annual periods
beginning 1 April 2013. The directors anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 10 will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements. The application of HKFRS 12
may result in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs (Cont’d)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad and it applies
to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in the
current standards. For example, quantitative and qualitative
disclosures based on the three-level fair value hierarchy
currently required for financial instruments only under HKFRS 7
“Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by
HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 April 2013 and that the application of the
new standard may affect the amounts reported in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and result in more extensive
disclosures about fair value measurements in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in respect of derivative
financial instrument.

Other than as described above, the directors anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised Standards,
Amendments to Standards and Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment property, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of or dissolves a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost or the subsidiary is dissolved, (ii) derecognises
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests in such
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as a gain
or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets
of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction
can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Intangible assets

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
activities (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been
demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or
sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other

resources to complete the development and to use or sell
the intangible asset; and

the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Intangible assets (Cont’d)

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives when the
intangible assets are ready for their intended use of production
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis, except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government subsidies that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
Scheme/state-managed retirement benefit scheme/the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors have
reviewed the Group's investment property portfolios and
concluded that the Group’s investment properties are not
held under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group's deferred taxation on
investment properties, the directors have determined that
the presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are recovered
entirely through sale is not rebutted. As a result, the Group
has not recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair value
of investment properties as the Group is not subject to any
income taxes on disposal of its investment properties.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs to completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVTPL"), loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represent those held-for-trading.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. The
Group’s available-for-sale financial assets comprised unlisted
equity investments and investments in private equity fund.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.
When the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting period
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

e breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e disappearance of an active market for that financial assets
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and loans and interest
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on available-for-sales equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components and
early redemption option

Convertible bonds issued by the Company that contain both
the liability (together with the early redemption option which is
closely related to the host liability component) and conversion
option components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component is allocated to the
conversion option that meets the definition of an equity
instrument, and is included in equity (convertible bonds equity
reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in which case
the balance stated in convertible bonds equity reserve will
be transferred to share premium). Where the option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be released to the accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Convertible bonds contains liability and equity components and
early redemption option (Cont’d)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Extinguishing the liability component with equity instrument

When the contractual terms of an instrument (that contain
a substantial liability component) are modified such that
the revised terms would result in the Group issuing equity
instruments to the counterparty to extinguish the liability,
the Group derecognises the financial liability (or part of
the financial liability) from the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group measures the fair value of equity
instruments issued, unless the fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the equity instruments would be
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished.

The difference between the carrying amount of the liability
extinguished and the fair value of the new instruments issued is
recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges, consideration bonds and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives, including embedded derivatives which are
separated from non-derivative host contract, are initially
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,
in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivative

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
tested as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that they may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) AND
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and others providing

similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimated, with a corresponding
adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have significant risks of causing
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Cont’d)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

Determining whether an impairment is required requires an
estimation of recoverable amounts of relevant property, plant
and equipment and intangible asset or the respective cash
generating units (“CGU") to which the property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset belong, which is the higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. If there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable
amount shall be estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual
asset, the Group shall determine the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the asset belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the relevant assets or the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. The
discount rate represents rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or the CGU for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected or there is a downward revision of
future estimated cash flows due to unfavourable changes in
facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation of the relevant
asset is disclosed in note 8. At 31 March 2013, the carrying
amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are HK$136,298,000 (2012: HK$334,819,000) and
HK$707,168,000 (2012: HK$2,434,796,000) respectively.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables and loans and
interest receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2013, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables is approximately HK$30,016,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$6,888,000). As at 31 March 2012, the carrying amounts
of trade receivables and loans and interest receivables are
approximately HK$25,750,000 (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of approximately HK$3,200,000) and HK$33,359,000
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholder through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.
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The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which AREBEENEEAIEERK(EH
include borrowings disclosed in note 30, convertible bonds BIEEE(RME30E) « n/ik
disclosed in note 31 and consideration bonds disclosed in note EEE(RHEFIHE)RREBE
32, equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising EH (W32 E)) - x/p\ﬂ}ggﬁ
issued share capital and reserves. AR (EhaED TR
Nf#E) -
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on RNATEETHG S EANLERE o (£
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider BEZ—ES  EEeEZEER
the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of KRB RIEE AN BEARK - RBig
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group EEVEE AEESEBYNK
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of B BEITEIR G, %)ﬂ,iat BB o IR
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or BERE » AN FERIEENERE -
the redemption of existing debt.
Categories of financial instruments BIBETAZHEF
2013 2012
—E—= —_F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THETT
Financial assets MBEE
At FVTPL ;@?QWEH\%@A
— Held-for-trading investments — HEEERE - 154,795
— Derivative financial instrument — X T A 266,790 392,792
Loans and receivables (including cash E,TA&JEHQ NIH(BERE &
and cash equivalents) EZRIINELBERH) 100,586 284,104
Available-for-sale investments EH#\&_'I%&%T - 69,868
Financial liabilities =Ny
Amortised costs P AN 1,470,109 2,425,014
Financial risk management objectives and policies BIEE RS ZHER %
The Group’s major financial instruments include available- REB 7 TEPBKB T AEBIFEIHLE
for-sale investments, derivative financial instrument, held- EWmE  THEKBITAE - - FHEES
for-trading investments, trade receivables, other receivables, 2IE - EWB SHIE - HaEl
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits, RIE - r&“qﬁzjﬁﬂ&f&“qﬁﬁu )

bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables and
accrued charges, convertible bonds, consideration bonds and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont’'d)

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. In addition, certain trade and other receivables,
bank balances, trade and other payables of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), United States
dollars ("USD"), Euro (“EUR") and Renminbi ("RMB"),
currencies other than functional currency of respective group
entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the
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end of the reporting period are approximately as follows: T
2013 2012
—B-=F —TCF
HK$
against
Taiwan HK$ usb EUR RMB HK$ HK$ usb EUR RMB
dollars  against against against  against against  against  against  against  against
(“NTD") RMB NTD HK$ HK$ Total NTD RMB NTD HK$ HK$ Total
B
A%  Bri  Exi Bri ARER BLR  BTR EnR BT ARE
(THE%D) AR¥ bid=k BT BT @y Wa% AEH Ham LT RAT 5t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET THEL TEL TEL TET FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL TEL
Assets BE
Trade and other receivables ERESHTER
HitEgE = = = = - - - - - 765 149 914
Bank balances and cash PITERRES 6,421 = 6,281 628 = 13,330 - 1,050 8,738 646 - 10,434
Liabilities aff
Trade and other payables FERE 57BN
Hit TR = (82) = = (249) (331) - (465) - - (2,040)  (2,505)
6,421 (82) 6,281 628 (249) 12,999 - 585 8,738 1,41 (1,891) 8,843
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

At 31 March 2013, there are assets and liabilities of HK$28,137,000
(2012: HK$35,632,000) and HK$78,000 (2012: HK$1,007,000)
denominated in USD, a foreign currency other than functional
currency of respective group entities (HK$). The directors expect
the currency risk exposure arising from these assets and liabilities
are insignificant and such exposure is excluded from the sensitivity
analysis below as HK$ is pegged against USD.

The Group’s intra-group balances do not form part of the net
investment in foreign operations. The carrying amounts of the
foreign currency denominated intra-group balances which have
been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements of
certain subsidiaries of which the functional currency is HK$,
RMB and NTD at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Amounts due from
group companies
denominated in
HK$ against RMB

Amounts due from
group companies
denominated in
NTD against HK$

Amounts due to
group companies
denominated in
HK$ against NTD
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??%@gﬂ?@%ﬁ?%ﬁiﬂ%

M5 (&)
B (&)
R-ZZE—=F=A=+—H " &%
BUXTREZEERAED A

£528,137,0008 0 ( —&E— 4 :
35,632,000% 7t ) M 78,000 % JT
(ZZ——4 :1,007,000/&7C) °
ENNSEEERINEEB I
BB cEETEH  ARET
HETHY  ZEEENAEME
47 BRI - a R R
BN T X2 M DAT -

NEEZ EBARQRIMBZ E8RIT T
BN EINERIEE FRE 2 — 3
D BTHEBRR ZLGRAME®RE
RNERUBTT ARBERTIAES
e EM 2 INESHESEB RN A A
ERETTHE - BEARNSREH
RZEEBENAT

Amounts due from
group companies
denominated in
HK$ against NTD

e £ B A RIFIE P BN R RO B EB A RRIA FEU £ B RIFIE
(MFEBEBIAE) (UBRRARYIE) (UBRAHEWIE) (UWBTAHFTaWE)
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
—EB-=F —F——F ZE-Z=F T —F ZB-=F —FT——_F Z8B-Z=F T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT TET FETT THET THETT TET FHETT
- 13,135 69,568 66,292 178,754 120,000 178,754 60,000

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity analysis
for increase and decrease in the functional currency of the
respective group entity against relevant foreign currencies
and all other variables were held constant. The sensitivity rate
used for both years, 1% on NTD against HK$, 1% on HKD
against NTD, 4% on HK$ against RMB, 1% on USD against NTD
and HK$, 5% on EUR against HK$ and 4% on RMB against
HK$, represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and intra-group foreign currency balances, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a
change of sensitivity rates in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in loss for the year where
the foreign currency of the respective group entity strengthen
against the functional currency. For a weakening of the foreign
currency against the functional currency, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the result for the year.
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TRFANEBETRIIEEERE
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FTEREBERTE MEFEEZ

BREREER e EETE %
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BRA% - ETATEERBITA
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H BB BB INE D) A B S 5R
J@F‘Eﬁﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂd‘ ZINE

bAb‘bﬁ%Lﬁ%ﬁﬁ ﬁif% 8%
ZRHERNMMER

Impact of  Impactof  Impactof Impactof Impactof  Impact of
NTD HK$ HK$ usD EUR RMB
against HKS against NTD against RMB against NTD against HK$ against HK$
Fe®x #Bri Bri XExR Brai AR®R
BT A% ARY He¥ BT BT
e TuE THE TyE 2yE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THER THET TER TR TET
2013 “E-=F
Decrease (increase) in loss for ~ EEEERD (3E11)
the year - 64 2,779 63 31 (10)
2012 “ECF
Decrease (increase) in loss for ~ EEEERD (3E11)
the year 131 (600) 2,675 87 71 (76)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate restricted bank deposits (see note 22 for details),
fixed-rate loans receivable (see note 27 for details), convertible
bonds (see note 31 for details), consideration bonds (see note
32 for details) and fixed-rate borrowings (see note 30 for
details). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate borrowings (see note 30 for details) and bank
balances. It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

The Group'’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of bank’s prime rate in Hong Kong and a
local bank’s interest rate in Taiwan arising from the Group’s
borrowings denominated in HK$ and NTD respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments.
The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point (2012: 50
basis points) increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2013 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$2,393,000 (2012: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$691,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Equity price risk

At 31 March 2012, the Group was exposed to equity price risk
through its listed equity securities classified as held-for-trading
investments and unlisted equity fund classified as available-
for-sale investments. The management managed this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group’s equity price risk was mainly concentrated on
securities listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
In addition, the directors were responsible to monitor the
price risk. For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate
was 15% for the year ended 31 March 2012 as a result of
the volatile financial market. Available-for-sale investments in
unlisted share measured at cost less impairment were excluded
for sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below had been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risks as at 31 March 2012. If the
prices of the respective equity instruments and the equity fund
had been 15% higher/lower and other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2012
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$23,219,000,
as a result of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading
investments.

As at 31 March 2012, if the price of the equity fund (included
in available-for-sale investment) had been 15% higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s investment
revaluation reserve would increase by HK$2,080,000 as a result
of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale investment. If
the price of the equity fund had been 15% lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year
would increase by HK$2,080,000 as a result of the changes
in fair value of available-for-sale investment and the relevant
impairment loss thereon.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis was
unrepresentative of the inherent equity price risk as the year
end exposure did not reflect the exposure in the previous year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont’d)

Other price risk

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group holds the
derivative component embedded in the consideration bonds
as detailed in note 23 at the end of the reporting period with
changes in fair value to be recognised in the profit or loss.
The fair value adjustment of the derivative component would
be affected positively or negatively, amongst others, by the
changes in the credit spread of the Company.

The Group's exposure to other price risk on derivative
component embedded in the consideration bonds as a result
of the change in the risk free rate is insignificant and thus no
sensitivity analysis is prepared.

Sensitivity analysis

If credit spread of the Company had been 10% (2012: 5%)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the
fair value of the derivative component will increase/decrease
and the Group’s post-tax loss would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$43,221,000/HK$14,651,000 (2012:
HK$103,000,000/HK$81,000,000) as a result of changes in
fair value of derivative financial instrument. The management
of the Group considers that the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the pricing
model used in the valuation of derivative financial instruments
involves other assumptions and variables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk on
trade receivables and loans and interest receivables. At
the end of the reporting period, 30% (2012: 46%) and nil
(2012: 100%) of the total trade receivables and loans and
interest receivables were due from the Group’s five largest
customers and two largest independent third party borrowers
respectively. The Group’s five largest customers are sizable
electronics corporations whereas the two largest borrowers
are individuals. The directors of the Company consider these
counterparties with good credit worthiness based on their
past repayment history. The directors closely monitor the
subsequent settlement of the customers. The Group does not
grant long credit period to the counterparties.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and loans and interest receivables at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

The Group’s liquid funds (mainly bank balances) are placed in
various banks. The credit risk on these liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are banks with good reputation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group is required to pay. Specifically, bank loans with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing
to exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the

extent that interest are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)
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Liquidity risk tables TENE 2R Rk
Weighted Within 1 year Total Carrying
average  or repayable Between Between Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interestrate  on demand 1-2years  2to5years Syears  cash flows 31 March 2013
W_E-z&
nEYs 155 A¥EEE ZR=1-A
fi®  EEXEE 152F 255% BEsE  REAE  REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T ThL TR TR T
2013 it St
Non-derivative financial liabilities #fi4#E%EE
Trade payables EfE53E NARER 6,434 - - - 6,434 6,434
Other payables and accrued charges 4 /Ef5U2
REER NIATER 67,062 - - - 67,062 67,062
Borrowings & (Note a)
(Hrita) 503,918 4,850 14,140 28573 551,481 546,364
Convertible bonds (Note b) R ER(Hih) 2% 60,000 30,000 - - 90,000 71,075
Consideration bonds (Note )~ R (3¢ 23.554% 2,125 10625 331875 995625 1460250 773174
659,539 145,475 36,015 1024198 2175227 1,470,109
Weighted ~ Within 1 year Total Carrying
average  or repayable Between Between Over  undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate~ on demand 1-2years 2105 years Svyears  cash flows 31 March 2012
R-E-_F
METS 15 M3, AURRE -A=T-H
HE  EEXER 15F 1558 dEsF  NEEE  (BEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
2012 “%§-Cf
Non-derivative financial liabilities F{7EMH%EE
Trade payables ENES7E NIATER 12,804 . = . 12,804 12,804
Other payables and accrued charges E-4Ef3UE
R ER NAMER 36,731 - - - 36,731 36,731
Borrowings e (Note a)
(Fiita) 28873 4,834 14,098 25,679 73,484 70,055
Convertible bonds (Note b) TR B (i) 15.5% 70,950 70950 1454475 - 1596375 113127
Consideration bonds (Note )~ RIERE (3¢ 23.554% 41,250 1,250 618750 2062500 2763750 1,182,297
190,608 117,034 2,087323 2,088,179 4,483,144 2,425,014
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk tables (Cont’d)

Notes:

(a)

Variable-rate borrowings carry interest at the prime rate in Hong Kong plus a spread or local
bank interest rate in Taiwan plus a spread as set out in note 30. The respective market rate

at the end of the reporting period is used in the maturity analysis.

As at 31 March 2013, the amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the interest
payment of the convertible bonds before its maturity on the assumption that the
outstanding principal amount will be settled by delivering shares of the Company. As at 31
March 2012, the amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the principal amount and
interest payment of the convertible bonds required on the assumption that no conversion
and early redemptions would take place before its maturity. The carrying amount represents
the liability component carried at amortised cost with an effective interest rate of 22%

(2012: 15.5%) for convertible bonds.

The amount of undiscounted cash flow represents the redemption amount including
the relevant principal amount and interest payment of the consideration bonds which
is prepared with an assumption of exercising the extension option embedded in the
consideration bonds as set out in note 32. The carrying amount represents the liability
component carried at amortised cost with an effective interest rate of 23.554% (2012:
23.554%) for consideration bonds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont’d)

Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

Liquidity risk tables (Cont’d)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “within 1 year or repayable on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. The aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these loans amounted to HK$499,000,000 as
at 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$27,500,000). The followings
represent agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements including both undiscounted principal and
interest components:

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

5. BIITRA(E)

?ﬂg‘ﬁ/ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%%’"’@ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%&ﬂ%

///L 5%7 /éf T /& ( ﬁﬁ)
REET R ZE (E)

R ERBEDTH - BERKBRZ
fEﬁ%ﬁkW\r—imiﬁﬁm
BIZEEERRN R Z_T—=

A=+—8" Mi';i%,*hmaﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁ
% 48 %8 /3499,000,0008 T (==&
— —4F 1 27,500,000/87) c &
%Wﬁ%ﬁfﬁkmﬁfﬁ N A
FEIEBR IR RS RE N A B 215 ) FraE
2 ERREE R HBER ¢

2013 2012

—E-=F —ZT—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THxT FET

Within one year —FER 10,200 7,238
More than one year but not exceeding i —FETEBBEME

two years 572,538 6,937
More than two years but not exceeding #RBM (B B8 T E

five years - 16,533

582,738 30,708

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
Fair value

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

e the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

e The fair value of derivative financial instruments is made
of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional
derivatives; and

e the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial instrument) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values, except for
convertible bonds and consideration bonds. The fair value of the
liability component of convertible bonds and consideration bonds
with carrying amounts of HK$77,075,000 (2012: HK$1,123,127,000)
and HK$773,174,000 (2012: HK$1,182,297,000) are determined
at HK$76,000,000 (2012: HK$949,009,000) and HK$630,169,000
(2012: HK$1,157,486,000) as at 31 March 2013, respectively.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

5. BIITRA(E)
AR |

TS EERMHA M AT EEE
mF -

o WHEBERRRELE A
EXERADDISEE - K
FEUTS L EEE

o MAEMBIAZRAFEIIAE
RENTETAENTAFHZE
Al s ETRBER SR D
- mERREDTA T AR A HAHE
EERINETHMEARSED
1 K

s HiMBEELMBAEB(D
BRETEVMBIAR) 2 A FE
TR AR BRI - PARE
RREMEDTETE -

EERANGEVBRRPILE
HRALHR M BEEERYBEE
BEREREEEEQAFEMRSE @
AR ESFLRREGEFARI
BREED B A77,075,000 (=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value (Cont’d)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair
value is observable.

e Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
guoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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5. BIITRA(E)

N FEE)
Rix & I BRI K MERZ 21 F

=i

@m 7L§E

Tﬁ%%WJEA VIZRR  MBTA
NHERE - WA FEAEER
%‘J‘E DRE—E= e

£—MAVEFEBE#A
B EL R BN ET S W TR
HECKAE)SL -

. E-RATEHEDRE A
HAZBES - QAR &

Al B & (AMER) sl M (AN
EET%?ETE)%H%?%A%ME%

L—MAFEFED AL
Rz A B T 35 BUR (BAE
R ABB) cEEXBEZ
HEESH -

As at 31 March 2013 R-_EFE—=F=H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—K EZHR E=& et
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FHET
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFETABE 2
REE
Derivative financial instrument T4 #& T E(Ff3E23)
(Note 23) - - 266,790 266,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

e MEERRME

B2_T-=F=-A=1+—ALFE

5. BIITRA(E)

Fair value (Cont’d) NFE(E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated A S BT K LR ER 7 I F
statement of financial position (Cont’d) /E,ﬂ‘gg( Z )
As at 31 March 2012 R-ZEFE——F=H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— -t F=H et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FE T
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEEA
BERvUKEE
Held-for-trading investments HIEEERE
— listed securities (Note 24) EmESH(MEE24) 154,795 - - 154,795
Available-for-sale investments A B ERE (HzF21)
(Note 21) - 13,868 - 13,868
Derivative financial instrument T4 T A (FF:F23)
(Note 23) — — 392,792 392,792
154,795 13,868 392,792 561,455

There were no transfers among Level 1, 2 and 3 in the current

and prior years.

NAFERBEFE  E—H %
RN E = A e

Reconciliation of Level 3 for value measurements of financial ERB B EENFE R
assets
Derivative
financial
instrument
PTEMKEITA
HK$'000
AT
At date of issuance EA%’?ﬁ H 5 409,753
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIERERZ N EEE)

(Note 9) (MI5¥9) (16,961)
At 31 March 2012 RZE——F=H=+—H 392,792
Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RiBmER AT EES

(Note 9) (BFEE9) (126,002)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=F=A=+—H 266,790
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Fair value (Cont’d)

Reconciliation of Level 3 for value measurements of financial
assets
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5. BIBITA(E)

N FEE)

FE=RUBEENTFEZHK

Convertible

instruments

unlisted

AR TA

kLW

HK$'000

TFET

At 1 April 2011 R-_E——FMHA—H 61,180

Purchase g 80,125

Change in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBRERZ A FEEY (13,500

Disposal & (127,805
At 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2013 RZE——F=ZA=+—HK

—_—=<

—¥=AR=1—H -

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focusing on types of goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments

under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

(i) Solar grade polycrystalline silicon: Manufacture and sale
of solar grade polycrystalline silicon, which has not yet
commenced business as at 31 March 2013

(ii) Investments: Investment and trading of securities

(iii) Loan financing: Provision of loan financing services

(iv) Property investment: Holding investment properties for
rental and capital appreciation

(v) Manufacture and sale of accessories: Manufacture and
sale of accessories for photographic products

6. THEH

AARBIMITES (ANEF2ER
RE)ZHMAELERD BN
DEKRRCEHEFREMNELIR
Mz EmaRBHAL -

BEEmME @ REEEUEREESR

F85  AEBE A EHRMEEED

|k

() KIGEEFZ &M  RIENHEE
ABGee Z @it  HE2 T
:E—H—+ B Zo¥E
8 R 0 8

iy & RENEBEZFS

(i) ER@ME  REERBERS

(iv) WEKRE  ARIESNER
HEMEEREDHE

(v) BUELRIHERM - RENLHE
FRAEEmBC T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. oHEEBER(EZE)

Segment revenue and results

D EWEREAE

AT RRA 2R EENRED 2
AREBEW R MEEDIT

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
by reportable and operating segments.

100

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE T —=—F=H=+—H|FFF
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline Loan Property and sale of
silicon Investments  financing investment accessories Total
N BER
SHRE k& EXmE NERE HERH @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FER FEx FER FEx FEx
Segment revenue RN R
Sales of goods HEEm - - - - 163,270 163,270
Investment income REBA
Dividend income on held-for-  #{EEEHRE L
trading investments REHA - 4 - - - 41
Interest income on loans EUEFZHE
receivable N - - 555 - - 555
Rental income HeMA - - - 2,590 - 2,590
Change in fair value of financial AT EAEZE
assets at FVTPL (Note) JUBEE AT
B2 (K = (19,843) = - - (19,843)
Intra-group rental income SERALKA - - - 1,815 - 1,815
- (19,802) 555 4,405 163,270 148,428
Elimination i (1,815)
146,613
Segment (oss) profit A8 (BR) BH (1,993,940)  (24,105) 543 (1,322) 4,750  (2,014,074)
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 A2 alfX (64,020)
Unallocated other income ROREMUMA 3,605
Unallocated finance costs RARBERA (387,664)
Fair value loss on derivative ~ #THBRTEY
financial instrument AHEEE (126,002)
Loss on early redemptions of ~ REBERBEH
consideration bonds ZE#B (161,237)
Loss on the alteration of AR EFERER
terms of convertible bonds R (299,448)
Loss before tax B REE (3,048,840)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEEP(£E)
Segment revenue and results (Cont’d) SHEKEREE(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2012 B E— = =1 —HIIFE
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline Loan Property  and sale of
silicon  Investments financing  investment  accessories Total
NG RER

el rE  EF@E  MERE HERHK st
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THTL TR TR TR TR e

Segment revenue PR E
Sales of goods HEEm - - - - 172,121 172,121
Investment income REBA
Dividend income on held-for-  BEEEHRE 2%
trading investments BRA - 4,585 - - - 4,585
Interest income on loans BUETZFIE
receivable N - - 26,396 - - 26,396
Rental income E N - - - 1373 - 1,373
Change in fair value of financial ZATFEFAERE
assets at FVTPL (Note) JHBEEY
AFEEH () - (306,816) - - - (306,816)
Intra-group rental income SERBEMA - - - 588 - 588
- (302,231) 26,396 1,961 172,121 (101,753)
Elimination g (588)
(102,341)
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BB) &7 (40,477) (311,848) 26,786 1,438 (8,973) (333,074)
Unallocated corporate expenses &7 B A AR X (42,385)
Unallocated other income RAREMBA 97
Other expenses - costs incurred  Eft 3 — Wi —F4]
for acquisition of a subsidiary ~ FEBARIEEZ KA (17,602)
Unallocated finance costs RARRERA (190,263)
Fair value loss on derivative ~ #THBBIAZ AT
financial instrument BEAR (16,961)
Loss on early redemption of ~ REBEREEAZ
consideration bonds BB (29,698)
Loss before tax BREiAIER (629,386)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Segment revenue and results (Cont’d)

Note: The change in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL included realised loss of HK$19,843,000
(2012: HK$266,152,000). The remaining portion of approximately HK$40,664,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2012 was unrealised loss on financial assets at FVTPL. Amounts
included were change in fair value loss on held-for-trading investments of HK$19,843,000
(2012: HK$293,316,000) and realised loss on unlisted convertible bonds designated at
FVTPL of nil (2012: HK$13,500,000) for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Segment revenue includes proceeds from sales of goods,
dividend income on held-for-trading investments, interest
income on loans receivable and rental income. In addition, the
chief operating decision makers also consider change in fair
value of financial assets at FVTPL (excluding derivative financial
instrument) as segment revenue.

Intra-group rental income is charged with reference to market
rate.

Segment (loss) profit represents the loss from/profit earned
by each segment without allocation of certain other income,
fair value loss on derivative financial instrument, unallocated
corporate expenses, costs incurred for acquisition of a
subsidiary, loss on early redemptions of consideration bonds,
loss on the alteration of terms of convertible bonds and
certain finance costs. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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6. TEERE)
T W s RFAE(E)

MizE : RATFEFABZERECIMBEEEZATE
BE P IEDE Y E1819,843,0008 L (=
T— 4 1266,152,000/7C) c HE-T
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740,664,000 T AR A FEF AEER
CHBEEsREREE BHE_Z—=
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BERENATEZEEE19,843,0008 T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEERE)
Segment assets and liabilities SHEEEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities LT AR ERELESEED 2
by reportable and operating segments: z]x’iléf;zgzﬁﬁ/\ﬁ
As at 31 March 2013 R-EF—=F=H=4+—H
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline Loan Property and sale of
silicon Investments  financing investment accessories Consolidated
ABEER RER
LRE RE HERWE NXRE  HEEK g4

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TR TER

ASSETS BE
Segment assets NEBE 856,566 = 5 23,158 46,239 925,963

Unallocated property, plant and k&% - BER
Tl

equipment B 203
Unallocated other receivables, A&/ E EYG

deposits and prepayments e RENTE 7,261
Derivative financial instrument  TE#H T A 266,790
Bank balances and cash RITEBRLRE 52,710
Consolidated total assets GREERE 1,252,927
LIABILITIES gf
Segment liabilities PERE 74,939 - - - 35,164 110,103

Unallocated other payables and &7 Bt £ fth B 3008

accrued charges REFER 5757
Unallocated borrowings RAREE 504,000
Tax payable ERHE 15,460
Convertible bonds Rk EH 71,075
Consideration bonds REEH 13,174
Deferred tax liabilities EEREARE 3,245
Consolidated total liabilities A BERE 1,488,814
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013
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BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. ﬁﬁﬁﬂq(fé
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) STHEEEREE(E)
As at 31 March 2012 R-ZEFE——F=HA=+—H
Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline Loan Property  and sale of
silicon  Investments financing  investment  accessories Consolidated
ABES o o Bk
s ®E EFEE MERE HERH )
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx TR TR TER TR
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 2,694,637 226,656 33,359 112,707 48,911 3,116,270
Unallocated property, plant and % M%% i
equipment 194
Unallocated other receivables, % MH@EWM
deposits and prepayments B ek
EEYE 2,826
Derivative financial instrument #7481 T A 392,792
Tax recoverable TW@&E 21
Bank balances and cash BIEBRRES 208,181
Consolidated total assets e EEEE 3,720,284
LIABILITIES =4
Segment liabilities AERE 44,288 523 - 27,500 41,340 113,651
Unallocated other payables and K4 &2 E fth fE 1 0B
accrued charges RIEHER 5,939
Tax payable FENTR 17,174
Convertible bonds R ES 1,123,127
Consideration bonds RERH 1,182,297
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE 46,888
Consolidated total liabilities ~— &£A&EESR 2,489,076
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and BERSBERENESEEIERE
allocating resources between segments: R
e all assets are allocated to reportable and operating segments, e BETYWE BMEL%ZE - &
other than certain property, plant and equipment, certain FTEMEIWTIE - 572 RTER
other receivables, deposits and prepayments, derivative HIF MEHM‘QIE quz@
financial instrument, tax recoverable and bank balances and MIB N RTIT4A ﬁ%zgﬂijiﬁh’
cash; and BEEH IR ERNZEWRNE
2k

all liabilities are allocated to reportable and operating
segments, other than certain other payables and accrued
charges, tax payable, convertible bonds, consideration
bonds, certain borrowings and deferred tax liabilities.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

BRE T E M A S ERT B
M~ EATRIA - AIARRES

REES %T?Ft%&}_kﬁ
IEEF?I\' fEaEANEE
EWREEDSE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 6. DEEP(£E)
Other segment information B 5 EE&ER

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE T =—F=A=+—HIFFZF

Solar grade Manufacture

polycrystalling loan  Property andsaleof  Segment
silicon Investments  financing investment accessories total Unallocated Consolidated
KEER HER
LRE RE EWRE NRRE  HERR  ARER ROR &8
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

tRn  TEr  TEr  fEn  fEm  TEr 0 TEr  TEn

AR ERTERE
SERERARER

Amounts included in measure of
segment profit or loss or segment

assets and liabilities:
Addition to property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss on intangible asset

Impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Allowance for inventory
obsolescence

Allowance for doubtful debts on
trade receivables, net

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Net loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Fair value loss on investment
properties

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments

Impairment loss on disposal of
available-for-sale investments

Gain on disposal of available-for-
sale investments

Finance costs

Amounts reqularly provided to the

chief operating decision markers

but not included in the measure
of segment profit or loss or
segment assets and liabilities:

Loss on early redemptions of
consideration bonds

Loss on the alteration of terms of
convertible bonds

BEIER:
0% BBk

hE
BYAECHERR
nx - RERREL

HEER
REGERR

EUEATELRE
BAE

Ry Ty
ik

HENZ MRk
LFER

RENFLOTERR

BAMHETR RE

HEARNEREZ
HEER
HETRHERENE

BENA

FHAEREERRE
ERETG AN B
HEBR RaE
REEEERRYL
1

%i%@ﬁ%%%z

FR

BUAAREHE
B’

Fair value loss on derivative financial $i4BBTIEZ ATE

instrument

B

105,383
1,744,975

190,416

759

381 -

(2,009) -

- 189 107218 19 107,357
- - 1744975 - 1744975
- - 190,416 - 190,416
- 617 617 - 617
- 3 31 - L
1,286 1,460 I Ly 31,153
- 255 255 30 285
2,848 - 2,848 - 2,848
- 101 101 - 701
- - 381 - 381
- - (2,009) - (2,009)
1,000 - 1798 387,664 389,462
- - -3 16123
- - - 299448 299,448
- - - 126002 126,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Other segment information (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 March 2012

fReMBHERME
BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

6. DTEERE
B BHEF (E)

HE2—F——F=—HA=1+—HIFEZF

Solar grade Manufacture
polycrystalline loan  Property andsaleof  Segment
slicon  Investments ~ financing ~ investment  accessories total  Unallocated  Consolidated
AR ZER
Hal RE EVRE  WERE EERM  ARET  A9K e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn A1 AL TiEn TiEn Thn Thn AT
Amounts included in meastre of S ASEEFIHE RS AE
segment profit or loss or seqment  EERAEHERE
assets and liabilities: 5%
Addition to property, plantand ~ 91% * BEREEZRE
equipment 266,920 - - 87,445 2,366 356,731 166 356,897
Addition to intangible asset BYAELTRE 2494113 - - - - 494113 - 2494113
Allowance for inventory REGERE
obsolescence - - - - 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Allowance for doubtful debtson Y E 57B 2 RERE
trade receivables, net BE - - - - 562 562 - 562
Depreciation of property, N% BEREENE
plant and equipment 18,196 - - 1013 2,031 21,240 25 21,265
Net loss on disposal of property, €M% BRERAEL
plant and equipment EER - - - - 53 53 - 53
Fair value gain on investment ~~ RENE 2 ATERE
properties - - - (3,405) - (3,405) - (3,405)
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ BRTEEZIE 7 &
payments - - - - 692 692 - 692
Reversal of allowance for doubtful Y& 37 REAERR
debts of loans receivable - - (1,058) - - (1,058) - (1,058)
Impairment loss on THEEREZRESE
available-for-sale investments - 11,132 - - - 11,132 - 11,132
Finance costs BENK 607 5 600 604 - 1,867 190,263 192,130

Amounts reqularly provided to the FEHm AR ERRERM
chief operating decision markers BT AAERTIFE
but not included in the measure B3P EEEREEE
of segment profit or loss or BERSE:
seqment assets and liabilities:

Loss on early redemption of REBORERS . BR

consideration bonds - - -
Fair value loss on derivative TERBI R ATE

financial instrument BB - - -

- - 29,698 29,698

- - 16,961 16,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)
Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, PRC and
Taiwan.

Information about the Group's revenue from external customers
is presented based on the location at which the goods or services
are delivered or provided. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.
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BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

6. DTEERE

it B & F)
KREB 72 EE NRE)

N

CHRERA

BRAEBREHINEF 2 Was)s
RIES R ERARB 2 HF 2
7 - BEAKBIERDEEZER
DiREEZEZS

The Group's total revenue from sales of goods by geographical REEBERMEE S 2 EREEAY
location are detailed below: FEEMAT ¢

2013 2012

—Eg-= —FE—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHETT

Europe M 56,112 62,306

United States of America ERRE R 26,825 26,282

Hong Kong 575 16,048 30,372

PRC s 39,113 28,417

Japan H 7 17,784 13,186

Others Hip 7,388 11,558

163,270 172,121

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location of the

AEBLEEMAEEI D ZIERE

assets are detailed below: BEFMT
2013 2012
—E-= —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
PRC =8, 31,024 34,161
Hong Kong BB 1,204 88,006
Taiwan & Ve 842,793 2,685,441
875,021 2,807,608

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial instruments.

M : FERDEETEREMBIA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the segment revenue of the Group are as follows:

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

TEER(E)

BT EEFZEH

RIBEFE AAER SRS
10% A EEB 2 EP T ¢

2013 2012

—B-=F =—ZE——-%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Customer A E P 22,466 -2
Customer B’ 2R/ -2 22,872

! Revenue is generated from manufacture and sale of accessories.

Wt ok B s R S E R

? The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of total segment revenue of the RS EARNEBR 2 BB
Group. 10% A E &8k ©
7. OTHER INCOME Hag A
2013 2012
—E-= —E—-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Bank interest income RITHEUA 78 91
One off compensation from lessor for MREXLIEERTEEAA
early termination of lease B — IR MRS 8 3,000 -
Government grant (Note) BT B (B 3E) - 1,886
Sundry income FEIEPA 2,793 1,859
5,871 3,836

Note: Government grant represented the subsidies from local government in Yilan County,

Taiwan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSS RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF
MANUFACTURE OF SOLAR GRADE POLYCRYSTALLINE
SILICON BUSINESS

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

2013 2012

—Eg-= —FE—_F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Impairment loss on intangible asset B EEZREBE 1,744,975 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and %% - W= M&RE 2 REEE

equipment 190,416 -

1,935,391 -

As a result of several delays in the commercial production of
polycrystalline silicon over the past two years and severe and
challenging market conditions in the solar industry as well as
the drop in the selling prices of the polycrystalline silicon during
the year ended 31 March 2013, the management of the Group
has performed impairment assessment in relation to the solar
grade polycrystalline silicon CGU for the year ended 31 March
2013.

The solar grade polycrystalline silicon CGU contains an intangible
asset that represents the technology of manufacturing of solar
grade polycrystalline silicon (the “Core Technology”) with
carrying amount before impairment of HK$2,452,143,000 and
property, plant and equipment with carrying amount before
impairment of HK$320,501,000 as at 31 March 2013.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount
of this CGU is compared with the recoverable amount and the
recoverable amount has been determined at the higher of the
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Value in use calculation is carried out by American Appraisal
China Limited, independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. The value in use calculation is
determined based on the financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering five-year period and a pre-
tax discount rate of 22%. The cash flows beyond the next five
years are extrapolated using a nominal growth rate of 3% per
annum. Other key assumptions adopted in the value in use
calculation include:

(i) an assumption that the operation will commence in July
2013;

BEMF  ZREAREELRH
IRIEER - I b KB B8 EE 5% 3R R
AR AKBENTISRE - UER
@ﬁ_g—_i_ﬂ_+ B
B ZREMNEE MK SR
mgkﬁFFﬁi—v =F=A
=t— Eiifﬁﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁy

miE 2 B EEECETRER

E

R=Z—=5=A=1—H KB
A% & ﬁi?iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ

é? ﬁﬁ%i?t%b@%
m&mw&u&ﬁuxwm@wm
B {8 /& 2,452,143,000% 7T ) -
R - BER&ECRER 2
BRI A320,501,00087T) °

SUBERIRME - ZRESELEM
FBREE B A Yy O S RELL B - A
Yo & R EE AR FEREEK
REFREEPERSE

FREBFERISESERE
ﬁi’:.\léfff %ﬁﬁﬁfﬁ%.;ﬂﬁ
ERARGE - FHEBEFEER
ZIK%IEIEJ‘Ttt/E/EJ%*ﬁiHHFﬁ
EI’JEMWE\ 5 222 % Bx B A B 3R =K
ETE ERAFUINNIREREEK
AEF3%MEREREER - &
HEBETEFANEMEEZEERE
1
BN _T—=F1+ A

(i) BEREE

&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

8. IMPAIRMENT LOSS RECOGNISED IN RESPECT OF
MANUFACTURE OF SOLAR GRADE POLYCRYSTALLINE
SILICON BUSINESS (Cont’d)

(ii) the estimated selling price of polycrystalline silicon of
US$22.1/kg in 2013 which is expected to grow by 7% in
2014 and then at 3% annually from 2015 onwards;

(iii) the estimated manufacturing costs of US$13.6/kg which
is expected to grow by 3% in 2014 and remain stable
thereafter;

(iv) the estimated operating expenses, including selling,
general and administrative expenses which amounted to
be 6% of the estimated revenue;

(v) the estimated volume produced for the first full year of
commercial production will be approximately 2,500 metric
tons and gradually increased to 3,000 metric tons per
annum from 2014 onwards;

(vi) all polycrystalline silicon produced will be sold in the year
of production; and

(vii) pre-tax discount rate of 22% is based on the industry level
and the Company-specific risk in the long run.

As the value in use calculation determined based on the above
assumptions is less than the carrying amount of the CGU, an
impairment loss of HK$1,935,391,000 (2012: nil) has been
recognised by the management of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The CGU has not yet commenced
operation as at 31 March 2013.
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(iii)

(vi)

BERBEENE

ZRER T =F 2 (h5tE
BABAT22.1%7T » EER
“E—NFHENT% ¢ T A
—E-RFREEFEMNI%:

EERANME /B AT13.65%
7T TRHIR ZZ — P F AL N
3% - MERBEFRE

AR - BIENE - —
M RITHAY - EamETIRA
6% ;

Bt EEETEmELEERF
ERBEMNEERA%2,500R
WE - M —E—ERBES
HEINZE F43,00020F :

TEFEANMEENS &IERK
EHHE K

(vii) BREEATRER E22% JHIRIBITR

K RARAREZFERR
M5E e

R RIE E AR ATt B R E

1B

PRREeEEEMAERAE

Wt AEEEREEDREZE_Z
—=F=ZA=1+—BHItFERERAR
{E 538 1,935,391,000/8 . ( = &
——F E) RT—=F=A
—+—H BREeELBEMNEERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HihamREE
2013 2012
—g2—=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss on the alteration of terms of BN A MRIE S G2 1R
convertible bonds (Note 31) (F¥5E31) (299,448) -
Loss on early redemptions of REEBERREES ZEBE
consideration bonds (Note 32) (MT5%32) (161,237) (29,698)
Fair value loss on derivative financial PTEBBI A AFEEE
instrument (Note 23) (M3E23) (126,002) (16,961)
Allowance for doubtful debts on trade JEUWWE S IB RER B - F5E
receivables, net (3,711) (562)
Fair value (loss) gain on investment WEWMEZ N E(EE) WS
properties (Note 18) (FfFzE18) (2,848) 3,405
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERE 2 REEE
investments (3.877) (11,132)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEMHEERE 2 W
investments 2,009 -
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEW% - BB &R 2 EE
equipment FEE (285) (53)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37)  HE&M B2 A2 Wz (FizE37) 1,025 -
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) HNE U 2 (518 ) /358 2,253 (3,357)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful debts — fEUNE 2~ REEH {# A
of loans receivable (Note 27) (Ff17E27) - 1,058
(592,121) (57,300)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. RE KA
2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHExT FET
Interests on: ATEEZHE -
— Bank and other borrowings wholly — AR AFNEBHEENIRIT
repayable within five years NEMEE 21,712 1,260
— Bank borrowings wholly repayable — AR AFRBEEE ZIRTT
after five years BE 758 607
Effective interest expense on: NTEEBEZMEMAY
— Convertible bonds (Note 31) — AR ES(FIFE31) 155,688 127,093
— Consideration bonds-debt —REEHF—EKIBMHD
component (Note 32) (F13E32) 211,304 63,170
389,462 192,130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

11. FIEHIER

2013 2012
—E—= —E -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT

Current tax: BIHATR IR -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBEMGEH (232) (366)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R ESH (1,226) (1,544)
Overprovision in prior years: B FEHBEERE
Hong Kong BB 2,522 -
1,064 (1,910)
Deferred tax credit for the year FEELEHBER
(Note 33) (BFEE33) 14,590 11,006
15,654 9,096

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Pursuant to relevant Taiwan Income Tax Law, the corporate
income tax rate of the Taiwan subsidiaries is 17%. No provision
for Taiwan Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the subsidiaries incorporated in Taiwan
had no assessable profit for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Cont'd) 1. FiIBHIER(EZ)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss FEMEME R EEESZSSE
before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive WASRK 2B ATERBYEENT -
income as follows:

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAETT

Loss before tax BrFi B BT 18 (3,048,840) (629,886)
Tax at income tax rate of 16.5% RS E16.5% (=& —=

(2012: 16.5%) F:16.5%) 5T E2HIA 503,059 103,931
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ A HIFI X 2 FHiS 2

for tax purpose (137,102) (35,287)
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERRBAZRBETE

tax purpose 596 1,090
Overprovision in prior years BEFE 2 BRERE 2,522 _
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIER —J?&tﬂﬂ@*ﬁj MERE

difference not recognised TS5 (319,343) -
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KR TRIEJESTEz%Rﬁ‘%%; (33,715) (60,270)
Effect of different tax rates for subsidiaries £ E{th 5] )A#E (& &8 2 f{ B A 7]

operating in other jurisdictions TRIME 2 & (363) (541)
Others Hib - 173
Income tax credit for the year FEMERER 15,654 9,096
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

12. FEFE

2013 2012
—E—= —_=—=
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Loss for the year has been arrived at FEBEENRGTAIAT
after charging (crediting): IBH :
Staff costs B TR
Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) EEMe ( TE 13)
— fees and other emoluments — e REMBNS 24,122 11,941
Other staff costs ﬁﬁE\I}ﬂZ$
— salaries, allowances and bonus — e BB NIEAD 48,481 48,099
— retirement benefits scheme F‘WMEE?‘JEWL@'J # //’(
contributions 2,288 1,254
- Equity-settled share-based payments — —LAREZR & E 2 I MK
(included in administrative expenses) (gfj\TTEyﬁﬁgz)(M1u£35)
(Note 35) 7,876 696
82,767 61,990
Equity-settled share-based payments ETERZEZSEE 2RO TR
granted to consultants (included in (FtAHME ) (MEE35)
other expenses) (Note 35) 3,823 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1 8 & 518 7 # 4 701 692
Cost of inventories recognised as an ﬁﬁwﬁﬁfﬂQZﬁ SN (BIREL
expense (including allowance for =A=+—H1t
inventory obsolescence amounted to EFZE%%T‘éﬂ%{% C KAEE
HK$617,000 (2012: HK$1,000,000) 617,000 C(—F——_4F :
for the year ended 31 March 2013) 1,000,000 7T)) 114,194 136,540
Auditor’s remuneration % SN B 5 2,242 2,133
Depreciation of property, plant and M B MERIEZITE
equipment
—included in administrative expenses — st AT X 4,966 3,069
—included in other expenses” — st AEMRX" 26,187 18,196
31,153 21,265
Gross rental income from investment WEWME AL IWMABEE
property (2,590) (1,373)
Less: direct operating expenses from B RFAEEHSBRAZKRE
investment property that generate MEZEEREERY
rental income during the year 1,431 783
(1,159) (590)
Research and development cost W R AR S 2 B B PR
recognised as an expense (FFAHABRX )"
(included in other expenses)” 11,395 5,621
Investment income "EWA
— dividend income on held-for-trading —BHEEBREZRBILA
investments (41) (4,585)
— interest income on loans receivable — R ER 2 FIBHBA (555) (26,396)

* Included in other expenses are expenses incurred for the solar grade polycrystalline silicon *

business of HK$37,582,000 (2012: HK$41,419,000).

N
37,582, ooo/%yc(
BT ERT AHMB -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS 13. EERTHARMS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and B ENEEE RITRER
the chief executive were as follows: 2T

Executive directors

HiTE=
Peter Lo Suen
Temple  Yuen Wa Eddie Yick Lun Wu Lau
2013 Whitelam Peter Woo Philip  Yi-Shuen  King Hang
“8-z% EnE ) 3 EiR RUR nE

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TRT TR TRR TR TR

(Note g) (Note d)
(Kttg) (Ftitd)
Fees ik - - - - - -
Other emoluments Eft M2
Salaries ¥4 538 840 936 900 1,755 420
Retirement benefits scheme RIETE - 15 15 15 11 15
Share-based payments MRS 7R
(Note 35) (Bi£E35) - 381 4,380 - 12,855 -
538 1,236 5,331 915 14,621 435
Non-
executive
director Independent non-executive directors
FUMES BUkYTES
Chuang, Robert  Chien,
Henry  Frank H. Agustin V. James Yung Hung Total
2013 Yueheng Miu Que laia Il Nelly ~ Cho Sing 2013
“g-=f at
HRE 8% #27  MHE -®-=%
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEdn TEx TEx TEx TExr TEr  ThExn
(Note i) (Note h)  (Notef)
(Birsti) (Rizth)  (RizE)
Fees ik 120 240 240 240 160 46 1,046
Other emoluments Hivfie
Salaries % - - - - - - 5,389
Retirement benefits scheme RIS - - - - £ - A
Share-based payments MR S 2 208
(Note 35) (fiz£35) - - - - - - 17616
120 240 240 240 160 46 24122
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

13. EERITHRARME(E)

(Cont’d)
Executive directors
HiTES
Peter Lo Suen
Temple Lam  Yuen Wa Song Eddie  Yick Lun Wu Lau
2012 Whitelam  Suk Ping Peter Jiajia Woo Philip  Yi-Shuen King Hang
“F-C MY EnE RER  PBR KRB RUER 296
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TEr TEr TExr TExr ThExr TEx  Tirn
(Notea)  (Noteg)  (Noteb) (Notec)  (Noted)  (Notee)
(Frsra)  (Wiskg)  (Bizb) (Fsre)  (skd)  (Bigke)
Fees e - - - - - - - -
Other emoluments e
Salaries e 514 83 840 107 936 900 1,560 305
Retirement benefits scheme BB - 1 12 3 12 12 8 9
Share-based payments MR 2 508
(Note 35) (Fz£35) - - 87 - 999 -39 -
514 84 939 110 1,947 912 5479 314
Non
executive
director Independent non-executive directors
FHiTES B ERITES
Chuang, Robert Chien,
Henry Frank H. ~ Agustin V. James Yung Total
2012 Yueheng Miu Que laia Il Nelly 2012
—E-CF 5t
HRE 2% g8 %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TR TER TET
(Note h)
(FitzEh)
Fees ik 180 190 190 190 240 990
Other emoluments e
Salaries ¥4 - - - - - 5,245
Retirement benefits scheme RIKENGE - - - - - 57
Share-based payments DR S [ 2 508
(Note 35) (Fz£35) 652 - - - - 5,649
832 190 190 190 240 11,941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

13.

Notes:

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Lam Suk Ping resigned as executive director on 27 April 2011.

Ms. Song Jiajia resigned as executive director on 20 June 2011.

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2011.

Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen was appointed as executive director on 22 July 2011 and resigned as
executive director on 31 December 2012.

Mr. Lau King Hang was appointed as executive director on 20 June 2011.

Mr. Hung Cho Sing was appointed as independent non-executive director on 22 January
2013.

Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter is also the managing director, who acts in capacity of chief executive
of the Company and his remunerations disclosed above include those for services rendered

by him as managing director.

Dr. Chien, Yung Nelly resigned as independent non-executive director on 14 November
2012.

Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng resigned as non-executive director on 14 November 2012.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the
directors has waived any emoluments for both years.

13.

AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2012: two) were directors of the Company during
the year. The emoluments of the remaining three (2012: three)
individual employees were as follows:

e MEERRME
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14. EEM<E

FRN - AEBREZSHMALE
BEARNFMB(ZE——F : MAB)
B BRI (ZZE——F: =
H)EREFMATZBME 0T

2013 2012

—BE-=F —ZFT——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Salaries and other benefits ¥re REMET 8,329 8,351
Contributions to retirement benefits IRIKAE R 5 213X

scheme 18 12

Share-based payments (Note 35) AR R (M FE35) 4,666 -

Rental allowance provided M E B - 960

13,013 9,323

The emoluments were within the following bands:

e orREENT

No. of employees

EE A
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——%F
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% T2 2,500,000/%8 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7C% 5,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001/ 726,000,000/ 7T 1 1
3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, or directors of the
Company, as inducement to join or upon joining the Group as
compensation for loss of office.

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed for both years, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

16. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

e MEERRME
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16. BREE

AR A B 4 AR B
BRI IR A T B -

2013 2012
—E2-=F —E——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Loss for the purposes of basic and F{EsTESRER LB EEE

diluted loss per share (loss for the year 7 E1E (AR QAR)#HEAE AFENG

attributable to owners of the Company) FEE1E) (3,033,486) (621,254)
2013 2012
—E-= —F—_4F
Number of shares BB (Restated)
(&E7)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share

REeT BB IREAR KL B EE1E
Z B BRI 5

1,172,110,699 495,807,400

The computation of diluted loss per share does not assume
the conversion of the Company’s share options and the
outstanding convertible bonds in both years since their
assumed conversion would result in a decrease in loss per
share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in
the calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 March 2013 and 2012 have been adjusted to
reflect the impact of the rights issue effected subsequently to
31 March 2013 as disclosed in note 43 and the impact of share
consolidation effected during the year ended 31 March 2013 as
disclosed in note 34(e).

GIEEREE 2 B I ERRN W
(EEERaR: RANNCIPA - JSEN -
Bl A ES - ARZFRELR
KB ERERR LD

HEHE_E-=HN_T——F
“A=Z+—BIFEZSRERX
T 5 s 18 B B A 2 i P N
HHEEARE Uk -T—=4F
— A=+ —B®ETHHR (M
FAWE)EREE_E—=F=
A=+—BI-FEETHRDE O
(RMIFE34(e) R E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y . BERGE
Leasehold Furniture, Construction
[and and Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor in
buildings ~improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total
BEIHE BER  &H HER

g7 ARR L B nE HRIE it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TR Tin TR TR TR TR TR

(osT oA
At 1 April 2011 N-E-—EmA-A 13483 2501 19,769 3380 6,445 - 39,464
Exchange adjustments ERRE (1,856) 3 (3,351) (75) 3 (50) (5,268)
Acquisition of a subsiciary (Note 36) KE-RNBAF (H33) 83303 - 140,670 2598 410 2,104 229,145
Additions HE 81,484 9,792 12,400 1511 - 16,565 127,752
Disposals it - (1,326) (4.909) (1,445) - - (7,680)
31 March 2012 R-F-2E=f=1-f 170,274 1103 164,579 11,969 6,949 18,619 383413
Exchange adjustments & 1,603 67 3,149 129 35 304 5281
Additions HE 881 1,050 0,591 1,10 - 81,125 107,357
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) ~ EBZHENE (K1) (32,240) (2,629) - (1303) - = (36,172)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HEREAF (H3i37) (45,975) (3.495) - (1.803) - - (51,273)
Disposals ik (136) (135) (5189) (36) (185) - (6,281)
31 March 2013 RN-E-ZEZR=1-H 94,407 5,281 185,130 10,666 6,799 100,048 402,331
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT HELHE
At 1 April 2011 HN_E--EmA-A 4783 2,106 19,516 1513 5741 - 34,669
Exchange adjustments EfSE 67 25 125 8) 5 - 254
Provided for the year ERAE 4,018 1117 14,507 123 380 - 21,265
Fliminated on disposals M ERE - (1,326) (4.839) (1,430) - - (7,504)
31 March 2012 RN-E-ZEZR=T-H 8,868 1922 29310 2308 6,166 - 48,594
Fxchange adjustments B 1,037 W 2475 102 ] 385 4070
Provided for the year EERE 5,304 1612 21,709 2175 8 - FIRE
Transfer to investment properties (Note 18) ~ EEZHEANE (Jit18) (215) (125) - (80) - - (420)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HERERE (H3t37) (996) (568) - (315 - - (1.879)
Fliminated on disposals NHERYH (29) (614) (5,116) (6) (136) - (5,901)
Impairment loss fo the year (Note 8 EREESE (Mifs) 57,05 1,097 93,468 3,551 1 29,884 190,416
At 31 March 2013 R-E-=£=F=1-H 11,264 3,368 146,846 1,155 6,531 30,269 266,033
CARRYING AMOUNTS KEE
At 31 March 2013 NoE-=E=f=1t-H B8 1913 38,284 291 268 69,779 136,298
31 March 2012 RNE-ZEZR=t-H 161406 9,101 135,269 9,641 783 18,619 334,819
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’'d)
The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than

construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line
basis at the following rates per annum:

e MEERRME

B2_T-=F=-A=1+—ALFE
17. ¥1% - BEREE(E)
PREZ TN - EHYE - WE K

gfﬁuﬁ%ﬁiﬂﬁTﬁlJigéﬁ%ﬁﬁ

Leasehold land and  Over the estimated useful lives of BETHE  BEFIEBFR0FIEES
buildings 50 years or the terms of the leases BF B (ABREERE)
whichever is the shorter
Leasehold 15% or the unexpired terms of the REEE  15%IREECREREH
improvements leases, if shorter (ABREERE)
Plant and machinery 20% FERERE  20%
Furniture, fixtures 15% G- £EE 15%
and equipment B
Motor vehicles 20% B 20%
2013 2012
—E2—= —FE—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
The carrying values of the leasehold land FHE& +#h M8 F 7 BEEE
and buildings comprise: B
Situated in Hong Kong under long lease fIAEE @ UWEHHEREE - 77,694
Situated in the PRC under medium-term fIAFE - LU EIHEREE
lease 1,837 2,283
Situated in Taiwan under medium-term (IR AE - LU EIFAERA
lease 21,306 81,429
23,143 161,406

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with
carrying values of approximately HK$21,306,000 (2012:
HK$159,123,000) at the end of the reporting period to secure
the bank borrowings granted to the Group.

AREBDPAREHREFEERE
#9/21,306,0008 T (ZFE—=
£ :159,123,000670) 2HHE L
WRIEF  UERRTFAEE 2R

TEE -
18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. REW=
HK$'000
FHET
FAIR VALUE ~NE
At 1 April 2011 R-_E——FOH—H 22,150
Exchange adjustments M H SR 620
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss RiBEER A AR 3,405
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE——F=RF=+—H 26,175
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BEBYE  WENMKE
(Note 17) (M47E17) 35,752
Exchange adjustments bE 5 3 249
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37) HEM B AR (MEE37) (36,170)
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss RiBsmER 2 A TEEE (2,848)
At 31 March 2013 N_E—=F=A=+—H 23,158
BHESEERAR T 2013




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at the date
of transfer, 31 March 2013 and 2012 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by Chung,
Chan & Associates, Chartered Surveyors, independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group. Chung,
Chan & Associates, Chartered Surveyors are members of the
Institute of Valuers. The valuation was arrived at by reference
to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the similar locations and conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties are held under medium-
term leases in the PRC.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSET

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

18. REME (%)

AEEKREYMEEZAHANR -
—=ER-E-—-F£=A=+—H
ZAFEECHETINEMEE1T
(EAREEMEFE  BIAER
HEMEMIEE BETHEMNE
EGE - HEWAGHEMHEZ
B o [HEDNZREMNENEAEEZ
ARV ER B 2 TIGEIREE

s

AREE A BERHEE S EAIRE
AR mREEHERAN T YR
R A FERAGE - WHIE
ARETAREDE -

AEBEZREMETREFHHEE
RPEFA -

19. B EE

Core
Technology
OB i
HK$'000
FTERT
COST AND CARRYING AMOUNT AR REE
At 1 April 2011 RN_ZE——FHHA—H -
Acquisition of assets through acquisition of FHRWEE—HNE R F
a subsidiary (Note 36) WehE & B (M5E36) 2,494,113
Exchange adjustment DE 3 B (59,317)
At 31 March 2012 N _—_E——F=F=+—H 2,434,796
Impairment loss for the year (Note 8) RARFE ZBEEE(K:Es8) (1,744,975)
Exchange adjustment DE 3 3 B 17,347
At 31 March 2013 RZEBE—=%F=A=+—H 707,168

122

The intangible asset represents Core Technology under the
solar grade polycrystalline silicon purchased upon acquisition
of Sun Mass Energy Limited (“Sun Mass”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, as set out in note 36 during
the year ended 31 March 2012. The Core Technology is
patented in the United States, Europe, Japan, Taiwan and the
PRC. No amortisation has been recognised since acquisition
since the intangible asset is not in the condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the management. During the year ended 31 March 2013,
impairment of HK$1,744,975,000 has been recognised, details
is set out in note 8.
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REBEE-_ZE——F=ZA=+—H1t
FE - BEEEENIEI6HE K
B2Sun Mass Energy Limited([Sun
Mass] * BARRIZZ2EMB A
AEBACKGERZSEIRE
T2 o O EE
M - B - 88 RPEEGER
B BEITWEIER K - BIEE

RE - BN EEEERR
RAREREERMIEAEE - 1
HE—_ZE—=F=HA=+—HI®F
- B HERIRIEA1,744,975,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

20. A HERE
NEBZENHEERBERE !

2013 2012
—E-= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Leasehold land in the PRC: AR 2 HHE b -

Medium-term lease BHEEERS 3,557 4,206

Analysed for reporting purposes as: ERMIEZ DT
Current asset MENEE 701 692
Non-current asset ERBEE 2,856 3,514
3,557 4,206

The leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
remaining term of the lease.

HE LM E 2 & M AR
EERE o

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS agHHERE
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Available-for-sale investments comprise: A[{{HERE I :
Unlisted shares in Hong Kong, at cost  &HBIE TR » IR AE - 56,000
Unlisted equity fund in Hong Kong, BEBELTREES -
at fair value b2 /N =] - 13,868
- 69,868

The above unlisted shares represented investments in an
unlisted company together with its subsidiaries engaged in
security brokerage and provision of finance in Hong Kong. The
investment in the unlisted company was measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates was so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values could not be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, an objective evidence
of impairment was considered to exist amid the presence of a
significant or prolonged decline in fair value of the available-
for-sale investments in unlisted equity fund and accordingly,
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,877,000 (2012:
HK$11,132,000) had been recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Group disposed of
all the available-for-sale investments.

FatIE EBUD RN BB ERE
Mﬁ&hﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁz CE =]
NEIREAWMBARIZIKE - BRZ
E%#Lﬁ@ﬁZ&ﬁZéﬁ@¥
BfhETEEBEEE AR - AR LA
EEZRBRS R FERBEA] SEHET
£ - WRIARE TN E HIRIRAK
AIBRRIERTE -

REBEE-_ZT—=F=—A=+—H81I1t
FE FEITREES ZAHE
EREZAFELHBEABSRE
FMTH®  NEBEREFEZHR
BEFR Ilﬁtaﬁﬁﬁubmaﬁﬂ,aiﬁ
£3,877,0008 (& ——F :
11,132,000/ 7T) °

REBEE-_ZT—=F=A=+—H8I1t
FE  AEBLEMEAIHEE

RE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

The amount represents restricted bank deposits placed to
secure the lease agreement for land located at Yilan County,
Taiwan, acquired upon the acquisition of Sun Mass. The
restricted bank deposits would be released at the end of the
lease term, or upon termination or cancellation of the lease,
where the lease is early terminated or cancelled before May
2013, the restricted bank deposits will be forfeited. The
directors of the Company do not expect early termination or
cancellation of aforesaid lease agreement.

The restricted bank deposits carried interest at the fixed
interest rate of 0.56% (2012: 0.48%) per annum at 31 March

2013.

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

The derivative financial instrument represents derivative
component embedded in consideration bonds, details of
which is set out in note 32. The movement of the derivative

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

22. ZRFWITER

ZERERERAEER BRI
(R UEESun MassBS BB A A&
HEMFENZRHIRITER » X
RARITER SR AERRSEE
WL IS BUER R - (WHEE—
T —=—F A A ZRIRFERIESE
H o BIZRARITFERBEH TR -
KA RIEEIWATEEA R AL S 5%
GIRBLIFHEUS ©

R-_E—=F=A=+—8 %R
IR 1717 NIZ E T F 5 *E0.56%
TE T4 048%)5HE o

23. TTEBKIT A
PTEMG T AARBESANES 20T

£80  BRAFIBENME32 -
RNER - TEERD < ZEHF 50

component during the year is set out below: T
HK$’000
THET
At the date of issue on 4 January 2012 R-ZE——F—AMAZETAE 409,753
Change in fair value NHEZSH (16,961)
At 31 March 2012 T——_F#=-H=+—H 392,792
Change in fair value NEEES) (126,002)
At 31 March 2013 E-=—F=A=+—H 266,790

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT (Cont’d)

The fair value of the derivative component is calculated by
the difference between the fair value of the consideration
bonds with extension option and fair value of consideration
bonds without extension option. The fair value of the early
redemption option is considered minimal. The fair value of the
derivative component is determined by Hull-White One-Factor
Model and the assumptions of fair value of the derivative

component are as follows:

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

23. TTEMBETR(E)

PTHEE D 2 AN E T A T HE
EREZREGESFZ2AFERT &
MBELEEEERE  REBHF AT
EME=RETE - RFPBRE
NEEHRREBEMW - TELD 2
N FEAE ThIRHuUll-White 88 & F#H A
BE - MiTED AT EZ BRE&RN
T

With Without
extension extension
option option

MY EZEHR AL
BER BERE

At 31 March 2013
Risk-free rate
Credit spread
Short rate volatility
Maturity

R-B—Z=H=ZHA=1+—H

ERE R =R
EEEE

2 HRR =R B
Edlp

0.617% 0.112%
37.867% 37.867%
0.576% 0.576%
5.8 years 0.8 yearstF

At 31 March 2012
Risk-free rate
Credit spread
Short rate volatility
Maturity

R-Z2--f=ZA=+—H

ERER =X
EERE

72 HAR =R B
Edlp

0.809% 0.202%
23.036% 23.120%
0.660% 0.660%
6.8 years® 1.8 years®

At the date of issue

Risk-free rate
Credit spread
Short rate volatility
Maturity

RE&4THH

ERE k=R
EERE

72 HAR =R B
Elps

1.303% 0.362%
23.067% 22.352%
0.610% 0.610%
7 years 2 years

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a fair value loss of
HK$126,002,000 (2012: HK$16,961,000) was recognised, which is
included in other gains and losses as set out in note 9.

REBEE-_Z—=F=A=+—H
HTFEERR—BLAFEESIRE
126,002,000 L ( — & — —4F :
16,961,000/ 7T) © 2 BIEBED T
ASRHIFE 2 Bt e zs M ESIE A o
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24, HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

24. FEEERE

2013 2012

2= —E -4

HK$000  HK$'000

FTERT FHT

Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE - 154,795

Held-for-trading investments comprised of equity securities
listed in Hong Kong and their fair values were based on quoted

market bid prices.

FIFEBEREBRES LA
% MERFERTISEARE

| Ay
=T B o

Al =+

25. INVENTORIES 25. 78
2013 2012
—E-=F —FET—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Raw materials Rt 1,585 2,491
Work in progress ER 1,581 1,789
Finished goods 2K Gh 1,596 4,166
4,762 8,446

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

26. EWE S RIERAEMER
;- FTERENTE

2013 2012

—E2—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Trade receivables rEUNE B IA 36,904 28,950
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RAREE (6,888) (3,200)
30,016 25,750
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d)

The Group allows an average credit period range from 60 to
150 days to its trade customers from manufacture and sale
of accessories business. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date, which approximate respective
revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

26. B E 5 R I8 I H B WU
B A ERENREGE)

AEBRMARENHEERGEBR 2
B5EF BN TF60E150H 2
FHEER - LT ARBRESR
ZEZHHMEERSB 2 W amTE
REH) 27 2EWE SFIE(
Br REREE ) 2 BRI D AT ¢

2013 2012

—E—-= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

0 to 60 days 0Z260H 19,012 23,937
61 to 150 days 612 150H 11,004 1,813
30,016 25,750

The Group has policy of allowance for doubtful debts which is
based on the evaluation of collectability and age of accounts
and on management’s judgement including credit worthiness
and past collection history of each customer.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

As at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012, there is no trade
receivables which are past due but not impaired.

AREE 2 RERBHBBERTIARIE Z
AU B R M BRER - AR EIRE
UEEEAREPZEERMRES
ZHENRBERE -

BEEANEH - AEETEE
EEF2EEAR  WREFRE
BEEE - AENES CRARE
B -

R-ZEBE—=F=A=+—BFK=ZF
——#F=—A=+—8 #$EREKEZ
SFIAE BEE ERBIE o

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRIBEEE

2013 2012

—E-=F —FT—_4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET BT

Balance at beginning of the year FHE R 3,200 2,962
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 3,736 801
Amounts written off as uncollectible $if 55 A AT Uk |l 2 FRIE (23) (324)
Amounts recovered during the year RERIE 2 K18 (25) (239)
Balance at end of the year FIREERR 6,888 3,200

As at 31 March 2012, included in other receivables was
proceeds on sales of held-for-trading investments due from
brokers of approximately HK$1,993,000. The amount was fully
settled during the year ended 31 March 2013.

All other receivables are expected to be recovered within one
year.

R-EBE——F=A=+—H  Ef
JE R I B 35 FE A4S 42 2 B 5 1E
BEEREMMSEHNIAL)1,993,0008
T BAREEREBEE_T—=F
—A=+—BI-FERBELEN -

@ﬁﬁﬁ@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%—ﬁw
[O] o
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27. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

27. EWERKEWRIE

2013 2012
2= —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFETT
Unsecured, fixed-rate loan receivable MKW EWEEER - 30,000
Interest receivables JEULF) B = 3,359
- 33,359

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRIBGEEE
2013 2012
—_E—-= —EF——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Balance at beginning of the year F R - 22,500
Amounts written off as uncollectable Wiy B A a2 o8 - (21,442)
Impairment losses reversed EREREEE - (1,058)
Balance at end of the year FIREERR - -

At 31 March 2012, the outstanding loans receivable had
contractual maturity dates within 1 year. The average interest
rates of the fixed-rate loans receivable were ranging from 5%
to 24% per annum.

The Group has policy for allowance of doubtful debts which is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on directors’ judgement, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.

In determining the recoverability of the loans receivable, the
Group considered any changes in the credit quality of the loans
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. At 31 March 2012, there were no
loans receivable which were past due but not impaired.

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances carry interest at average market rates of 0.1%
(2012: 0.1%) per annum. As at 31 March 2013, the bank
balances amounting to approximately HK$9,160,000 (2012:
HK$4,789,000) are denominated in RMB which is not-freely
convertible into other currencies.
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RZE——F=A=+—H " kK]t
OEKERZEHNINPR A —F
Ko ERTEBERZ FHEFRN
F5%Z%E24% o

AREE 2 RERBEHBER T ARIA 2
AU Bl RHE MR T - ANE
EHERFREFAZHARKEE
WK A8 2 HIE S ERE -

EERWEREL K OE - KAEE
SERENERZEEERAE
BVt E B B2 RS HIRERE
ZAEMEE R_FE—_F=H
=t+—H #$EDLEMERREZ
FRUE R -

28. IRITHEBRES

RITEBEMBEFEHFF KO
B(—ZE——% 01@E)st 8B -
RZZE—=F=A=+—H "%
9,160,000 8 T (=& — = F
4,789,000/ 7T ) B IRIT A 82 A A
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e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

29. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 2. ENE S HERH i E
ACCRUED CHARGES TAIE&EE"I‘E}EH

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented T ABIESREER VREFJEAZ
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. SZENE ST IEZEEﬁ%ﬁTﬁ

2013 2012

—F—= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAETT

0 to 60 days 0£260H 6,129 12,298

61 to 150 days 612150H 182 138

Over 150 days 1508 A E 123 368

6,434 12,804

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

At 31 March 2013, included in other payables and accrued
charges is payable for construction for production plant costs
in relation to the solar grade polycrystalline silicon business of
HK$31,098,000 (2012: HK$884,000).

RBEEmZFHEER/IOHB -
AEBERTAEMBRREEBER - A
ORI A BN RIBI RN EEHIRA

B8 -

W_E—=%=ZA=+—8 "

fth, & 1<t 3K IF &JEEJr;%ﬁH@%EfEﬁi
N bﬁ&yaa PEEBKE R FE’\JEF
MEESETREKRAZ ENKIE
31,098,000/ T ( — & — _E:
884,000/ 7T) °
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e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

30. BORROWINGS 30. B E
2013 2012
s et
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
LhE=2 FET FET
Secured bank borrowings BEMETEE (i) 42,364 69,532
Secured margin facilities BEHAREE (i) - 523
Secured other borrowing B EMEE (iii) 489,000 -
Unsecured other borrowings EEFEMEE (iv) 15,000 -
546,364 70,055
Carrying amount repayable based on BIBFEEERAC EEE
scheduled repayment terms: AREE
Within one year —FR 4,272 1,224
Between one to two years —EMFE 4,272 4,203
Between two to five years MERF 12,816 12,610
Over five years AFLAE 26,004 24,518
47,364 42,555
Carrying amount of borrowings (shown B EZERKERIKER 2
under current liabilities) contain a EBEGIRREEE
repayment on demand clause: BN ZREE :
Repayable within one year AR —FENEERE 10,000 6,000
Not repayable within one year HEAR— ilﬁ%ﬁ g 489,000 21,500
499,000 27,500
Total borrowings EE4% 546,364 70,055
Less: Amount due within one year B YRREBEERE TN
shown under current liabilities —EWEIJ 308 (503,272) (28,724)
Amount shown under non-current FIRIERBBEE T Z
liabilities A 43,092 41,331
Notes: BEE
(i) Secured bank borrowings carry variable interest at local bank’s deposit rate in Taiwan plus (i) BRHETEE N B EEABITER

a spread ranging from 1.6% to 1.8% per annum (2012: carry variable interest at prime rate
in Hong Kong or local bank’s deposit rate in Taiwan plus a spread ranging from 1.6% to
5% per annum). The bank borrowings is secured by the leasehold land and buildings of the
Group of approximately HK$21,306,000 (2012: HK$159,123,000).

ESIESIEEN
BHE(—T——% -

P F1.6%E1.8% 2 BETT
REEREBERANERZ

FRETE - JIRBEARMRITE A EINE

FEI6%ES% 2 BAEZFENE)

BT

BEUAEE 2 HE L METIEER

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

Secured margin facilities represented securities margin financing received from securities
broking house repayable within one year and were secured by held-for-trading investments
of the Group as disclosed in note 41. Additional funds or collateral were required if the
balance of the borrowings exceeds the eligible margin value of securities pledged to the
broking house. The collateral could be sold at the broking house’s discretion to settle any
outstanding borrowings owed by the Group. The loans bore fixed interest of 7.236% per
annum.

The secured other borrowing, granted from independent third party, carries variable interest
at prime rate in Hong Kong plus 5% per annum. It is secured by the shares of Sun Mass, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, with the net asset value of Sun Mass at 31 March
2013 amounting to HK$814,123,000.

The unsecured other borrowings, granted from independent third parties, carry fixed
interest rate ranging from 5% to 12% per annum.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

T %8 /2 4921,306,0005 70 ( — & — — 4
159,123,000/ 7C) °

ERAFREENAEFCLTRIVER—
FREEZEFTREE  HUAKEZH
ﬁﬁzﬁéﬁrﬁ BREREMRTM PR

o BABRBREE FRELTZES
ZAﬁﬁ% EFeEE - AEREBEINESSR
IR - IR AT AZELTHERELE
LWEEASBERR Z ARREEEE - 28
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 14 July 2011, the Company issued 2,900,000,000
convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 5% per annum with
an initial conversion price of HK$0.5 each (subsequently
adjusted to HK$8.0 each following the capital reorganisation
of the Company effective on 26 April 2012 (Note 34(e))) for
a total proceed of HK$1,450,000,000 (the “Old Convertible
Bonds”). The Old Convertible Bonds are denominated in HKS.
The bonds entitle the holders to convert them into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time between the date of issue
of the Old Convertible Bonds and maturity date on 14 July
2014. If the Old Convertible Bonds have not been converted,
they will be redeemed on 14 July 2014 at the face value of
Old Convertible Bonds. Interest of 5% per annum is payable
on a semi-annually basis. The Company may redeem the Old
Convertible Bonds in whole or in part, at principal and interest
accrued up to redemption date, anytime before maturity.
This early redemption option is closely related to the host
liability component. The Old Convertible Bonds contain two
components, liability and equity components. The equity
component is presented in equity heading convertible bonds
equity reserve. The effective interest rate of the liability
component is approximately 15.5% per annum. The Old
Convertible Bonds have been fair valued as at 14 July 2011 on
the basis carried out at that date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group.

On initial recognition, the transaction cost incurred for
the issuance of the Old Convertible Bonds was allocated
into the liability component and the equity component
of approximately HK$40,635,000 and HK$13,154,000
respectively in proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds.

On 3 December 2012, the Company and all bondholders
entered into deeds pursuant to which the terms of the Old
Convertible Bonds were changed and subject to approval by
shareholders. The alteration of terms include: (i) the conversion
price changed to HK$0.20 per share; (ii) the Company, at
its sole and absolute discretion, will have a choice of either
paying the outstanding Old Convertible Bonds at its principal
together with accrued interest (“Outstanding Debt"”) by cash or
by issuing shares of which the number is determined based on
Outstanding Debt divided by the conversion price of HK$0.2;
(iii) the early redemption at bondholders’ option under certain
conditions are deleted in entirety.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d)

On 18 January 2013, the alteration of terms of the Old
Convertible Bonds were approved by shareholders on the
Company’s special general meeting. At that time, the equity
component of the Old Convertible Bonds were deeply out of
money and the fair value was insignificant when the market
price of the Company’s share at the time was HK$0.2 whereas
the conversion price amounts to HK$8.0 each. Upon the
alteration of terms, the Company extinguished the original
liability component and transfer the related equity component
to accumulated losses. The revised terms hereinafter referred
to as “New Convertible Bonds”, were measured at fair
value on 18 January 2013, which approximately equal to
HK$1,504,000,000 of which the fair value measurement
was carried out by American Appraisal China Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group.

The New Convertible Bonds contain equity component and
liability component. The liability component represents the
future coupon interest payments of 5% per annum carried at
amortised cost and its effective interest is 22% per annum.
The equity component of New Convertible Bonds contains
(a) the Company’s option to exchange the obligation to pay
the Outstanding Debt for a fixed number of shares of the
Company any time before maturity; and (b) the bondholder’s
option to convert the instruments into ordinary share of the
Company any time before the maturity. The fair value of the
New Convertible Bonds was determined based on the sum of
the fair value of the liability and equity components. The fair
value of the liability component was determined based on
present value of all future coupon payments discounted by the
prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments. And
the fair value of the equity component was determined based
on the stock price of the shares multiplied by the number of
shares to be delivered. On 18 January 2013, the difference
of HK$299,448,000 between the fair value of the New
Convertible Bonds and the liability of Old Convertible Bonds is
recognised in profit or loss and is included in other gains and
losses for the year ended 31 March 2013.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 HE_Z—=—F-A=1+—HILFE
31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Cont’d) 31. IR EH(Z)
The movement of the liability component of the convertible FRNORBEESaESLSEHEH
bonds during the year is set out below: FGR -
HK$'000
FET

Old Convertible Bonds EEURRES
Recognition of the liability component of WREAIURKRESZEE

Old Convertible Bonds iy 1,095,399
Transaction cost allocated to the liability PREEETBRESEE

component of Old Convertible Bonds P 2 X B (40,635)
Effective interest expense EREMBEMX 127,093
Interest paid 2RFE (35,937)
Converted into new ordinary shares HBihEgBR (22,793)
At 31 March 2012 R-ZE—=—F=A=+—H 1,123,127
Effective interest expense ERAER 152,381
Interest paid ERFE (70,957)
Extinguishment of the liability component of BIHERAMKRESEE

Old Convertible Bonds 2B (1,204,551)
At 31 March 2013 R_E—=F=A=+—H -
New Convertible Bonds FABRRES
Recognition of the liability component of the New R AR ES 2 BB

Convertible Bonds 87,327
Effective interest expense ERMERAX 3,307
Converted into new ordinary shares AT BR (13,559)
At 31 March 2013 - Obligation to pay coupon R-E—=F=A=+—H

—XNEEEZEE 77,075

In January 2013 and August 2011, the bond holder exercised RZB—=F—-AR_F—F)N\
the conversion options with the principal amount of B E&&5EBEEBEASRITEH TR
HK$219,000,000 and HK$31,000,000 of the New Convertible fEEAEANEBBEEASANS S
Bonds and Old Convertible Bonds, respectively. As at 31 March 219,000,000yt &% 31,000,000/&

2013, the outstanding principal amount of New Convertible T2 HWHRRERE RN —_E—=F

Bonds is HK$1,200,000,000 (2012: Old Convertible Bonds was =A=+—8 ' FHamiEEETZ R
HK$1,419,000,000). B8 A% %8/451,200,000,0007% 7T

T EFNBEREEA
1,419,000,0005& 7T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

32. CONSIDERATION BONDS - DEBT COMPONENT

As part of the consideration of the acquisition of remaining
interest in Sun Mass as detailed in note 36, the Company
issued consideration bonds with principal amount of
HK$1,750,000,000 on 4 January 2012. According to the terms
of the consideration bonds, the maturity date is two years
from the issue date. At the maturity date, the Company may
elect in its discretion to extend the term for another 5 years.
The consideration bonds bear interest at 2.5% per annum
for the first 2 years and 12.5% per annum afterwards for the
extension period of five years. Interest is payable quarterly
in arrears. The Company may also redeem part or all of the
consideration bonds any time during the repayment term at
principal amount and interest accrued up to redemption date.
The extension option and early redemption option (collectively
the derivative components) are considered not closely related
to the host debt component. The consideration bonds, both
the debt component and the derivative component, have been
valued as at 4 January 2012 on the basis carried out at that
date by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. The
effective interest rate of the consideration bonds is 23.554%
per annum. The consideration bonds are freely transferrable
by the holders at any time from the date of issue of the
consideration bonds.

The movement of the debt component of the consideration
bonds for the year is set out as below:
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32. REEZ - BB

E A 5E36 FTEE L U BB Sun Mass
B THZZRE—BD  AAF
RZE——F— HEE%H$£

1,750,000,0008 T2 K BEH
BIBREEHF 2GR - BIHBE A%
ITHHREET WA - REIEER - AR

B) 78 A 17 H B 15 R TE IR 12 15 4 B
ERBINSE - REBEHFEWMEFIR
FRR25%:TE  ERTERASF
HAR AR ER K12 5% 2  F B

BAREEFHRRIAN - ﬁ/&?‘ma
MNEARERREIEAEENEES
BRIz A SEOREREZS S0
DEEE o WHIRBE IR R E M
E(RBITESS D) WiR A 2

B EE D iﬁ#"f)ﬁﬁﬁ? ﬁfﬂ,\#
(BRI D ROTEZLD )R —

F— HEEEE@L’V%IWH%@Z
B A éﬁ%%%fﬁﬁﬁmﬁ%&@@
MAERARGEE REEEZER
Eﬂ?‘%zasm% 1&@?1%%%7
PRBESETTH BRI R
Hi5HE AEE -

RAEE  REEFEBHILHE
=YW

HK$’'000

FiB

At date of issue, at fair value RETHE - BATFE 1,189,805
Effective interest expense EREMEMX 63,170
Interest paid ERFE (376)
Early redemption during the year RERNEFEE (70,302)
As at 31 March 2012 RZE——F=A=+—H 1,182,297
Effective interest expense ERMERAX 211,304
Interest paid ERFLE (28,664)
Early redemptions during the year RFRNIRFED (591,763)
As at 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=A=+—H 773,174
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company early REBE-_ZT—=F=-H=+—H
redeemed part of the consideration bonds with principal LEFE  AXRFIRFELONARE
amount of HK$765,000,000 (2012: HK$100,000,000) % 765,000,000 0 (=& — =
and loss on early redemptions of HK$161,237,000 (2012: £ 100,000,000 /& Ju ) 2 & o
HK$29,698,000) is recognised as other gains and losses. At ﬁ{“‘f{/g\a’l} Iﬁﬁwhﬁrﬁ%@g%

the end of the reporting period, the principal amount of the
consideration bonds amounted to HK$885,000,000 (2012:
HK$1,650,000,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EERIIEEE

ATNRANFRERIMBEFEIEDHE
RIELERIBRENEZE)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Revaluation
of
investment Convertible
properties bonds Total
REMESER TBRRES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FAET
At 31 March 2011 NZE——F=H=+—H 635 - 635
Recognition of equity component BRAERBRESZER

of Old Convertible Bonds L5y - 58,509 58,509
Release on conversion of R E R A B E 5

Old Convertible Bonds AES - (1,250) (1,250)
Charge (credit) to profit or loss Mk E GEA) B (MEET)

(Note 11) 318 (11,324) (11,006)
At 31 March 2012 WZZE——F=A=+—H 953 45,935 46,888
Release on conversion of TR I 3T A R AR (B 5 B R BR

New Convertible Bonds - (479) (479)
Release on extinguishment of REEEE A RIRESFR

Old Convertible Bonds B - (31,677) (31,677)
Recognition of equity component BRI AR EH K #E &

of New Convertible Bonds ﬁlﬁﬁ} - 3,103 3,103
Charge (credit) to profit or loss kB GEA) Bz (FIEE1)

(Note 11) 200 (14,790) (14,590)
At 31 March 2013 WZZE—=F=A=+—H 1,153 2,092 3,245

EFER Zli’%lﬁﬁﬁrik%b

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated JiNE=

unused tax losses of approximately HK$1,163,606,000 FA %% 18 /&5 18 49 1,163,606,000 /&
(2012: HK$965,965,000) available for offset against future TL(ZZF— 4 : 965,965,000/5
profits, and deductible temporary differences arising from 7T ) A Tﬁﬁﬁ*%fﬁiﬂ&%% .
impairment losses in respect of property, plant and equipment BENZBREEREEREES
and intangible assets of approximately HK$1,744,975,000 B 5 5l Z'] 1,744,975,000 7 7T &
and HK$190,416,000 respectively (2012: nil). No deferred 190,416 000/5‘3575( T—ZF
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses and ) EAMANRERZE - MR

% F M BB A ) 2 R ok Bl B DA A
At B E LR TR 18 K Al R
= RERELENAEE - KA

deductible temporary differences due to unpredictability of
future profit streams of those subsidiaries. Included in tax loss
of approximately HK$18,400,000 (2012: HK$13,051,000)

arising from the PRC subsidiaries will expire in various dates [ ff & /A 7] £ 18,400,000/8 70 (=
up to 2018 (2012: 2017). Included in tax loss of approximately T — % 113,051,000 L) 2%
HK$101,047,000 (2012: HK$96,757,000) arising from the BEBER =2 /\Eﬂlaﬁﬂ ]
Taiwan subsidiaries will expire by the year of 2023 (2012: H(ZFE—=—F: —t4F) o

2022). Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. KERENBA TZ?R%QJ% B4
101,047,000 (= F — — 4 :
96,757,000 7T ) 2 B IS EE A&
R_B_=FFEIH(=FT—Z
F T F o HMBIAEER
R EAAEES o
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B
Number Nominal
of shares value
RBEE HiE
HK$'000
TET
Authorised: $E
At 1 April 2011, ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each R_E——FNA-8 "
iﬂ&o 0BT &Rk 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Increased on 7 June 2011 (Note a) AZE——FX AL BEM(Ma) 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
At 31 March 2012 N_E——F=A=1+—H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Increased on 26 April 2012 (Note d) NZE——FMMA -+, HEM(H5Ed) 180,000,000,000 -
At 31 March 2013, ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R =ZT—=F=A=1+—H"
FR0.01B T2 LB 200,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRME
At 1 April 2011 RZE——FMA—H 2,304,778,952 230,478
Issue of shares under placement (Note b) BEREZTRE (M) 2,200,000,000 220,000
Issue of shares upon conversion of REREFTRREFRETRN
Old Convertible Bonds (Note c) (FizEc) 62,000,000 6,200
At 31 March 2012 R-E-——F=A=1—H 4,566,778,952 456,678
Capital reorganisation (Note e) R EA (Fizte) (4,281,355,268) (453,824)
Issued of shares under placement (Note f) BB EXTRO () 432,496,440 4,325
Issue of shares upon conversion of REBRI A BREFEETRR
New Convertible Bonds (Note g) (MiEEg) 1,095,000,000 10,950
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options (Note h)  {T{E B B RS 21707 (Fith) 28,540,000 285
At 31 March 2013 RZE-—=%=A=+—H 1,841,460,124 18,414

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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34.

Notes:

(a)

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed in the circular dated, 20 May 2011, pursuant to a special general meeting
held on 7 June 2011, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
10,000,000,000 to 20,000,000,000 shares. The increased authorised shares rank pari passu
with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed in the announcement dated 15 July 2011, a total of 2,200,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.4 each were issued through placement to various placees, who and
whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent and not connected to the Group. The
gross proceeds of HK$880,000,000 were raised to finance the acquisition of interest in Sun
Mass as set out in note 36.

On 24 August 2011, 62,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were
issued upon conversion of the Old Convertible Bonds. Old Convertible Bonds with aggregate
principal amount of HK$31,000,000 were converted into 62,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.5 each.

Pursuant to a special general meeting passed on 25 April 2012, the number of
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from 20,000,000,000 shares to
200,000,000,000 shares, which was effective on 26 April 2012. The increased authorised
shares rank pari passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company.

The capital reorganisation effective on 26 April 2012 involved (i) every sixteen issued shares
of par value of HK$0.10 each be consolidated into one consolidated share of par value of
HK$1.60 each; (ii) the nominal value of each issued consolidated shares be reduced from par
value of HK$1.60 each to par value of HK$0.01 each by cancellation of the paid-up capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$1.59 on each issued consolidated share; (iii) each of the
authorised but unissued consolidated shares of HK$1.60 each shall be subdivided into 160
adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.01 each.

Save as disclosed in the announcement dated 19 June 2012, 8 November 2012 and 22
February 2013, 57,084,736, 68,501,684 and 306,910,020 ordinary shares were issued
at HK$0.24, HK$0.17 and HK$0.1 each, respectively through placement to various
placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent and not connected
to the Group with gross proceeds of approximately HK$13,701,000, HK$11,645,000 and
HK$30,691,000 respectively.

In January 2013, 1,095,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each were
issued upon conversion of the New Convertible Bonds. New Convertible Bonds with
aggregate principal amount of HK$219,000,000 were converted into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.2 each.

On 8 October 2012, 28,540,000 share options were exercised at the exercise price of
HK$0.204 with consideration of approximately HK$5,822,000.

34.
PfEE

(a)

(h)
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For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
2003 Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2003 Option
Scheme”), was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 21
August 2003, for the primary purpose of providing incentive
to directors and eligible employees and suppliers of goods or
services of the Group and which will expire 10 years after the
date of adoption. Under the 2003 Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may, at its discretion, grant options
to consultants and eligible employees, including executive
directors, of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
for shares in the Company at a price of (i) the closing price of
the shares of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
the date of grant of the option, which must be a trading day
or (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options or (iii)
the nominal value of the shares, whichever is the higher.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted (together with options exercised and
options then outstanding) under the 2003 Option Scheme shall
not, when aggregated with any shares subject to any other
schemes, exceed 30% of the total number of the issued share
of the Company from time to time. The shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all share options to be granted under
the 2003 Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue on
the day of approval by shareholders of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period cannot
exceed 1% of the total number of the issued share of the
Company. Upon acceptance of option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration of the grant. An
option may be exercised at any time during the validity period
of the options.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Option Deed

The Company had entered into option deeds on 29 August
2011 (the "Option Deed"”) with each of the grantees pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to grant share
options, which are convertible into the Company’s shares, to
the grantees for up to 730,000,000 new shares in aggregate,
for the purpose to incentivise and reward certain directors and
employees of Sun Mass and a consultant of the Group. The
Option Deed was approved in a special general meeting held
on 4 January 2012.

The exercise price is HK$0.40 per share option. The exercise
price was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations with each
of the grantees. The exercise price was determined after
consideration of a number of factors, including consideration
of the price at which the most recent share placing was
conducted by the Company, the recent trading price of the
Company’s shares, the appropriate reward to incentivise
the grantees to maintain their performance with or for the
Group, and the potential enhancement in shareholders’ value
and benefits to shareholders of their continued employment
or services provided to the Group given the expertise and
experience each of them have. The consideration payable by
each of the grantees for the grant of share option under the
Option Deed is HK$1.

The options granted under the Option Deed shall vest upon
the following dates, unless otherwise agreed between the
Company and the grantee and occurrence of any events as
mentioned below:

Timing of the vesting of the
share options

Amount of share options to be
vested

On the date which is 12 months
after the grant of the share
options to a grantee

25% of the share options granted to
the grantee

On the date which is 24 months
after the grant of the share
options to a grantee

A further 35% of the share options
granted to the grantee

On the date which is 36 months
after the grant of the share
options to a grantee

The remaining 40% of the share
options granted to the grantee

The share options which have vested shall be exercisable until
the expiry of the option period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)
Option Deed (Cont’d)

Notwithstanding the above vesting schedule, the share options
held by each of the grantees shall automatically vest in full and
become exercisable immediately upon the occurrence of any of
the following events:

(i) an initial public offering with respect to Sun Mass or Sun
Materials Technology Co., Ltd. (“Sun Materials”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Sun Mass, on any stock exchange or
in any place;

(i) the Company ceasing to directly or indirectly control at
least 50% of Sun Mass or Sun Materials;

(iii) the Company and the grantee agreeing that the grantee’s
share options shall vest in full; or

(iv) if at any time after the grant date a person or entity
acquires the legal and beneficial ownership of 30% or
more of the issued and outstanding ordinary shares of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements FEMEREXME

For the year ended 31 March 2013 BHE-_Z—=F=-A=+—ALFE

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d) 35. RBAAR(E)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TEREEFANRES EE NEM
share options held by directors, employees and consultants BTi 2 NN B BE AR A 2 &
during the year:

2003 Option scheme —EE-FERETE
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding  Adjusted upon
as at capital
1 April 2011 reorganisation Outstanding Share price
Name of and at Granted Exercise as at Exercise  at the date
category of participant Dateof grant 31 March 2012 26 April 2012 in2013 in2013 31 March 2013 price of grant
N-Z2--f
mA-B  R-B-Zf
R=%-2F BAZtiEH \Z%-zF
ZR=t-H §XE8 R-B-zF RCR-ZE ZP=1-8 RELEE
SREEHER ]k AR RE i fie HATE k@ ZRHER
(Note ) (Note iv) (Note vii) (Note ii) HK$
(Hiit) (H3kiv) (ghvii) (M) AT
(Note v)
(Ritiv)
Consultant (Note vi) 3 March 2010 625,000 (585,938) - - 39,062 6.336 6.336
ER (i) “E-ZE-A=A
Consultants (Note vii) 5 October 2012 - - 12,540,000  (12,540,000) - 0.204 0.204
B (Kt “E-Z%TARE
Staff 5 October 2012 - - 16,000,000  (16,000,000) - 0.204 0.204
| E-CETARA
625,000 (585,938) 28,540,000  (28,540,000) 39,062
Exercisable at the end of
the year
ARERTIE 625,000 39,062
Weighted average exercise price
MEFHHEE 0.3% 0.204 0.3%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Option Deed

35.
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BT FR (45 )

BRERE

Number of share options

BREHA
Adjusted
upon
capital Share
Outstanding Outstanding ~ reorganisation Outstanding price at
Name of as at Granted asat at Transfer Lapsed as at Exercise the date
category of participant Date of grant 1 April 2011 in 2012 1 April 2012 26 April 2012 in 2013 in2013 31 March 2013 price of grant
%% RZB-ZF  RIB-ZF WZ%-Z%
mA-8  R-B-Zf MA-A WA-tABR R=B-=F WZE-=F ZB=1-R RELAH
SEEENER REAH HRATE Bt HRTE  ERELHE B P HRATE 1%E ZRGER
(Note i) (Note v) (Note viii) HK$
k)] (W) (GE) AL
(Note v)
(M)
Executive directors
H7Es
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter 11 January 2012 - 10,000,000 10,000,000 (9,375,000 - - 625,000 6.400 0.220
ERERE —Z-ZE-A+-H
Mr. Eddie Woo 11 January 2012 - 115,000,000 115,000,000 (107,812,500) - - 7,187,500 6.400 0.220
HRREE —2--§¥-At-H
Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen 11 January 2012 - 450,000,000 450,000,000  (421,875,000) (28,125,000) - - 6.400 0.220
RUFEEL “E-CE-At-8
Non-executive director
FHTES
Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng (note ii) 11 January 2012 - 75,000,000 75,000,000 (70,312,500) - (4,687,500) - 6.400 0.220
ERE A () ZE-Z5-A+-H
Consultant (Note vi) 11 January 2012 - 50,000,000 50,000,000 (46,875,000 - - 3,125,000 6.400 0.220
IR “E-ZE-f+-R
Staff 11 January 2012 - 30,000,000 30,000,000 (28,125,000 28,125,000 - 30,000,000 6.400 0.220
E& —%--§-At-R
- 730,000,000 730,000,000 (684,375,000 - (4,687,500) 40,937,500
Exercisable at the end of the year
ARERTTER - 10,234,375
Weighted average exercise price
METHEE 0.400 0.400 6.400
Notes: P5E -
(i) The share options granted on 3 March 2010 are fully vested upon the date of grant and may (i) RIT—ZTF=A=-HAREZBERENEL
be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees at any time not later than 2 March HH2HEE  YAHSERARTERZ
2020. SCRF=A-RAZEARBRZ B
7 -
For the options granted on 11 January 2012, 25%, 35% and 40% shall vest upon 12 MR _E——F—A+—BREZEREMm
months and 24 months and 36 months after the date of grant respectively (the “Vesting 5B Z25%  35% NR40%BREEZ
Period”) and may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees from the date R HE%12EA - 24@AKR36EARE
the options are vested up to 10 January 2016. The directors estimate none of the above ([FEE]) - WAl B AR ARBRE RS
events which may cause the share options become vest in full and excisable immediately ZABME-_T - F-ATHRAZPIHBD
above will be occurred over the Vesting Period. 760 o P EIEF RSB BRAETERE &
AIENEITE - ERMAF DR EEE TSN
EHEIREELE -
The share options granted on 5 October 2012 are fully vested upon the dated of grant and RZZE——F+AREEHMNERERNTD
may be exercised in whole or in part by the respective grantees at any time not later than 4 HEEREEE  UAHSEBRAETER
October 2022. —BoF T AMBERBE2BRBHT
£ o
(i) Dr. Chuang, Henry Yueheng resigned as non-executive director of the Company with effect (ii) HREBLTH-T——F+—ATHBRE

from 14 November 2012. The unvested share options are lapsed on the same date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

In respect of the share options exercised for the year ended 31 March 2013, the weighted
average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.204.

Following the capital reorganisation passed in a special general meeting held on 25 April
2012, the exercise price of the share option under the 2003 Option Scheme are adjusted
from HK$0.396 per share to HK$6.336 per share, while the number of shares of the
Company to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the outstanding share options are
adjusted from 625,000 to approximately 39,062.

Following the capital reorganisation passed in a special general meeting held on 25 April
2012, the exercise price of the share option under the Option Deed would be adjusted from
HK$0.4 per share to HK$6.4 per share, while the total number of outstanding share options
would be adjusted from 730,000,000 to 45,625,000.

The consultant of the Company is responsible for development of the Group’s solar grade
polycrystalline silicon business with respect to structuring and legal matters, including
diligent maintenance of documentation, structuring, future fund raising and other related
matters.

The consultants of the Company are responsible for the Group’s financing and potential
corporate exercises. Total of 12,540,000 shares were granted to consultants under the 2003
Option Scheme on 5 October 2012.

Dr. Wu Yi-Shuen resigned as executive director of the Company with effect from 31
December 2012 and remains as staff of the Group.

The estimated fair values of the options granted on 5 October
2012 and 11 January 2012 are approximately HK$4,366,000
and HK$51,941,000 respectively.

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model of the
options granted in both years. The variables and assumptions
used in computing the fair value of the share options are based
on the directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. The
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BisE : (48)

iy MR-E—Z=F=ZF=+—HBHIFETFEZ
BRENS  WTEBSZMEFSRES
0.204387T °

vy, R-ZE——FWHA-+HBAETZREER
AEBBRAEMRE  — T = FHERES
BT ZBBIRETEEEHSR0.396E LA
BEFHR6.336/8T 0 MARBRKRITHERE
PRI T B HE T AL R BT 2 IR BB
625,000f% FHEE = 4739,0620% °

v REF-—FEHA-+ARSBITZERES
SRBEAEER - BREREATZ
BEETEESHTR0ABTARESR
6.4/ 7T+ AR AIARTT 62 I AR HE A2 81
730,000,000 F§#£ £45,625,00017

(vi) ARRZERAAERERRAREABGERS
HEBMFhz2ER1NEREE  BEE
BEEXE  2H - KRRBAREMBERAE
o

(i) ARAREHEEAEENTBREELEE
BN _T——F+ARB RE_TT=
FRERERTE - FERM A L% 12,540,0000%

Bt
(viiy RAFELH-_ZT-—_F+_A=+—-HE
BHEARRMITES BNEEAEERE

RZE——F+AARER=ZF—=
F—A+— AR ZERE 2G5
NFED BI4) AE4,366,0008 7T &
51,941,000/ T ©

R EF R 2 BRE R TE
TOERA IRRALRT HAS L o ARG

BREN T EZEZMRERIIR
BESZ&EMAMEL - BRUE
ZEBEEETIBBRRZ TRZH

inputs into the model were as follows: MBRTEE) - ZER 7 ABIELN
B

5 October 2012 11 January 2012

—ET-CF —ET-CF

+AERH —H+—H

Grant date share price it B AR (B HK$0.20478 7T HK$0.227 7T

Exercise price 11158 HK$0.2047& 7T HK$0.478 7T

Option life PR 5 10 years® 1 to 3 years 15234

Expected volatility TEHTR 8 83.251% 62.92%

Expected dividend yield ?ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁx,uﬂﬁﬁéﬁ Nil £ Nil £

Risk-free interest rate 42 [ o | R 0.469% 0.685%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Cont’d)

Option life is contractual life of the share options. For
assessing fair values of the three tranches of share options,
considerations of respective vesting period are taking into
account into the valuation.

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous ten
years and four years for share options granted on 5 October
2012 and 11 January 2012 respectively.

The Group recognised the total expense of approximately
HK$29,315,000 for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
HK$6,345,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, share options were
granted to individuals who rendered consultancy services in
respect of financing and potential corporate exercises for
the Group. The Group granted share options to them for
recognising their services similar to those rendered by other
employees. In the opinion of the directors, the consultancy
services rendered by the consultants are similar to those
rendered by the employees. Therefore, the fair value of the
share options granted to the consultants was meausred by
the same accounting policies as that of the employees in
accordance with HKFRS 2.

36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Company acquired
100% interest in Sun Mass. The acquisition arrangement
consisted of two tranches as follows:

On 31 December 2010, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (“the
Vendor"), pursuant to which the Company acquired 50.1%
equity interest in Sun Mass for a total cash consideration of
US$150,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,170,000,000). The
transaction was completed on 15 July 2011. The Company
also has an option to acquire the remaining 49.9% interest
in Sun Mass within the period from 12 months to 36 months
after the completion date, at a consideration to be determined
with reference to the business valuation of Sun Mass by an
independent valuer jointly appointed by the Company and the
Vendor at that time.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF
A SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d)

On 12 September 2011, the Company acquired the remaining
49.9% interest in Sun Mass by means of cash consideration
of HK$750,000,000 and issuance of consideration bonds with
principal amount of HK$1,750,000,000. The transaction was
completed on 4 January 2012. The fair values of the debt and
derivative component of consideration bonds were determined
by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group at the date
of acquisition.

The principal assets of Sun Mass are property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset for manufacturing solar grade
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BEE(E)
AN

R—ZEFE——FNLA+=ZH &
7 # 3 & 1 & 750,000,000 & 7T
N B 1T R4 %8 1,750,000,000 7T
ZREE%HQ%SW Mass > # T~
49.9%HE - AR HN_FT——F
—AMNHEZK - REEHFZEH K
PTHEER D 2 A E TR U EE B i/
EAREEMERE BISERE
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Sun MassZ T EEE RN & & H
;_j:ﬁ;,% ERZREEZYE  BENR

polycrystalline silicon in Taiwan. The transaction was accounted ﬁLA&ﬂﬁ/éﬁ? °c AR HIERI
for as acquisition of assets. BEEEANR-
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration WeERE 1,920,000
Consideration bonds, at fair value: REGES  BATE:
— Debt component —fEFE D 1,189,805
— Derivative component —ITHEE D (409,753)
Total consideration BRE 2,700,052
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at RUWEBB BERBEER
date of acquisition are as follows: EEREEWT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 229,145
Intangible asset BILEE 2,494,113
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEY % RE N &Y
plant and equipment =ENEIER 3,719
Rental deposits ek 545
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIIRITFR 5,654
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  H{th gl k18 - 514 M8 RIB 763
Bank balances and cash fﬁﬂ e 91,478
Other payables and accrued charges EI{’@KEH%KIE&J@%E% (1,579)
Borrowings BgE (123,786)
Net assets acquired B FEE 2,700,052
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary: Yk — BB AR 2R LML FE -
Cash consideration paid BENESRE 1,920,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BEWERE RERIRESIAE (91,478)
1,828,522
Acquisition-related costs, representing professional fee Hﬁ( BHEEAAA (KRB ZEEGH

incurred for preparation of announcement and circular in
relation to the acquisition, amounting to HK$17,602,000
have been recognised as other expenses for the year ended 31
March 2012.

% = 18
N RBRHEEZCEEXEER)
17602000,%75556%22%:;
——#=HA=+—H
HA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 19 November 2012, the Company and Mega Soar
Holdings Limited (“Mega Soar”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a conditional agreement
(the “Agreement”) with Chung Nam Finance Limited
("Chung Nam”), an independent third party. Pursuant to
the Agreement, Mega Soar agreed to sell and Chung Nam
agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Smart
Style Investment Limited (“Smart Style”) and Smart Direct
Investments Limited (“Smart Direct”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Smart Style (collectively known as “Smart Style
Group”) for a total consideration of HK$65,000,000, which
represented consideration of HK$88,000,000 set out in the
Agreement less mortgage loan outstanding at completion date
amounting to HK$23,000,000. The transaction of disposal
of Smart Style Group was completed on 8 January 2013
after the special general meeting held on the same date.
The consideration payable to the Company was set off with
the outstanding borrowings of HK$65,000,000 owed by the
Company to Chung Nam on the date of completion.
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R-_ZE——F+—A+NB AR
T&Kﬂ? RER AT ([ KRFIE
Bl AARNE2ENBE AR )H
FREISMEERAR(HE] -
— BB E=F )N B IE G BE
([#ZWmzE]) - BZzthsE - KT
f& R & L E MR 2 E Smart
Style Investment Limited ([ Smart
Style ) X B EBR AR ([ 8%
&+ Smart SterE’JiléfW%/A_T)
(%78 Smart Style£ @ )& 2 %0

BITIRAN - 8 1&1“57%65,000,000
5%57_5 L RIEZ BRI RE
88,000,000 7L R A SE AL B Hi K
B &% 8 5 523,000,0007% JT °
tH&Smart Style SERNR SN =F
—=F—ANBERBRTHRE
BRIXKZRTK - BN FARFH
REERNRFRTKBEPLERFTE
H) & 8 18 & B 65,000,000 7T K
55 o

HK$'000
THERT

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which KREZHENEENABBREDT

control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 49,394
Investment properties KEME 36,170
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAMEWHIA - 5] KB HKIE 211
Bank balances and cash BITEB RIS 49
Other payables and accrued charges HMENRIBERETER (49)
Bank borrowing RITEE (23,000)
Net assets FEE 62,775
Gain on disposal of Smart Style Group: & Smart Stylef B Uk 25
Total consideration BMRE 65,000
Transaction cost directly attributable to the disposal & & # FE (5 £ 22 5 B AN (1,200)
Carrying amounts of net assets of the Smart Smart StylefR BS & E/REIE

Style Group (62,775)
Gain on disposal HE k= 1,025

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



e MEERRME

BE-_Z—=F=A=1+—HIFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 37. HEKB AT (£&)

HERIRERLFEEHY T

Net cash outflows from the disposal are as follow:

HK$'000
FET
Total consideration BMRE 65,000
Set off with the outstanding borrowing owed BHEARBGERFPENREREE
by the Company to Chung Nam (65,000)
Payment for transaction cost directly attributable #&1+ & H#E EIHHI X SR A
to the disposal (1,200)
Bank balances of the Smart Style Group H & Smart StylesE B K IR1T45
upon disposal (49)
Net cash outflows from the disposal HEMIRE R FEE (1,249)
38. COMMITMENTS 38. HifE
Operating Lease Commitment REHERIE
The Group as lessee KEEFEBAEN

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases during

FARBEEHEXN 2 HEHE

the year: N
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FET
Office equipment MAEHRME 83 68
Office premises NEL Y/ 5,013 4,782
Leasehold land ME i 7,197 4,301
Motor vehicles RE 465 318
12,758 9,469

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

WEHK Zli’ilffE}FTT}%ﬁﬁ
CEFE 2 KRR EERE R REH
Ha T -

2013 2012

—_ZE—= —ET——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET AT

Within one year —iW 14,590 9,445
In the second to fifth year F_EEFRF 46,622 33,965
Over five years AR F 74,756 68,022
135,968 111,432
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

38. COMMITMENTS (Cont’d)
Operating Lease Commitment (Cont’d)
The Group as lessee (Cont’d)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises, office equipment,
leasehold land and motor vehicles. Leases are negotiated
for one to twenty years with fixed monthly rentals over the
lease term, in which total commitment of HK$124,325,000
(2012: HK$109,829,000) are related to Sun Mass operated in
Taiwan which lease is secured by a bank deposit as disclosed in
note 22.

The Group as lessor

All of the properties held have a committed tenant for five
years from the commencement of the lease term.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

e MEERRME
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38. RIE(E)

BREHERE &)

ANEEEREAAN (B)

EHENRIAEERE S T 9
NEYE - WAERE - HELH
NMAERMNzEE  c AEEWHEZ
HEA—Z—+F PHEEHRK
FAXNEEMRS - Hf - HAE
124,325,000 (=& — —4F .
109,829,000/8 T ) 2 & & & 1B 1Y
Sun MassE - HMAERIETTHE
IR - FFIBRMIFE22H 55 -

A& B RS A

FTEREMERNHERRKRE AT
BHBEAGHERP

RI|EHR - AEBEDEBFH T

with a tenant for the following future minimum lease payments: BB RIEMREETY
2013 2012
—E—-= —FE—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Within one year —FRN 1,095 1,356
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EERLF(BREEMTE) 2,738 4,745
3,833 6,101
Capital Commitment B HE
2013 2012
—E—= —FE—_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of MWIEYE - BE LB
acquisition of property, plant and ERTHERRERE BB HE
equipment contracted for but not EH BB E AR
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 10,763 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

39. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme
Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of the trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or Switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution
is matched by the employee. The Group follows the minimum
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’ relevant
aggregated income with a cap of HK$1,250 per employee per
month since 1 June 2012 (previously HK$1,000 per employee
per month before 1 June 2012).

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group based on the employee’s basic
salary, at rates depending on the length of service with the
Group.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
a state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the
PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to
make contributions to the state retirement schemes in the PRC
based on certain percentage of the monthly salaries of their
current employees to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specific contributions.

The employees employed in the Taiwan are members of the
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the
Taiwan government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ payroll to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to
make the required contributions under the scheme.

The employer’s contribution to the MPF Schemes and various
benefits schemes in the PRC and Taiwan is disclosed in notes 12
and 13.

The contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme,
ORSO Scheme and state retirement schemes are charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when
employees have rendered service to the Group.

e MEERRME
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39. RKBRIFHE

AR EHETT —ARIRB SR INGTE]
R B 2 7 B ARET 8l ([ B R R
Watgl DR 22T E 4+~ A
1T —IRRBERFIERTE S 5 SNED
PRIz SR E nTE Rt 8l ([ RiE
atdl]) - ZFFTEIC BEEEAREE
ZEEDRTAR  FRARFFLAR
PREIE o £ % - NREEFHBIRAL
Al - EEERAGTEINE 2 BB A
EEREB2NBEENRTEHER
2B MR _TTTF
T - A—BRZEMAKREE 23
BEHELINABTESEE -

REEFBESHE 2K B RRIE
SEEERBBEEH M 2 5% R
HES ZHZMER - BT ——F
NA—BEE AEBKRBEBLE
HIEBHBEKRAS% 2 HIEMHR
HME - FBRATATXEE250
Br(—ZE——FXA—HHEA
FZEE1,00087T) °

BB MR B E AR BEERGT
SRR - HADRIBEE 2 E
AR T ERGAEE 2 F 5
AAEZADHEL -

REFE AR 2 EEHZSEFEIK
FE 2 BIRE B RIRER S -
BRETBNEARAZIRAREE A
FreaTaN  MRBEBEREE
BIREHMETSHF  AEREHN 2
o NSRBI HTR KRR NG 82 ME—
BEEREHEFEMRR -

8 81988 &R
53 1512 o &

o NS EETRRAERIGT &) 2 ME—
BEREHRE R

BEzBE®TE  URFABEKE
& 2 Z AR A FE 2 B MR
12513355 -

AEEFBRIED TS - BESRINGT
&) KB SR IRET EIE 2 HEUIR
BEERASERERBFEGRAS
EARKRAER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

e MEERRME
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40. BEALXR S

The Group entered into the following transactions with related NEFDERE A TETATL
parties: 5
2013 2012
—EBE-—=F —ZE—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Rental expenses paid to the following X FUUTEEA LTS
related parties Fx
(a) Non-controlling shareholder of a a) KINB AR BEAFE N
subsidiary with significant influence S EYNGIES Y E g
over the subsidiary
(i) Dongguan City Qiao Guang () REMBAEESEE
Industrial Group Company YNE] 654 1,319
(b) Companies in which a key (b) "EBEEE %:IE}\,%
management personnel of the BiERER D
Group has controlling interest
(i) Techford Development Limited (i) Techford
Development Limited 120 120
(i) Mascotte Investments Limited (i) FHEKREBRAT 491 774
1,265 2,213

At the end of the reporting period, included in note 38 are
non-cancellable operating leases entered with companies
in which a key management personnel of the Group has
controlling interest which fall due as follows:

R|ER > RIFEAEEETRE

12 A B B A5 PRI 2580 2 AT S A0
PARRH G EHE (BRI RE38)
BEBE RIS

2013 2012

—Eg-= —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THETT

Within one year —FR 576 623
In the second to fifth year F_EEFRF 133 -
709 623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

e MEERRME
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40. BEALTR B (&)
FEEEANSFH

FRAZEENEMTEEEAEH
Bian T

2013 2012

—B-=F =—ZE——-%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Short-term benefits %2 HifE A 17,031 14,301
Post-employment benefits BEER 2 1R A 87 52
Share based payments RN 21,901 5,171
39,019 19,524

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined
by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

41. PLEDGE OF ASSET

The following assets of the Group were pledged to banks and
securities brokers house to secure credit facilities:

ESIREBITBAR ZHM )%
ZEG2REARREMSBER
BT

41. EEEH

AREE NEED AR TIRITSE
FIRERLITAERB B &R

2013 2012

—E-= —E——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Held-for-trading investments BFEEBIRE - 154,795
Leasehold land and buildings HE L RIEF 21,306 159,123
21,306 313,918
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

42. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

In January 2013, the bond holders of New Convertible Bonds
exercised the conversion options with the principal amount of
HK$219,000,000 to convert into 1,095,000,000 shares of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group has entered
into the following major non-cash transactions:

(1) In August 2011, a bond holder of Old Convertible Bonds
exercised the conversion options with the principal
amount of HK$31,000,000 to convert into 62,000,000
shares of the Company.

(2) As detailed in note 36, part of the purchase consideration
of 49.9% equity interest in Sun Mass was satisfied by the
issuance of consideration bonds with principal amount of
HK$1,750,000,000.

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 11 April 2013, the Company announced that it has entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with Hao Tian Resources
Group Limited (“Hao Tian”), whereby the Company agreed to
sell, and Hao Tian agreed to purchase the 531,575 shares of a
single class of no par value of Sun Mass Funding Corporation,
representing approximately 5.82% of the issued share
capital, for a consideration of HK$50,000,000. The difference
between the consideration and share of net assets of Sun
Mass Funding Corporation (i.e. approximately HK$53,000,000)
of approximately HK$3,000,000 will be transferred to other
reserve. The transaction has been completed at the date of this
report.

On 18 April 2013, the shareholders of the Company passed an
ordinary resolution in a special general meeting to issue rights
share on the basis of four rights shares for every existing share
held at subscription price of HK$0.07 per rights share (the
“Rights Issue”) and 7,365,840,496 rights shares will be issued
by the Company upon the completion of the Rights Issue. The
Rights Issue is completed on 20 May 2013. The gross proceeds
from the Rights Issue of approximately HK$515,609,000
and transaction costs attributable to the Rights Issue of
approximately HK$20,733,000 are recognised in equity.

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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42. TEFBRERS

MR_E—=%F—8  #FaBRKRE
AZEBEEBBEATEASES
219,000,000 ;T 2 Bk - LA
& % 4 1,095,000,000 J% A A T
f&fn o

HE_T——F=-_HA=+—8H1L
FE > EBDIIVUATEIEIES
x5

(1Y RZZE—FNA > EF0E
BREHFFEANTELRAEEA
31,000,000 % JT 2 & # #E A
# #2 /5 62,000,000 B% A 7 &

,T/\ °

(2) WM FE36FTEE AL - KB
Sun Mass & # 49.9% <
MORBIIANBEITEREE
1,750,000,0007 7t 2 B %
At o

43, {EHIREE

MR-ZZE—=FWMA+—H  &AQ7A
B HEEREREEEGR AR
(T2XDFLEEWHZ  Hilt
AARRAEHERZXBREREE
Sun Mass Funding CorporationZ
BRI EEERN531,5750% -
B BITIRAA5.82% @ RE A
50,000,000/ 7T » X B & 5 Sun
Mass Funding Corporation®& &%
{8 (4753,000,000/8 70 ) B = 5 49
3,000,00078 7T + #5828 £ = H 4 {7
g cHEARERH  XFEET

R-ZZFE—=FMNA+/\B ' KAQA]
BRI EREFRAE F@BE— 1A
BRER  BITHBERD  BEA
BEHE —BRIR AR EZEIT R
0.078 L (T ) - M %
& » AN/A7A)#5%177,365,840,496
BREBESD - HER_TE—=F
FAZT+HREK - #IRZFTBER
TE 48 58 49 /515,609,000 7 7T
UREREENR KA A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
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44, A RRIEEM B AR FH1E

COMPANY
Issued and fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/ Attributable
incorporation or registered and equity
registration/ contributed interest held
Name operation capital by the Group Principal activities
ERTRAR
AL LERRA/ AEEfE -
£R B/ EEME AR EHRE EiERTER IERH
2013 2012
“E-ZF %
Direct subsidiaries
EZHEAA
Mascotte Group Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Investment holding
LERAHE/BE 100%7 REHR
Sun Mass Corporation* British Virgin Islands - 100% - Investment holding
(Note d)(FifzEd) EERAES RERRK
Sun Mass Funding Corporation® British Virgin Islands - 100% - Investment holding
(Note d)(FitzEd) RERAES RERRK
Mega Soar Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ZEBRUES B RERR
Sun Mass Energy Limited* British Virgin Islands NT$1,554,709,165 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note ¢)(HifEc) XBRAES #1A%1,554,709, 1657 RERK
Indirect subsidiaries
AEHEAR
Crown Emerald Investments British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong - 100% 100%  Trading of investments
Limited® ERERHE/EH REEE
Dongguan Tak Ya Leather Goods ~ The PRC HK$10,400,000 76.9% 76.9%  Manufacture of
Manufactory Limited" e 10,400,0007 7T accessories for
(Notes a and b) photographic,
REERNEHpHARLA electrical and
(Fzakb) multimedia products
BEREERR
ETREREER
Greatest Splendour Investment British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong Us$100 100% 100%  Inactive
Limited? RBRAHS/BA 100%7T EEex
Mascotte Industrial Associates British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$4 100% 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited EBRAHE/ B 4ET REHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2013

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
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44. KPR EEH B AR FH1E

COMPANY (Cont’d) (4&)
Issued and fully
paid ordinary
Place of share capital/ Attributable
incorporation or registered and equity
registration/ contributed interest held
Name operation capital by the Group Principal activities
ERTREAR
AL LRERRA/ AEEfE
£R B/ EEME AR EARE EirRARR IERH
2013 2012
§-zf -3
Mascotte Industrial Associates Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading of accessories
(Hong Kong) Limited Bk 28T for photographic,
54 (B%) ARATA electrical and
multimedia products
EEREERLY
ETRSERER
Mascotte Zhi Hao Photographic The PRC US$4,180,000 90% 90%  Property holding
Equipment (Hui Zhou) Co. Ltd." 4,180,000% 7 and manufacture
(Note a) of accessories for
SHESRRESEN (BM) photographic,
BRAR (Mita) electrical and
multimedia products
RENERRERRE
miclt - EFRSE
BEM
Mascotte Hui Zhou Limited® British Virgin Islands/The PRC US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRIHE/ T 1% RERRK
Orient Stone Limited British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERELHE/EH B RERR
Tak Ya Leather Goods Manufactory  British Virgin Islands/The PRC US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited EERNEHS/ TH ESp RE2RK
ERRAHRRERAT
Time Beyond Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Loan financing
BERRLT ; 1,000,000 7T EXRE
Sun Mass Energy Limited* British Virgin Islands NT$1,554,709,165 100% 100%  Investment holding
(Note ¢)(Hf3Ec) RERAEE #1A%1,554,709, 1657 RARK
Lution International Holdings Co. Ltd.  Taiwan NT$500,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
BAERRNBRAT nig # & 8500,000,0007 REARRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2013

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation or
registration/

Name operation
AUV
£R B/ EEME

Issued and fully
paid ordinary
share capital/

registered and
contributed
capital
ERTRAR
LERRA/
AR EARE

—E-=E

e MEERRME
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44. KPR EEH B AR FH1E

(&)

Attributable
equity
interest held
by the Group

ARBE
ElERAER
2013 2012

“F-CF

Principal activities

IBXRE

Sun Materials Technology Co., Ltd. ~ Taiwan
LR R ARAR] L

Smart Direct Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong
(Note e) e
HEREARAA (HTe)

# No registered Chinese name.
For identification only.

(a) These companies are sino-foreign equity joint ventures.

NT$1,000,000,000
741 000,000,007

HKS 1
18T

(b) Dongguan Tak Ya Leather Goods Manufactory Limited was established by the Group with an

independent party in the PRC. Under various agreements entered into with the PRC party,

the Group is entitled to all of the profits derived from its operations up to 31 December

2016.

(o) There is a series of capitalisation during the year ended 31 March 2013, while the share
capital of the company increased from NT$900,000,000 to NT$1,554,709,165.

(d) These companies are newly incorporated during the year ended 31 March 2013.

(e) The company was disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2013.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities in issue at any
time during the years ended 31 March 2013 and 2012.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

100% 100%

- 100%

I AEEEA A SR -

A 2R -

Manufacture of solar
grade polycrystalline
silicon

RERGE RS &k

Property investment

MERE

(@) ZERARTIIGEGERAT -

(b) REEENAHDHERQFHAERE—
BIYE=FHEDEKYL - RIFETEFET

RIS 2 BUR

CAEKETREEZZT N

FTZA=T-RALTARBEEBMAEZ

2EREF

(0 BE-ZT-—=F=ZA=+—BHLFE"

EIT—RINEARAR

AR R AR

AN | 37 & # 900,000,000 JT 1 A1 = H &

1,554,709,1657T °

@) HEATARBE-—T-=F=A=f—AL

FREAFEMAKL -

(e) ARNEZE
ERHE

REE_T—=Fk_
A=+—RHIEFEA -

—E—=F=A=+—HItF

T —_F=
ME&WW

BRREITIEERE
EE=ERG LRSI ARBZE

2] B A A

 BIAREE 2 RFEF X

ii%i%%éi%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁﬂ
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Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
published audited financial statements, is set out below.

AFEMBGBRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEE

AEEBEDBEMBFEEZEEN
BEERBEME(READ NBE
BEZMBHRER)EINWT

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZE-=F —_T——F —F—F _T-TF _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THERT FAET FAT FET FAT
RESULTS S
Turnover R 166,456 204,475 199,347 153,728 221,118
(Loss) profit before tax BEiAT(BE) %M (3,048,840) (629,886) (240,993) 110,507  (343,832)
Income tax credit (expense) FTEFIA (FZ) 15,654 9,096 (3,320) (1,657) (1,458)
(Loss) profit for the year FEE(ER)SF (3,033,186) (620,790) (244,313) 108,850  (345,290)
Attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIEZZEUN (3,033,486) (621,254) (244,800) 108,631 (345,273)
Non-controlling interests e 300 464 487 219 (17)
(3,033,186) (620,790) (244,313) 108,850  (345,290)
As at 31 March
MN=A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZE--F —_T——F —FT—F _T-FTF _TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FTHERT FAT FAT FHETT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES YERARE
Total assets BERE 1,252,927 3,720,284 810,187 699,090 393,070
Total liabilities BERE (1,488,814) (2,489,076)  (53,217)  (44,172)  (33,349)
(235,887) 1,231,208 756,970 654,918 359,721
Equity attributable to AN ZEUN
owners of the Company EihHER (241,181) 1,226,283 752,654 651,254 356,276
Non-controlling interest IR S 5,294 4,925 4,316 3,664 3,445
(235,887) 1,231,208 756,970 654,918 359,721
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Other Information Hfth = H

Details of the statement of financial position of the Company NERREE R AR RE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: BT

2013 2012

—EB-= —E——4F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Assets and liabilities EEREE

Investment in subsidiaries HERW B AR 1,043,963 2,789,313

Amounts due from subsidiaries A R EYNGI B 353 496,439

Other assets Hi&EE 288,397 449,753

Other liabilities HiBaE (1,476,438) (2,416,893)
(143,725) 1,318,612

Capital and reserves EXRI#E

Share capital A% 2 18,414 456,678

Reserves M (162,139) 861,934

(143,725) 1,318,612
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Other Information

Htt=ZH

Movement of the Company’s reserve are disclosed as follows: RATRHEELEIRTBELT -
Convertible Share
Share  bonds equity  Contribution options  Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TaRES
R EE EifE HABH BRESE ZitEE b
(Note)
(Fi&)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL TAL THL TAL TAL
t 1 April 2011 W-E-—E@A—-H 889,857 - 72,201 55 (515,010) 447,103
Loss for the year EERHB - - - - (516,456) (516,456)
Issue of new shares under BERERTHRG
placement 660,000 - - - - 660,000
Transaction costs attributable to issue of 47 {7 (G 2
shares RAMA (35,839) - - - - (35,839)
Recognition of equity component of ZaakEF
convertible bonds i - 354,60 - - - 354,601
Transaction costs allocated in PREETRRERERT D
equity component of Old LRBRE
Convertible Bonds - (13,154) - - - (13,154)
Deferred tax liabilities on ERETARERERT D
recognition of equity LERHEAR
component of Old Convertible
Bonds - (58,509) - - - (58,509)
Release of deferred tax RERETHREFRRER
liabilities on conversion of Old EEHBEE
Convertible Bonds - 1,250 - - - 1,250
Conversion of Old Convertible Bonds ~ EHER#HARES 24173 (7,580) - - - 16,593
Recognition of equity-settled EANEREE I RIVEE
share-based payment - - - 6,345 - 6,345
At 31 March 2012 R-2-—%=R=1-H 1,538,191 276,608 72,201 6400 (1,031,466) 861,934
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - (3,010,562) (3,010,562)
Issue for new shares under RERERTHRD
placement 51,712 - - - - 51,712
Issue of shares upon exercise of share  17{FERER 21T
options 9,903 - - (4,366) - 5,537
Transaction costs attributable to issue of B/ A 2 %X BELA
shares (2,233) - - - - (2,233)
Recognition of equity component BRATRRES ERTD
of Convertible Bonds - 1,416,672 - - - 1,416,672
Capital reorganisation ErEHh - - 453,824 - - 453,824
Transferred to set off accumulated losses BRI R E R - - (453,824) - 453,824 -
Conversion of New Convertible Bonds ~ E#F A ARES 221,609 (219,000) - - - 2,609
Release of deferred tax liabilities on RERFTHREFRER
conversion of New Convertible Bonds ~ BREREEE - 479 - = - 479
Release of deferred tax liabilities upon  FHE A BIRERRER
extinguishment of Old Convertible EEHBRR
Bonds - 31,677 - - - 31,677
Deferred tax liabilties on recognition of B ARk EH 2 EHYDH
equity component of New Convertible ~ ZEEHEEE
Bonds - (3,103) - - - (3,103)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based BZUERLEE 7 RHHF
payment - - - 29,315 - 29,315
Transfer to accumulated losses upon — FHEEAAGEFBEEE
extinguishment of Old Convertible 23R
Bonds - (305,182) - - 305,182 -
At 31 March 2013 R-F-=F=A=+-H 1,819,182 1,198,151 72,201 31,349 (3,283,022) (162,139)
Note: The contributed surplus represents the difference between the consolidated shareholder’s MisE - BMABBIEARTMBRRRARREMRE

funds of the Company’s subsidiary at the date on which the Company reorganisation
become effective and the nominal amount of the share capital of the Company issued under

the Company reorganisation on 5 September 1997.
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Particulars of Investment Properties

Location

i Bh

Lease term

HH

REMRER

Group’s interest Type

A5 2 5

PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA
PEARKME

A portion of the factory complex
situated at Lot No. 14-03-128 and
14-03-129

Tang Beiyuan Village

Dushi Administrative Zone
Pingtan Zhen

Huiyang County

Huizhou

Guangdong Province

BRE

BN

FEE

BAERE

EEEMN
14-03-1285% ;2 14-03-1295%
HEE 2 TR G

BEEME D

Units 1502 and 1503 on level 15
Pacific Trade Building

No. 4028 Jia Bin Road

Luohu District

Shenzhen
Guangdong Province
ERE

I

78 1 IR

= E 40285
KEFEERNE
15#1502 % 1503 %

Medium-term lease

T 49

Medium-term lease

T KT

90% Commercial

[GES

100% Commercial

[GES

SHELEHARQA FH 2013



Corporate Information

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Peter Temple Whitelam (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Yuen Wa Peter (Managing Director)
Mr. Eddie Woo

Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip

Mr. Lau King Hang

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Frank H. Miu

Dr. Agustin V. Que

Mr. Robert James laia |l

Mr. Hung Cho Sing

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Suen Yick Lun Philip

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
1st Floor, Po Chai Industrial Building

28 Wong Chuk Hang Road

Aberdeen, Hong Kong

Room 2902, 29th Floor, China United Centre
28 Marble Road
North Point, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS

Bermuda

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Hong Kong

Tricor Secretaries Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountant

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/mascotte/index.htm

Mascotte Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

LAFEH

2

PITEE

Peter Temple Whitelam%c 4 (/%)
ELES A (EFREHE)

HARR S

Bt

2Bt

BUFBITEE
Agustin V. Quel& £
Robert James laia lI5c 4
AR E A

REHE
Fasit

T EE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

EBEET
= ILE 2857
RBEITEKRNE1E

EHx&1 A
BEE285
FEEF 2012002 F

RDBFERE
BRE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

&8
SEREBEEARAT
)
SEAER28%
S 261

FEERBIT
FE LBESRITERAR]

B ED
2 « B BT
BLE B

84k

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/mascotte/index.htm



MASCOTTE HOLDINGS LIMITED

SHMEEEFERA T



	Cover

	Contents
	Chairman’s Statement
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Profile of Directors and Senior Management

	Corporate Governance Report
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five Years Financial Summary
	Other Information
	Particulars of Investment Properties
	Corporate Information
	Back Cover



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (Japan Color 2001 Coated)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /sRGB
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness false
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
    /CFangSong-Light
    /CGuLi-Bold
    /CGuYin-Bold
    /CHei-UltraBold
    /CHei2-Bold
    /CHei2-Xbold
    /CHei3-Bold
    /CJNgai-Bold
    /CKan-Xbold
    /CNganKai-Bold
    /CO2Yuen-XboldOutline
    /COYuen-Xbold
    /COYuen-XboldOutline
    /CPo-Bold
    /CPo3-Bold
    /CSong3-Medium
    /CSu-Medium
    /CXLi-Medium
    /CXing-Medium
    /CXingKai-Bold
    /CYuen-SemiMedium
    /MBei-Bold
    /MHei-Bold
    /MHei-Light
    /MHei-Medium
    /MHei-Xbold
    /MKai-Medium
    /MKai-SemiBold
    /MLi-Bold
    /MNgai-Bold
    /MSung-Light
    /MSung-Medium
    /MSung-Xbold
    /MYuen-Light
    /MYuen-Medium
    /MYuen-Xbold
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages false
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 200
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages false
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 200
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.40
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages false
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 300
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHT <>
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /BleedOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToRGB
      /DestinationProfileName (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
      /DestinationProfileSelector /UseName
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles true
      /MarksOffset 0
      /MarksWeight 0.283460
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /NA
      /PageMarksFile /JapaneseWithCircle
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
    <<
      /AllowImageBreaks true
      /AllowTableBreaks true
      /ExpandPage false
      /HonorBaseURL true
      /HonorRolloverEffect false
      /IgnoreHTMLPageBreaks false
      /IncludeHeaderFooter false
      /MarginOffset [
        0
        0
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetadataAuthor ()
      /MetadataKeywords ()
      /MetadataSubject ()
      /MetadataTitle ()
      /MetricPageSize [
        0
        0
      ]
      /MetricUnit /inch
      /MobileCompatible 0
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (GoLive)
        (8.0)
      ]
      /OpenZoomToHTMLFontSize false
      /PageOrientation /Portrait
      /RemoveBackground false
      /ShrinkContent true
      /TreatColorsAs /MainMonitorColors
      /UseEmbeddedProfiles false
      /UseHTMLTitleAsMetadata true
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


